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DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)
Mr. GUO Shiqging

Mr. YU Linkang (President)

Mr. GUO Ruifeng (Vice President and Chief Strategy and
Operating Officer, appointed with effect
from 29 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Haimin (Vice President)

Ms. WEI Xiaohua (Vice President, retired with effect
from 15 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (Vice President, appointed with effect
from 29 January 2024)

Ms. YANG Hongxia (Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, resigned with effect from 17 August 2023)

Mr. NIE Zhizhang (Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, appointed with effect from 17 August 2023)

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan (Chairman)

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
Mr. GUO Shiging

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer (Chairman)
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan

Mr. LI Xin

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)

Mr. YU Linkang

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter

(resigned with effect from 20 January 2023)
Mr. SO Yiu Fung

(appointed with effect from 20 January 2023)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LI Xin
Mr. YU Linkang

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

30/F., China Resources Land Building, Tower B,
No. 9668 Shennan Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen,

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

46/F., China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong
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www.crmixclifestyle.com.cn

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountant
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY

Fangda Partners

WEBSITE

www.crmixclifestyle.com.cn
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CHINA RESOURCES COMPANY LIMITED

59.55%*

1.43%* EHEMERD A

China Resources Land Limited

72.29%*

EHERLEEERLT

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

EEMEEERS PR L E R EE R IRTS
Residential Property Commercial Operational and
Management Services Property Management Services
HEEEHE FFEELRBEYTOERE(BEBDHRLO
1 !731 Projects under management 1 84 HEIER)

Number of shopping mall under
commercial operational services (including
shopping mall subleasing projects)

ARIEHR REELRBEYHRLEMEBER (BEE
1 !931 Contracted projects 1 01 WL HIER )
Number of opened shopping mall under
commercial operational services (including
shopping mall subleasing projects)

355 3 EE®mE 33 BRELREESFESREBH
C GFA under management Number of contracted office under

EHTHH sqm. in million commercial operational services

406 5 & RmiE 26 HEELRBEFECHEEER
C Contracted GFA Number of opened office under commercial

P s millon operational services

HEZE-=F1+-A=+—H
As of 31 December 2023
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EREFE2ETEBEYHR 01018 - AR 82(@E
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7T BB AHZRIE4,6008 ©
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MEERR - HE2023FK ' BREREHEE
BI171EHM T - LB EERI.70EF K - &4
EfEA4.25FBF K »

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (“CR Mixc
Lifestyle”) (stock code: 01209.HK) is the leading property
management and commercial operational services
provider in China. It was listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 9 December 2020, and was included in the
Hang Seng Index of Hong Kong as a constituent stock on
18 November 2022. With strategic positioning of “urban
quality life service platform”, the Company upholds to its
corporate vision to “become a trustworthy and popular
urban quality-life service provider among customers”,
focuses on the “2+1" business model covering commercial
operation, property service and membership program, and
strives to create an integrated ecosystem featured with
multiple property types, all customers and full spectrum of
product and service offerings.

After 19 years of development, “Mixc Commerce” has
leading development and operation capabilities of
shopping malls in China from MIXC to MIXC ONE and
then to MIXC World, providing whole process services
covering investment planning, product positioning, design
consulting, brand tenant sourcing, operation services and
other single or multiple service portfolios. As of the end
of 2023, CR Mixc Lifestyle had 101 shopping malls under
operation in China, of which 82 projects ranked the top
three in terms of retail sales in the local market, the retail
sales amounted to RMB181.2 billion, and the number of
members exceeded 46 million.

Positioned as an urban space operational service provider,
“‘MIXC Services” focuses on 12 types of core scenarios
including community living space, office production space
and urban public space, to integrate urban resources,
operate urban space and serve urban people through
integrated operation and service of urban ecosystem as
well as technology and intelligent platforms, so as to bring
people more extraordinary urban life experience. As of the
end of 2023, MIXC Services covered 171 cities in China
with area under management of 370 million sg.m. and
contracted area of 425 million sg.m.
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COMPANY HONOR

23 FEMERB LT EEBEARATHEMREANOA — BF

No. 1 among 2023 Listed Property Service Enterprises in terms of Capital Market Excellence — Guandian

2023 FMERB I HEW ARG EMKRIANO. 1 — B2

No. 1 among 2023 Property Service Enterprises in terms of Urban Services Excellence — Guandian

2023 F M ERIE B HEEBRINO.4 — B2

No. 4 among 2023 Property Service Enterprises with Outstanding Performance — Guandian

2023 BRI (R AR E B H 1038 — Rmins& Wi
Top 10 Property Service Enterprises in terms of Comprehensive Strength in China of 2023 — CRIC & China Property
Management Research Institution

2023 EIMERBIEEE N AREEF6R — PWEE - PR
No. 6 among Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in terms of Comprehensive Strength in China of 2023 — CPM Think
Tank, CPM Research Institute

2023 EMERB R RFELE BRRY — 2mkhBE
2023 Featured Brand of China Property Management Service - MIXC Services — CRIC Property Management

BEMEREELE — mAH

Outstanding Commercial Property Operator — Winshang.com

2023 FEEMELH XS RE — FEH

Golden Censer Prize for Excellent Commercial Property Enterprises of 2023 — Winshang.com

2023 FEREHEMAEITETOP1 — RisH
Top 1 among 2023 Retail Commercial Property Industry — Winshang.com

BEZE2&EER ETAT — BEZR

Phoenix Star Best Hong Kong-Listed Companies — Phoenix Satellite Television

FRETERELER — PRERLS

China Green Point - Green Pioneer Award — China Media Group

RIPESG 588100 — HEZE
Top 100 ESG Leading SOE — SASAC
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EEMEEEEE
GFA under management of residential
properties

355.3

B E Tk
Million Square Meters

EFEVMERELEE
Contracted GFA of residential properties

406.5

BEFIK
Million Square Meters

BYHhLTER

Retail sales of shopping malls

181.2

ARE+ET
RMB Billion

Cmft

EREXEVTLEE

Number of opened shopping malls

101

EREBYTOEE
GFA of opened shopping malls

11.0

EE R
Million Square Meters

ZEHE
Number of members

4,625
/ - 5

Ten thousands
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

2023 2022 RFEER
Year-on-Year
Growth
EENEEERY Residential Property
Management Services
SRZEmE (FFEFK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in 406,485 350,642! 15.9%
thousands)
EREEmMERNIEE A Number of projects for contracted 1,931 1,611 19.9%
GFA
EEREmE (TFHK) GFA under management (sg.m. in 355,339 285,172! 24.6%
thousands)
EEREmMERNIEE A Number of projects for GFA under 1,731 1,469! 17.8%
management
BYPLOEEELERBERIEE Commercial Operational
¥ fR A5 Services and Property
Management Services for
Shopping Malls*
SREEmE (FTFHK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in 20,4492 14,768 35.0%
thousands)
EREEmEIEEHE Number of projects for contracted 1792 139 26.1%
GFA
BEREIEREEEE (TFHK) GFA of projects opened (sg.m. in 10,591 8,968 18.1%
thousands)
EHFEIEEHAE Number of projects opened 98 84 16.7%
BEFERmEELERE Commercial Operational
Services for Offices
S RZEmE (FFEFK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in 2,207 2,097 5.2%
thousands)
SREEmENIERHE Number of projects for contracted 33 32 3.1%
GFA
EEELRENELRBEE GFA under commercial operational 1,694 1,766 -41%
(FFEHK) services
(sg.m. in thousands)
B RGHIER 28 Number of projects under 26 27 -3.7%
commercial operational services
! The related comparative figures have been adjusted and restated based on caliber adopted for 2023.
! HELRBFERBE T = FRANZEETARKES -
2 Please refer to page 25 of this report for the basis of the contracted GFA and the number of projects for contracted

GFA as of 31 December 2023.
2 FREE T -=F+-_A=t+—HAFRAEEEERSREEMBENER HE HEE -

BARMEFE25H o
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2023 2022 REER
Year-on-Year
Growth
B EYEEERE Property Management Services
for Offices
ERZEmE (FFEFK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in 18,784 15,181* 23.7%
thousands)
ERZEmMERIEE A Number of projects for contracted 210 170* 23.5%
GFA
VB IERGHEEEE GFA under property management 14,820 11,996* 23.5%
(FEFXK) services (sg.m. in thousands)
MEBRERRBEHIER HE Number of projects under property 195 159* 22.6%
management services
FTEMBER (AREBET) Selected Financial Information
(RMB million)
W zs Revenue 14,767 12,016 22.9%
EF Gross Profit 4,694 3,611 30.0%
B RRIHE ARGEERNHE Profit for the year attributable to 2,929 2,206 32.8%
owners of the parent
SRAEHEAR AL ZOEFE Core net profit attributable to 2,920 2,225 31.2%
owners of the parent
FTEEEEBRYE Selected Balance Sheet Data
(AR¥EERT) (RMB million)
BEE Total assets 27,783 25,838 7.5%
EREEGEE Total liabilities 11,747 11,512 2.0%
T ARRR Total equity 16,036 14,326 11.9%
FTEGHEE R Selected Financial Ratios
ERE Gross profit margin 31.8% 30.1% 1.7pt
T = Net profit margin 19.9% 18.4% 1.5pt
20 R 2 Core net profit margin 19.8% 18.5% 1.3pt
BRERZF (ARKT) Basic earnings per share (RMB) 1.283 0.967 32.8%

*

) HRLEHFERE T

The related comparative figures have been adjusted and restated based on caliber adopted for 2023.
ZFRANREETHAERLES -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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| am pleased to present to Shareholders the business
review and outlook of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

In 2023, China’s economy rebounded with stable
high-quality development. The Chinese government highly
underscores the increase of domestic demand while
stabilising growth, and gave priority to restoring and
expanding consumption. Various efforts to increase the
income of residents, improve the consumption environment
and boost consumer confidence has strongly promoted
the sustained recovery of consumption, with the scale
of consumption hitting a new high. At the same time,
consumer spending has shown a trend of accelerated
stratification, with domestic high-end consumption under
short-term pressure and high-quality consumption being
expanded and improved. Such customer segmentation,
coupled with consumption resilience, highlights the
structural opportunities. The property management
industry is entering a stage of high-quality development,
and the direction of strategic transformation of the leading
property management enterprises is gradually becoming
clearer, i.e. expanding business scale and diversifying
business portfolio to stabilise the growth fundamentals;
polishing management and accelerating the application of
technology to maximise system efficiency; and improving
services, upgrading professional capacity for deepened
development and establishing a positive circulation of
scale and efficiency by various measures.

Since its Listing, the Group has established a distinct
stable mode of business in a strategy-oriented manner,
with continuously consolidated leading position in
the industry and strong momentum for high-quality
development, which lays a solid foundation for the
establishment of “China’s most influential asset-light
management company” and the “development of a
world-class enterprise”. In 2023, the Group conducted a
comprehensive interim review of the “14th Five-Year Plan”,
and deepened and revised the strategic planning for the
second half of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The Group will
maintain its strategic focus, adhere to the “2+1" integrated
business mode, clearly define the specialised development
of commercial management and property management as
our two major segments, firmly implement two supporting
systems, including “high-quality scale development” and
‘high-quality and efficient operation”, and continue to
optimise our three major development engines, including
‘organisational change and motivation”, “technological
empowerment” and “strategic merger and acquisition”.
In 2023, the Group pushed forward various strategic
initiatives and achieved concrete results.
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! SEXERA

Steady growth and expanded scale. The Group continues
to consolidate its industry-leading position in respect of
the commercial management segment. As of the end of
2023, the number of shopping malls under the Group’s
management reached the milestone of “100 MALLs" to 101
and realised retail sales of RMB181.2 billion, representing
a year-on-year (“YoY") growth of 43.3%, of which 13 are
luxury shopping centres, ranking first in the industry. The
Group newly signed 14 commercial light asset expansion
projects, all being large-scale transit-oriented development
(“TOD”) projects in first and second-tier cities and the
number of shopping centres in reserve reached 83. The
property management segment remained in the first
echelon of the industry, with further improvement in both
scale and quality of market expansion, reflecting the
Group's determination to transform into an urban space
operation service provider. As of the end of 2023, the
Group had gross floor area (“GFA”) under management
of 370 million sg.m. and contracted GFA of 425 million
sg.m., covering 171 cities across the country. During the
year, the Group expanded its urban space portfolio to
128" projects. With the high-quality development of model
projects including Shenzhen Luohu City Keeper (&
%), Chengdu Dong’an Lake Park and Xi’an Olympic Sports
Centre, the Group's influence in the industry was further
improved. Our membership program has been promoted
steadily with an increasing size. As of the end of 2023, the
total number of “MIXC Star” (5 2£) members exceeded
46.25 million, inclusive of approximately 12.25 million new
members during the year. The Group has also further
improved the cross-sector service experience with our
independently-developed online cross-sector platform for
our customers.

! Including industrial park projects
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2 ZRIMNDE - FERBEHBEERE -

Improve quality and efficiency to develop a new
competitive edge. The Group firmly believes that quality
is a foundation while efficiency is a guarantee, and insists
on winning the future with high quality and achieving
“high-quality scale growth” with high efficiency. During the
year, we consolidated the basic services, strengthened the
featured services and updated the high-end services in
respect of our shopping mall business in the commercial
management segment, with consumer satisfaction
remaining at a high level of 99.2 points. Besides, the Group
deepened the strategy of “capturing resources, attracting
customers, adopting favourable policies and controlling
expenses” to fight for resources on a hierarchical basis
and promote cost reduction and efficiency enhancement
in a systematic manner. As a result, shopping malls
under the management of the Group realised rental
income from the property owners side of RMB22.0 billion,
representing a YoY increase of 38.8%, with operating
profit margin from the property owners side increased by
5.0 percentage points YoY to 64.7%. We deepened the
strategy of “stabilising inventory and expanding growth” in
respect of our office business, with occupancy increasing
by 3.2 percentage points to 83.9%, compared with the
end of 2022. In the property management sector, the
Group reshaped the service grading system to optimise
customer experience, with customer satisfaction of 88.32
points for the year, continuing to lead the industry. Gross
profit margin of basic services remained stable, and
revenue from community value-added service increased
by 21.5% YoY, with a consolidated collection rate? of
90%. The Group has completed the consolidation of the
mergers and acquisitions (“M&A”) projects and realised
effective empowerment and synergistic value adding. The
group-wide emphasis on performance quality management
resulted in a YoY decrease of 1.6 percentage points in
selling and administrative expense ratio to 8.4%, whereas
a YoY increase of 4.9 percentage points in operating cash
flow ratio to 20.6% and a YoY increase of 19.2 percentage
points in operating net cash flow/core net profit to 104.2%.

2 Including Yuzhou Property and Zhongnan Services M&A
projects.
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Innovate for new momentum. Focusing on “operation
digitalisation, production technologisation, space
intellectualisation and data capitalisation”, the Group
accelerates digital transformation by concentrating on
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, frontline
empowerment and efficient decision-making in a short
term, aiming to consolidate the competitive barriers
and breaking the physical boundaries of services to
create a second growth curve in the long run. During
the year, focusing on the digital management theme
of “cost reduction, quality improvement and efficiency
enhancement with customer satisfaction improved”, the
Group deepened the online management throughout the
lifecycle of the shopping mall projects in the commercial
management segment to maximise collaboration efficiency
and drive performance growth. Supported by the
marketing profiling platform, the Group reduced the time
length for the preparation of member activities by 82%
and improved the conversion rate of activities to 30%.
Consumers’ digital experience has also been improved
continuously. Our exploration of user value began to show
effects. With our updated “E-MIXC” (—Z4EX), number
of monthly active users increased by 52% and in-store
spending of consumers attracted by the content section
reached RMB260 million. The Group has also improved the
coverage of digitalisation rapidly to empower the property
management business and restructured the property
charging system to boost customer payment experience.
In collaboration with the “MIXC Star” (B&£) gift activity,
our property management fee prepayment for the year
increased by nearly 200%. Additionally, the launch of our
independently-developed “ZhaoXi” (B & E¥) e-commerce
system has extended the digital construction to diversified
value-added services.
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Embrace changes with new progress in reform. The
Group actively responds to market changes by promoting
organisational reform and upgrading organisational
capabilities. In the property management segment, the
Group has optimised the allocation of resources on a city
level, accelerated mergers and acquisitions, and fortified
business penetration; and in the commercial management
segment, the Group has restructured tenant sourcing
organisation and optimised talent structure to enhance
the overall organisational efficiency. The materialisation
of a flat management structure and shared functions in
the middle and back office led to an over 40% increase
in the manpower efficiency of the two-tier management
platform. A multi-level talent supply and development
system has been established, including the “MIXC Talents”
(BR#7) and “MIXC Elites” (B &) talent cultivation
and development programmes for the commercial
management segment and property management segment
respectively for the purpose of expanding talent base and
optimising talent echelon. The Group has also improved
the market-oriented remuneration incentive system to be
further aligned with our light asset business, strengthen the
support for business development, allow the front line to
understand our performance-based remuneration culture
and continuously stimulate the organisational self-driving
force.
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Committed to our mission and vision. The Group
provides full support to the organisation of major
national competitions and events, and has successfully
completed the service work for the Chengdu Universiade,
Hangzhou Asian Games and the China-Central Asia
Summit. The establishment of the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) strategic systems has been
pushed forward steadily by the Group. In response to the
“dual-carbon” strategy of the country, the Group has set a
target for the control of annual carbon intensity. The Board
has established a sustainability committee to improve
the ESG governance framework. In consolidating our
commitment to sustainability, the Group has established
the “MIXC Care” (B%5F#) responsibility brand system.
Other practises include the organisation of the first “Week
of Sustainability” programme in collaboration with our
business partners to spread the concept of sustainability,
the providing of property management services to 10
CR Hope Towns (EEF L/ ) and the setup of MIXC
Care public welfare lecture hall to assist the development
of rural quality education. The Group was awarded
the “Region Top Rated (Asia/Pacific)” by Morningstar
Sustainalytics for the first time, and was selected into the
“Central Enterprise ESG e Pioneer 100" (#R{> ESGeii%
100) index by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council (B#p%E
BEEEEEEZE®S), and the list of “China ESG-Listed
Companies Pioneer 100" (Bl ESG LM AF5EE 100) by
the China Central Television (FEFRERE).

During 2023, the Group outperformed the market and
hit the record again. Our consolidated revenue amounted
to RMB14.767 billion, representing a YoY increase of
22.9%, and core net profit amounted to RMB2.92 billion,
representing a YoY increase of 31.2%. Earnings per share
relating to core net profit were RMB1.279, with a steady
growth in each core performance indicator. The Board
resolved to declare a final dividend of RMB0.481 per
share, representing a YoY increase of 54.2% and leading
to a increase of 10 percentage points in dividend payout
rate to 55% for the year, which significantly boosted
Shareholders’ returns.
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Looking forward to 2024, opportunities and challenges
will co-exist with opportunities outweighing challenges
Although the internal and external situations of China’s
economy remain severe and complex and the industry is
faced with various challenges such as intensified market
competition and the need to further improve consumer
spending power and willingness, the trend of China’s
economy to rebound and improve will remain unchanged,
and the strong resilience of the domestic consumer
market and its advantages in terms of scale will also
bring development opportunities. 2024 is a critical year
for the realisation of the strategic objectives of the “14th
Five-Year Plan”. The Group will insist on “development
and innovation”, take “high quality, high efficiency
and fast growth” as the overall operating principle and
“revenue with profit and profit with cash flows” as the core
operating strategy, and do our utmost to achieve steady
results growth and enhance Shareholders’ value. In the
commercial management segment, the Group will further
refine management, improve the competitiveness of the
three major product lines, namely MIXC, MIXC ONE, and
MIXC World, continue to deepen the development of luxury
shopping centres and solidly build up the competitive edge
in quality; continue to strengthen high-quality expansion to
drive sustainable growth with market-oriented capabilities;
and promote the trial operation of our own cosmetics
business in an orderly manner, set up a consumption fund
on a trial basis to develop a commercial ecosystem and
empower the high-quality development of the segment. In
the property management segment, the Group deems the
improvement of basic service quality as the foundation
to consolidate the base for business development; put
equal emphasis on market expansion and mergers and
acquisition to expand scale and maintain our position in
the first echelon in the industry; expand the scale of our
value-added services and comprehensively push forward
the specialised development of engineering services;
promote the development of model urban space projects
in all forms of business and deepen the transformation into
an urban space operation service provider. The Group
will develop an integrated management mode of “lease +
operation + property management” for the office properties
to improve our competitiveness in the market. Besides,
the Group will strengthen benchmark management to
comprehensively enhance the organisational capability
of the entire value chain of the segment; deepen
organisational and remuneration incentive reforms
and safeguard the allocation of resources to stimulate
the vitality of the segment; and accelerate digital
transformation to further improve the efficiency of business
management.
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In the medium to long term, China will strive to promote
the high-quality development of economy and speed up
the establishment of a new development pattern that takes
domestic development as the mainstay, with domestic and
international development reinforcing each other, which
presents favourable conditions for the long-term healthy
development of the Group. Depending on the results of
the interim review of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Group
will seize opportunities and ride the trend of development
in a confident manner. In the commercial management
segment, the Group will continue to consolidate our
leading position as the “top commercial operation service
provider in the industry in terms of comprehensive
strength”, and in the property management segment,
the Group will accelerate our development of the most
influential “urban space operation service provider”
in China. In the area of the membership business, the
Group will fortify the construction of the membership
system, continue to expand the scale of membership and
implement precise cross-business traffic empowerment
and attraction. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to
focus on the three key elements, i.e. “space, customer,
and product and service”, adhere to the concept of high
quality and create greater space value and customer value
to form a virtuous cycle of leading scale, leading quality
and sustainability. In a bound and determined manner, we
are moving forward in becoming “China’s most influential
asset-light management company” and “developing a
world-class enterprise”.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like
to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the shareholders,
customers and the public who have been paying attention
to and supporting the development of the Group. The
Group will continue to innovate and improve at a steady
pace to create greater value for our Shareholders.

LI Xin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business is divided into two main segments:
(i) residential property management services; and (ii)
commercial operational and property management
services.

Residential property management services: The Group
provides management services for residential properties
and other non-commercial properties comprising public
facilities such as stadiums, parks and industrial parks,
and brings various services to families and residents in
the communities to meet their living needs. Our residential
property management services can be categorised as
follows:

° Property management services, including security,
cleaning and greening, as well as repair and
maintenance services to (i) property developers for
properties prior to their delivery, and (ii) property
owners, property owners’ associations or residents
for properties sold and delivered;

o Value-added services to property developers,
including consultancy, preliminary preparation, and
pre-delivery marketing services; and

° Community value-added services, including
community living services, and brokerage and asset
services.

Commercial operational and property management
services: commercial properties under our Group’s
management include shopping malls and office buildings.

For shopping malls, the Group provides:

° Commercial operational services, including
pre-opening management and operation
management services;

o Property management and other services, principally
including security, cleaning and greening, repair
and maintenance, as well as other value-added
services; and
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Commercial subleasing services, where the Group
leases certain quality shopping malls from their

F e owners and sublease to tenants such as retail stores
and supermarkets.
EFESTHE  ASEEMH For office buildings, the Group provides:
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Commercial operational services, including tenant
sourcing, asset management and operational
services, and opening preparation services; and
property management and other services, principally
including security, cleaning and greening, repair
and maintenance, as well as other value-added
services.

TREIIMRABERRESS HRREENE S The table below sets forth details of revenue by business

KA GETS ¢ segment and type of services as of the dates indicated:
Rt=RA=+—-8”
As of 31 December
—EZ=F —EF-—
2023 2022
(AR¥F) % (AREFT) %
(RMB’ 000) (RMB'000)
FEVEXEERY Residential property management
services
M E RS Property management services 7,245,377 49.1 5,572,668 46.4
SR RIS ERS Value-added services to property 828,883 5.6 973,404 8.1
developers
[ E(E AR Community value-added services 1,526,352 10.3 1,255,982 10.4
Nat Subtotal 9,600,612 65.0 7,802,054 64.9

HEEERMEEERE Commercial operational and
property management services

B0 Shopping malls 3,238,307 21.9 2,482,323 20.7
BT Office buildings 1,928,033 13.1 1,731,802 14.4
Net Subtotal 5,166,340 35.0 4,214,125 35.1
=) Total 14,766,952 100 12,016,179 100
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RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue from property management services amounted
to RMB7,245.4 million, representing a YoY increase of
30.0% and accounting for 49.1% of the total revenue.
The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the
mergers and acquisitions of companies and the increase
in GFA under management brought by marketisation
and expansion, as well as the effect on non-full-year
consolidation of the companies acquired last year. As of
31 December 2023, there were 1,731 managed residential
and other non-commercial properties, representing an
increase of 262 as compared to that of 2022; and the
aggregate GFA under management was 355.3 million
sg.m., representing a YoY increase of 70.2 million sg.m.

The table below sets forth details of our contracted GFA
and GFA under management of residential and other
non-commercial properties as of the dates indicated:

R+=—A=+—8H
As of 31 December

—E-= —E T Fx

2023 2022*

AREEmE (FTFHK) Contracted GFA (sq.m. in thousands) 406,485 350,642

ERZEmMERNIEE A Number of projects for contracted GFA 1,931 1,611

FEEEEmE (FTFHK) GFA under management (sg.m. in thousands) 355,339 285,172

EEREmMERIEE A Number of projects for GFA under management 1,731 1,469
* AL RETERE-_S = FRAMIZEE * The related comparative figures have been adjusted and

THEKRES

restated based on caliber adopted for 2023
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of

EXTWHERE  EERREEERMA  ARRK residential properties under management, the aggregate
FraHIRE R B M TR RBH Y4 - GFA under management as of the dates indicated, and
revenue generated from property management services by
type of property developer for the periods indicated:
R+=A=t-8
As of 31 December
ZB-ZE “ECoCE
2023 2022
i3] #E
BEEE EEL Wi BEEE BRYE" g
GFA under Number GFA under Number
management  of projects Revenue management®  of projects* Revenue
(F¥EHX) (AR®FR)  (FF5K) (AE®TT)
(sq.m. in (sg.m. in
thousands) (RMB’000)  thousands) (RMB'000)
EREN CR Land 137,198 627 3,731,314 119,443 529 3,221,197
EEEEEE-/HHEE  CR Group and third-party developers 218,141 1,104 3,514,063 165,729 940 2,351,471
@t Total 355,339 1,731 7,245,377 285,172 1,469 5,572,668

© RBHEETORE T - S FRANEEE
A% RS

S35 2% D 2% v ) BE e R A5

HE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HILEE K&
EREMEREENEEREEKA B AR

828.9F BT ' (FAIWAS.6% @ B EFRHRE
K14.8%  TEXHEFHEBERERINEEY

2 BAXNANERE  LHERESEFERAR
FTTFE -

The related comparative figures have been adjusted and
restated based on caliber adopted for 2023

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO PROPERTY
DEVELOPERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded revenue generated from value-added services to
property developers of RMB828.9 million, accounting for
5.6% of the total revenue and representing a decrease of
14.8% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. Such decrease was mainly affected by the project
development and delivery progress of the developers, with
a decrease in the business revenue from preparation and
marketing services before delivery of projects.
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COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded revenue generated from community value-added
services of RMB1,526.4 million, representing an increase
of 21.5% as compared with the corresponding period of
last year and accounting for 10.3% of the total revenue.
Such increase was attributable to the increase in the scale
of property management, and the rapid growth of the
renovation services, housekeeping services and Choice
of CR MIXC (H#JE#) businesses provided to community
residents, relying on the competitive industrial resources of
CR Group and CR Land.

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL AND
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue from the commercial operational and property
management services to shopping malls amounted to
RMB3,238.3 million, representing an increase of 30.5%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year
and accounting for 21.9% of the total revenue. As of
31 December 2023, the Group provided commercial
operational services to 98 opened shopping mall projects
with an aggregate GFA of 10.6 million sq.m., a vast
majority of which were also receiving the Group's property
management services. In addition, the Group had three
opened shopping mall subleasing projects as of 31
December 2023.

81.4% of the segment revenue was generated from
the provision of commercial operational services and
property management services to shopping malls, with
the remaining revenue derived from the provision of
commercial subleasing services.
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The table below sets forth details of the contracted GFA
and GFA of projects opened under commercial operational
services and property management services for shopping
malls as of the dates indicated:

ARRERE(TFHK)*
ARREEENELBE
ERRERREEE (TFHK)
EREEEEE

Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands)*
Number of projects for contracted GFA*

GFA of projects opened (sg.m. in thousands)

Number of projects opened

R+=B=+—~H
As of 31 December

—EC-=F —E-F
2023 2022
20,449 15,148
179 142
10,591 8,968
98 84

TREINAMEFREHERE D

HERES

W) E TR ARA H Y s AR AR

S RGEREBEYTLHRE
EFERAAR - DA IR AR BRI 2K A B 5B S RS e

B PR B B R
HEEaE

property developer for the periods indicated:

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of
opened shopping malls receiving commercial operational
services and the aggregate GFA as of the dates indicated,
and revenue generated from commercial operational
services and property management services by type of

R+=A=t-8
As of 31 December
It St “EoCF
2023 2022
i3] #E
BEER BAHE g BEREE BRYE g
GFA under Number GFA under Number
management  of projects Revenue  management of projects Revenue
(FEHX) (AR%FR)  (FEAx) (ARETT)
(sq.m. in (sq.m. in
thousands) (RMB’000)  thousands) (RMB'000)
EREN CR Land 9,221 78 2,400,764 7,671 67 1,915,735
EBHEEHEE=ZFERE  CR Group and third-party developers 1,370 20 233,783 1,297 17 201,183
Feb Total 10,591 98 2,634,547 8,968 84 2,116,918

The contracted GFA and number of projects for contracted GFA as of 31 December 2023 included those

attributable to reserved shopping malls not contracted but acquired by CR Land. The contracted GFA and number
of projects for contracted GFA excluding reserved shopping malls not contracted but acquired by CR Land are
16,728 sq.m. in thousands and 154 as of 31 December 2023 respectively.
* BE-Z-_=F+-A=1T-HANAAREARERAFZEENENERHE OEAFZVNEEHEHEENFEEED P OE

EHERRERERSRAREEEBENEEHE - NIBRABZNEEREHEDERBEEDDL -

ToANERRERERESRZERMENIAREE S HR16,728 TF 7K R 1541F -

BE-Z-=F+"A=
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OFFICE BUILDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue from the commercial operational and property
management services to office buildings was RMB1,928.0
million, representing an increase of 11.3% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year and accounting
for 13.1% of the total revenue. As of 31 December 2023,
the Group provided commercial operational services for
26 office buildings with an aggregate GFA of 1.7 million
sg.m., and property management services for 195 office
buildings with an aggregate GFA of 14.8 million sg.m.

93.1% of the segment revenue was generated from the
provision of property management services to office
buildings, with the remaining revenue from the provision of
commercial operational services.

The table below sets forth details of our contracted GFA
and GFA under management of office buildings as of the
dates indicated:

R+=—A=+-—~H
As of 31 December
—EB-=F T
2023 2022*
BEEERK Commercial operational services
EREEEE (TFHK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 2,207 2,097
HRBREmMBERIEESE Number of projects for contracted GFA 33 32
AR EE R EERE GFA of the commercial operational services 1,694 1,766
(FFEHK) (sq.m. in thousands)
REEEREMIEER#E Number of projects for commercial operational 26 27
services
MEEE R Property management services
HRBEmE (TEHK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 18,784 15,181
EREEMERIER#E Number of projects for contracted GFA 210 170
MEBTEBERBOELEEE GFA of the property management services 14,820 11,996
(FFHXK) (sg.m. in thousands)
MEBIEREHIER BB Number of projects for property management 195 159

services
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TRETIAMEFREEARNE SRR BB The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of
ERTEHAREEREEMERA - AR office buildings under management, the aggregate GFA
TR B R EE RIS R E B R S H a= under management as of the dates indicated, and revenue

FRAA - generated from commercial operational services and
property management services for the periods indicated
by type of property developers:

Wt=A=+-H
As of 31 December
b St -3 “E-F
2023 2022
tE g
EEER BEE#E g REEE CEE Uz
GFA under Number GFA under Number
management  of projects Revenue management®  of projects* Revenue
(F¥EX) (AR%TR)  (FFAK) (ARBTT)
(sq.m. in (sq.m. in
thousands) (RMB’000)  thousands) (RMB'000)

BRELRK Commercial operational services

EHEN CR Land 1,255 20 99,418 1,327 21 107,111

EREEAE-FFEE  CR Group and third-party developers 439 6 32,802 439 6 19,452

&t Total 1,694 26 132,220 1,766 7 126,563

NEEERE Property management services

EREN CR Land 9,375 95 1,352,266 8,034 83 1,230,396

EHEEHE=HFET  CR Group and third-party developers 5,445 100 443,547 3,961 76 374,843

Feb Total 14,820 195 1,795,813 11,996 159 1,605,239

* AL RETERE-_S = FRAMIZEE * The related comparative figures have been adjusted and

TRAENREY - restated based on caliber adopted for 2023.
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OUTLOOK

The Group plans to selectively acquire and invest in
property management companies with certain scale
and profitability, expand quality commercial charter
projects, and actively focus on acquisition and investment
opportunities of high-quality commercial operational
companies with complementary strengths. Meanwhile,
the Group will adhere to its strategy to penetrate regional
market and take advantage of its business network in
cities with business presence established and the brand
advantages. In particular, it will continue to expand the
property management segment to all property types across
the business while gradually transforming to urban space
operational service provider, and focus on medium and
high-end segment in terms of commercial management
segment. In addition, it will strive to secure quality projects
from third parties, thereby enhancing market share and
realising economies of scale.

The Group will continue to work with CR Land to win new
engagements of property management and commercial
operational services for residential properties and
commercial properties developed or owned by CR Land
for a stable expansion of our business. The Group will
continue to undertake management services engagements
relating to properties owned by CR Group, such as
industrial parks and factories. In addition, the Group plans
to seize new business opportunities from CR Group and
CR Land to help us expand into new property segments
and strengthen the Company's platform.
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The Group adheres to the principle of high-quality services.
Riding on years of professional experience accumulated in
the commercial retail and service fields, and following the
trend of technology innovation and digital transformation,
we will continue to improve our professional operation
and service system to achieve high-quality development
and continuous improvement of customer experience.
Meanwhile, we aim to introduce more CR Group and CR
Land’s services and resources to the Company’s managed
space so as to bring more value to our customers. In
addition, we will also leverage on our business rationale
of “space, customer, product and service” to construct
an integrated ecosystem featured with all segments,
all customers, all products and full spectrum of service
offerings with the goal of becoming the creator of urban
ecological services and better life of people.

The Group plans to pursue strategic investments in
professional service providers that are synergistic with our
business, such as property brokers, asset management
companies and new retail, to build an ecosystem of service
offerings that promotes customer loyalty. Meanwhile, the
Group plans to pursue strategic investments in upstream
and downstream business partners in the Company’s
industry to enhance the Company’s profitability and
broaden our customer base.
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The Group intends to continuously enhance the
functionality of our membership programs to capture
members’ interest in our products and services offered
under the membership programs and enhance their loyalty,
further attract new users to our ecosystem in an efficient
manner and build digital connection with customers. We
will continue to consolidate our membership programs,
which allows us to fully understand the needs of users,
enrich the options for the interests of the members and
strengthen the identity value perception of the members,
while improving customers’ cross platform experience
and realising cross-segment customer diversion. We
will also continue to promote the membership programs
to attract third-party merchants and further develop our
platform and ecosystem through creating value and growth
opportunities. We will actively leverage on the Company’s
membership programs to promote our corporate brand and
enhance our brand image and customer loyalty.

The Group plans to promote digitisation initiatives of
‘operation digitalisation, production technologisation,
space intellectualisation and data capitalisation” to
enhance operational efficiency and users’ experience by
technology empowerment. We will continue to upgrade the
applications such as “E-MIXC" (—2ZhE %) and “Officeasy”
for commercial management, and “ZhaoXi” (§i&) for
property management, and iterate the functionality of our
digitised service platforms to create a unique experience
for our users. Meanwhile, we will continue to iteratively
update the functionality of commercial management
business and tenant platforms, core business system of
property management and membership platform to support
digital operations. We also support investment in intelligent
technology solutions and pursue strategic investments in
technology companies relating to commercial operation,
property management and urban management.
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The Group plans to attract talents with competitive
remuneration packages and excellent corporate culture
and reputation, and organise regular training provided by
senior employees and external consultants. The Group
will also continue to refine its remuneration scheme and
formulate employee incentive mechanism to better align
their benefits with our interest. In addition, the Group plans
to enhance the sense of pride, mission and professionalism
of its employees through the promotion of corporate
culture.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue is mainly generated from two
business segments: (i) residential property management
services, and (ii) commercial operational and property
management services.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
revenue amounted to RMB14,767.0 million, representing
an increase of 22.9% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. Such increase was primarily due to (i)
the considerable growth in results caused by the increase
in the GFA under management as a result of business M&A
and market expansion; and (ii) the increase in revenue
from commercial operational and management services
driven by the increase in the scale of the shopping malls
under management and the improvement in performance.

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprises (i) staff costs,
(ii) subcontracting costs, (iii) utilities costs, (iv) common
area facility costs, and (v) office and related expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s cost
of sales amounted to RMB10,072.7 million, representing
an increase of 19.8% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. Such increase was primarily due to the
increase in various types of corresponding costs resulting
from the continuous growth of business scale.

0

3

1



032

L SAERERNS ANNUAL REPORT 2023

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HE-_Z-_=F4+_-_A=1+—HILFE  K&£H
FEHABARKEA46943BBTL KREFRHER
30.0% : EFE AE31.8% ' [tk EF1.7E D
2o

TREIAAR BRI ER D A& D ENLEF

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gross profit of
the Group amounted to RMB4,694.3 million, representing
an increase of 30.0% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, and the gross profit margin was 31.8%,
representing a YoY increase of 1.7 percentage points.

The table below sets forth details of the gross profit and
gross profit margin by segment as of the dates indicated:

BET-A=1+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—EZ=HF B F
2023 2022
E7 ERM=H EH ERE
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin
(AR¥F ) % (AR®EFT) %
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
EENEEERY Residential property management
services
MEEERYE Property management services 987,054 13.6 782,623 14.0
R BERS Value-added services to property 283,899 34.3 355,684 36.5
developers
HRIEERE Community value-added services 407,189 26.7 334,480 26.6
Ay Subtotal 1,678,142 17.5 1,472,787 18.9
HXEERYEEERE Commercial operational and
property management services
By Shopping malls 2,328,961 71.9 1,548,431 62.4
BT Office buildings 687,175 35.6 589,716 34.1
AN Subtotal 3,016,136 58.4 2,138,147 50.7
At Total 4,694,278 31.8 3,610,934 30.1

BHE-_ZT-_=—F+_A=+—HUEFE " =D
XERREEFERAE17.5% R TE14ET
DB FEARNIEERBBA (RAEEE S
FEMERS) EEEMEE B R WA L HI
[FILL T FEFTEL o

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gross profit
margin of residential property management services was
17.5%, representing a YoY decrease of 1.4 percentage
points. The decrease was mainly due to the YoY decrease
in the proportion of the income of value-added service to
the income of residential property management service,
which has a higher gross profit margin among the Group’s
segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gross
profit margin of commercial operational and property
management services was 58.4%, representing a YoY
increase of 7.7 percentage points, which is attributable to
the improvement in leverage effect of business operation
services and the increase in gross profit margin driven
by the increase in revenue as well as cost reduction and
efficiency improvement.

GAIN ON CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties of RMB39.4 million, which was mainly related
to the valuation change of the commercial subleasing
projects.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded other income and gains of RMB576.5 million,
broadly the same as that of the corresponding period of
last year.

MARKETING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded marketing expenses of RMB284.7 million,
representing a YoY increase of 88.3%, which was mainly
due to the increase in market expansion expenses as a
result of more effort devoted in business expansion and
the opening of new commercial subleasing projects.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
administrative expenses were RMB949.8 million,
representing a YoY decrease of 9.8%, which was mainly
due to the remarkable results of cost control and efficiency
improvement, and the improvement of management
efficiency achieved by mergers and acquisitions.
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FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
finance costs were RMB117.2 million, representing a YoY
increase of 34.4%, which was mainly due to the increase in
amortisation of interest on lease liabilities of Lanzhou MIXC
during the year, a new subleasing project last year.

INCOME TAX

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
effective income tax rate was 24.8%, representing an
increase of 1.0 percentage point as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s net
profit was RMB2,942.6 million, representing an increase of
33.0% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s total bank deposits
and cash (including restricted bank deposits) amounted
to RMB11,646.8 million and were mainly held in RMB. The
Group maintains a reasonable and adequate level of cash
through centralised fund management.

GEARING RATIO

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was
42.3%, representing a decrease of 2.3 percentage points
as compared with that as of the end of last year. The
gearing ratio was calculated by total liabilities divided by
total assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As of the date of this report, the Group has no other
material income, disposals, significant investments and
future plans for material investments.
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ARERMANERER

Business objective as stated in the Prospectus

PROCEEDS OF THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange on 9 December 2020, with total
net proceeds of the Listing amounted to approximately
RMB11,600.4 million after deducting the underwriting fees
and relevant expenses.

As at 31 December 2023, RMB4,409.0 million of the
proceeds of the Listing had been utilised. The remaining
amounts were held by way of bank deposits with licensed
banks in Hong Kong or in Chinese Mainland.

HE
a3 R
RZBZZ% = 3
t=f  =t-fAt 128
=t-H 35 =t-A
FERERE ABA  FEIERE B
bl B fiERE  HERRZ FERE
Actual use of
net proceeds
Proceeds during the Proceeds
Planned unused asof  yearended unused as of
use of net 31 December 31 December 31 December
Proportion proceeds 2022 2023 2023
(AR®BER) (AR®EER) (ARMEER) (ARWEER
(RMB million) ~ (RMB million) (RMB million) ~(RMB million)

(i EANFERNERE L BORRRATNE 60% 6,960 54574 826.0 46315
(i) Making strategic investments and acquisitions to expand our property management and

commercial operational businesses
(i) REBEREALTE L TEREENBRERE 15% 1740.1 15276 2100 13176
(ii) Pursuing strategic investment in providers of value-added services and across the upstream

and downstream supply chain of our industry
() REAREHMASNBEIE 15% 1,740.1 12392.1 1497 12424
(il Investing in information technology systems and smart communities
(v) EEESR-RATMR 10% 1,160.0 - - -
(iv) Working capital and general corporate uses

100% 11,600.4 8,377.1 1,185.7 17,1915

Hta - Note:
1. BAIE TR A » BUEAFARNERLER o 1. The sum of the data may not add up to the total due to

rounding.
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For further details on the Company’s use of net proceeds
of the Listing and the proposed changes to the use
of net proceeds, please also refer to the Company's
announcement published on 25 March 2023.

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As of 31 December 2023, three of the properties of the
Group, namely Shenzhen Buji MIXONE, Lanzhou MIXC
and Shenzhen Longgang Universiade project, were
recognised as the investment properties under HKFRS
16 in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the relevant percentage ratios of such investment
properties exceed 5% pursuant to Rule 14.04(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Shenzhen Buji MIXONE
is located at No. 2 Xiangge Road, Buji Sub-district,
Longgang District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the
PRC, Lanzhou MIXC is located at No. 2, Qingyang Road,
Chengguan District, Lanzhou, Gansu Province, the PRC,
and Shenzhen Longgang Universiade project is located
in Huanggekeng Community, Longcheng Sub-district,
Longgang District, Shenzhen, the PRC. They are currently
used for commercial subleasing services and are held
under long-term leases. During the effective term of the
lease contracts, the lessors have no right to unilaterally
terminate the contracts except for force majeure events
and extreme conditions such as the default on rental
payment by the Group, illegal operation and damage to
the buildings.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had no pledge of
assets (31 December 2022: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As the Group’s business is mainly conducted in Chinese
Mainland, we mainly adopt RMB as the settlement
currency. As of 31 December 2023, non RMB assets and
liabilities mainly included the cash of HK$74.0 million and
US$19,358.0. The management believed that the operation
of the Group was not exposed to material foreign currency
risk. No significant impact was caused by the fluctuation
of RMB exchange rate on the Group’s financial position.
Currently, the Group does not have any hedging policies
against its foreign exchange risk, but the management will
actively monitor the foreign exchange exposure and make
necessary adjustments in accordance with the changes in
market environment.

EMPLOYEE AND COMPENSATION
POLICY

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 40,977 full
time employees in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong
(31 December 2022: 40,239). The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, working
experience and market salary levels. In addition,
performance bonus is granted on a discretionary basis.
Other employee benefits include provident fund, insurance
and medical coverage.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s capital commitments
amounted to RMB417.2 million (31 December 2022:
RMB50.7 million).

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company entered into the following loan agreement
which have specific performance covenant of its controlling
shareholders. The obligations of such loan agreements
continue to exist as of the date of this report. As at the date
of this report, CRH beneficially owns directly or indirectly
approximately 73.72% of the issued share capital of the
Company, and CR Land is the single largest shareholder
of the Company, directly owning approximately 72.29% of
the issued share capital of the Company and being able to
control the Company.

A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate
amount of up to HKD600,000,000 with a expiration date of
12 months was entered into on 20 October 2021, details
of which have been disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 20 October 2021. The Company has
undertaken that during the term of the facility, the Company
shall procure that CRH and CR Land remain directly
or indirectly interested in no less than 35% and 51% of
the issued share capital of the Company respectively. If
violation of the relevant undertakings under this facility
letter occurs, the lender may declare any commitment
under this facility letter to be cancelled and/or declare the
outstanding loans, together with all the interests accrued
thereon, and all other amounts due under this facility letter
shall become immediately due and payable. The revolving
loan facility letter has been renewed on the same terms
on 20 October 2023 with the maturity date having been
extended for 12 months. As of 31 December 2023, the
Group did not draw down this facility letter.



HEPE S S FAE China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited ()39

1% HIH SUBSEQUENT EVENT
RZBEZ=F+—A=+—HEBEKREEAREH There were no significant events affecting the Group which
B BERETELAEENE RSN - have occurred after 31 December 2023 and up to date of

this report.



040

L SAERERNS ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Hf

WRELLE 525 BT _THFELAREMT
ARAEEYR T -_TFN\ARZERUTE
ERANTEE - WAARFAAHERREZES
KB - MEEEAROFHERE  HEEL
RERERER -

BEER-—NAN_FNAE-NARFNALAER
IEREBRE - LARBETERDRLERL
B ERR—NMNAANFAAE-_TZETE+ -
AEBEMERARATF - WERETREER
BEE - BIRBREE -RN_ZEETF+HE
“RE=FRA MAEERERYEINE SO
BRRgE YR _TT_F-AE_TFT=
FRARSEERITABEBEERAAES
RBRE R_TT=FRAZ_TZTMF+
— A BAARREBEARAREIELRE -

WAER_ZTENF+—AZ_FT——FHAE
FEBECORY) BERQA ([EBRI]) (BT
ﬁﬂi‘?—ﬂﬁ_&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁiﬁzﬁ’]mﬁﬂf)EJZ@W
BB ZEENFTAET——F1A
Hﬁﬂf’fﬁiﬂmﬂlh” BRAEBRDABLIE - BR
—E——FRAEZZE—=F\REARIIEE
J?@?%IE H-_E—=FN NAE_FT—Ft
CRBEEEELELSE  REESALIEI
&iﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂjﬁ%i@ﬁ ZE-RFEA BEZS
FAEHBWRRY  BEAEEEE X%
THRERMNEEELERBES -mEtEr %
—NF+—HR- Zééfiﬁiﬂgfm%?&mﬂ
#oMRITE —Z_TF=REFREVELER

DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Linkang, aged 52, has been our Director since
July 2020 and was appointed as an executive Director
and the President of the Company in August 2020. He is
a member of the sustainability committee of the Company.
Mr. Yu has approximately 30 years of experience in real
estate investment, commercial operation and corporate
management.

Mr. Yu worked in China Resources Hotel in Beijing (3t
FEMERE) from August 1992 to September 1996,
where he successively served as the deputy manager
and manager of the food and beverage department. He
worked in Longdation Enterprises Limited (B3GR
73 7)) from September 1996 to December 2000, where he
successively served as the supervisor, deputy manager
and manager of the investment management department.
Mr. Yu served as the assistant general manager of
Shenzhen Foreign Trade Center (RIIEHNE ZH D) from
December 2000 to June 2003, the chairman and general
manager of Shenzhen Hotel Kapok Co., Ltd. (&I AL
EBEARAR) from January 2002 to June 2003, and the
deputy general manager of Hotel Kapok Co., Ltd. (AKR&FE
EIEBBRAR]) from June 2003 to November 2004.

From November 2004 to May 2011, Mr. Yu served as the
deputy general manager of China Resources (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (EH(XYI)BERA7F) (“China Resources
Shenzhen”) (which has been a subsidiary of CR Land
since October 2005), during which he concurrently served
as the general manager of China Resources Shenzhen
Bay Development Co., Ltd. (ZFEEZREIIEZRERABRAF]) from
December 2008 to May 2011. He was the deputy general
manager of Shenzhen region from May 2011 to August
2013. From August 2013 to July 2016, he served as the
director for commercial real estate, general manager of
Wuhan region as well as the assistant president of CR
Land. In July 2016, he was appointed as the vice president
of CR Land, managing the Group’s business, in particular
our commercial operational services business. Since
November 2018 and March 2020, he has been respectively
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appointed as the senior vice president of CR Land and the
chairman of its property management business, managing
the overall operation and business of the Group. For the
purpose of the Reorganisation, Mr. Yu was appointed as
the Group’s president in August 2020 to continue leading
the management of the Group and ceased his appointment
at CR Land. He received the Commercial Real Estate
Leader Award (P EES A1) granted by the China
Commercial Real Estate Industry Annual Award Panel (A&
FIEMEITEFERIBNEF) for the year 2018 and 2020.

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’s degree in hotel management
from Beijing International Studies University in the PRC in
1992 and an MBA degree from Wright State University in
Ohio, the United States in 2006.

Mr. GUO Ruifeng, aged 45, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the Chief Strategy and Operating
Officer in January 2024. He has extensive experience in
property development and management, operation and
management of commercial property projects, human
resources management and corporate operation and
management.

After his master's graduation in July 2003, he joined CR
Land where he successively served as the manager of
the corporate development department of CR Land, as
well as the deputy manager and manager of the contract
management department of China Resources Land (Hefei)
Co., Ltd. (EHEW (§E) BRAR]) from February 2005
to November 2008, and the manager, deputy director and
director of the sales management department of CR Land
from November 2008 to September 2012. Mr. Guo served
as the general manager of sales management in Wuhan
region of CR Land from September 2012 to November
2016 and from 2015 to November 2016, he was also the
general manager of the Guanggu Changdong (& &
&)) project in Wuhan region of CR Land. Since November
2016, Mr. Guo specialised in the commercial operational
services business of the Group and served as the general
manager of Hangzhou MIXC under the commercial real
estate business division of the Company, and subsequently
also served as the deputy general manager of China
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Resources Sun Hung Kai Properties (Hangzhou) Limited
(EHEFBEEME (M) BRAF]) of East China Region
from November 2016 to February 2019, during which he
was also the deputy general manager of the commercial
real estate business division in East China Region of the
Company from August 2018 to February 2019. He was
appointed as the general manager of Shenzhen MIXC
under the commercial property business unit in February
2019. For the purpose of the Reorganisation, Mr. Guo was
appointed as the assistant president and chief human
resources officer of the Group in August 2020 to continue
managing the Group’s business. Mr. Guo was appointed
as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company in August
2022 and has been serving as the Vice President of the
Company since December 2023.

Mr. Guo obtained his bachelor's degree in Civil
Engineering and his master's degree in Management
Science & Engineering from Tsinghua University of China
in July 2000 and July 2003, respectively.

Mr. WANG Haimin, aged 53, was appointed as an
executive Director and the Vice President of the Company
in August 2020. He has extensive experience in real estate
and corporate management.

Mr. Wang worked in China Northern Airlines (Ff B@dt 7 fiiZe
~A]) from July 1993 to May 2003, where he successively
served as the budgeting officer of the construction
department of the airline’s Dalian branch, general manager
of Dalian Aviation Hotel (K#EMZE£E), director and
deputy general manager of Shenyang Northern Airlines
Yangzi Industrial Co., Ltd. (GBSt TMEL TEEER A A)).
He joined the preparation group of China Southern Airlines
Tourist Hotel (F B A MZ=EERIDEE) in May 2003 and
served as the deputy general manager of China Southern
Airlines Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (FIfnseEiRpE
/A7) from August 2003 to April 2010. In addition, Mr.
Wang also worked in Northern Airlines Yangzi Industrial
Co., Ltd. (dtFMZ=BFEFEERAA]) from February 2007
to January 2012, during which he served as the vice
chairman, director and deputy general manager. From
January to October 2012, he served as the manager of the
corporate management department of Northern branch of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited (B 5 Mm%
&y EBR/AR]). In addition, Mr. Wang also served as the
deputy general manager of Yuexiu Property Shenyang Co.,
Ltd. (BSHEHEARR A R]) from October 2012 to October
2013.
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Mr. Wang joined CR Land in October 2013 till now, which
he successively served as the deputy general manager of
China Resources Land (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. (ZEEE s (F
%) BBR A7) of the Shenyang region from October 2013
to May 2015, and the general manager of the marketing
management department of the Shenyang region from May
2015 to December 2016. From December 2016 onwards,
Mr. Wang has been responsible for overseeing the
Group’s business and is in charge of primarily the property
management business of the Group. He has assumed
various roles including the general manager of the Dalian
company of Northeast China Region from December 2016
to August 2019 as well as the assistant general manager of
Northeast China Region from August 2017 to August 2019.
He was the general manager of the operation management
department of CR Land from August 2019 to August 2020.
For the purpose of the Reorganisation, Mr. Wang was
appointed as the Group’s Vice President in August 2020 to
continue managing the Group’s business and ceased his
appointment at CR Land.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics
(investment and economic management) and a doctoral
degree in national economics from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics in the PRC in 1993 and 2010,
respectively.

Mr. WANG Lei, aged 43, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the Vice President of the Company
in January 2024. He has extensive experiences in property
development and management, commercial property
operation and management, and corporate operation and
management.

Mr. Wang joined China Resources Group after obtaining
his bachelor’s degree in July 2002. He has served as
mechanical and electrical engineer, cost engineer of
the contract department and executive manager of the
project department of Shenzhen Mixc City Project of
China Resources Construction Co., Ltd. (EBHZEARA
Al). Mr. Wang was then transferred to CR Land (together
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with its subsidiaries, “CR Land Group”), in April 2007
and held different positions within the CR Land Group.
He successively served as the deputy manager of the
engineering management department of China Resources
Land (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. (ZEHEH CEE) AR AF]), the
engineering manager and the deputy project manager
of the China Resources Center project department; he
was the general manager of the MIXC project of China
Resources Land (Shandong) Co., Ltd. (3EHEM (1LE)H
[RA\]) from May 2011 to December 2012, the assistant
general manager and the deputy general manager of
China Resources Land (Weihai) Co., Ltd. (FEFE&EH (&
7)) BRRAA]) from December 2012 to October 2014, the
deputy general manager of engineering management
department of CR Land headquarters from October 2014
to August 2016. He was the deputy general manager of
China Resources Land Commercial Management Service
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (EHEMWEETERSE ORI AR
AA]) under the commercial property services division
of CR Land from August 2016 to January 2018; and the
assistant general manager and deputy general manager
of the commercial property services division of CR Land
from January 2018 to October 2020, fully responsible
for the commercial property services division. Mr. Wang
has been appointed as the general manager of the asset
management department of CR Land headquarters in
October 2020.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor of engineering degree
in Water Supply and Drainage Engineering from Tongji
University of China in July 2002.
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Mr. NIE Zhizhang, aged 40, has been appointed as an
executive Director, the secretary to the Board, the Vice
President and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
in August 2023. He has extensive experience in finance,
operation, marketing and investment.

Mr. Nie joined CR Land, after obtaining his master’s
degree from the Northeastern University of China in July
2008. From July 2008 to October 2013, he successively
served as a supervisor, an assistant manager and a deputy
manager of finance department of Shenyang company
of CR Land. From October 2013 to September 2017, he
successively served as the deputy manager, assistant
general manager and deputy general manager of finance
management department of Shenyang region of CR Land.
He served as the general manager of finance department
of Northeast region of CR Land from September 2017 to
June 2019, responsible for legal and audit management,
the general manager of both finance department and
marketing department of Northeast region of CR Land
from June 2019 to January 2020, the assistant general
manager and the general manager of finance department,
marketing department and investment management
department of Northeast region of CR Land from January
2020 to August 2020, the assistant general manager and
the general manager of marketing department of Northeast
region of CR Land from August 2020 to January 2022,
and the assistant general manager of Northeast region of
CR Land from January 2022 to April 2022, responsible for
finance, operation and investment management. Mr. Nie
has been transferred to South China region of CR Land in
April 2022 and has successively served as the assistant
general manager and deputy general manager of South
China region of CR Land since April 2022, responsible for
investment, marketing and operation management.

Mr. Nie holds a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree
in accounting both from the Northeastern University of
China.
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Mr. LI Xin, aged 52, has been our Director since July 2020
and was appointed as a non-executive Director in August
2020. He has experience in corporate management and
real estate development management. He is the chairman
of nomination committee and sustainability committee and
a member of remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Li joined CRH in August 1994, where he successively
served at the personnel department of the then China
Resources National Corporation (currently known as China
Resources Company Limited), as director of Chongqging
Kuixing Industrial Co., Ltd. (EEZEEETERMHERLQF),
as managing director of Chongging Runlong Industrial
Co., Ltd. (EEHEEEEABRAFA]), and as manager and
senior manager of Longdation Enterprises Limited ([
PEABMRAF]). He joined CR Land in July 2001, where he
successively served from July 2001 to June 2013 as the
general manager of the corporate development department
of CR Land, general manager of China Resources (Dalian)
Co., Ltd. (28 (Ki#) BRAA)), vice president of CR Land,
and general manager of the Shenyang region and other
positions. He was appointed as the senior vice president
of CR Land in June 2013 and concurrently served as the
general manager of Shenyang region, responsible for
business development of Northeast China region. He was
appointed as the co-president of CR Land and chairman
of East China Region in July 2016, responsible for the
business development of East China region (known as
Shanghai region prior to November 2016) of CR Land.
Since April 2017, Mr. Li has been appointed as an
executive director of CR Land, and subsequently, Mr. Li
was appointed as the president of CR Land in December
2018 and the chairman of the board of directors of CR
Land in May 2022. He is currently the chairman of the
nomination committee, the executive committee and the
corporate social responsibility committee and a member of
the corporate governance committee of CR Land.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of economics degree in
investment economics management from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC and a
master of engineering degree in project management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994 and 2005,
respectively.
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Mr. GUO Shiqing, aged 54, has been our Director since
December 2018 and was appointed as a non-executive
Director in August 2020. He is a member of audit
committee of the Company.

Mr. Guo served as the accountant of Guangdong Electric
Power First Engineering Bureau (EREENTIXBE—
T#2/B) from July 1994 to October 2001. Subsequently,
he joined CR Land in October 2001 and served as the
manager of the finance management department of
Shenzhen CR Property Management Co. Ltd. (FJIIE
HMEESIEAER AT from October 2001 to September
2006. He subsequently served as finance director of
China Resources (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (FEH (X&) ARA
Al) from September 2006 to January 2011, assistant
general manager of China Resources (Dalian) Co., Ltd.
(#8 (KE) AR AF) from January 2011 to August
2012, and general manager of the finance department
of Shenyang region (known as Liaoning region prior to
October 2013) from August 2012 to November 2014. At
the same time, he also served as the assistant general
manager and deputy general manager of China Resources
(Shenyang) Property Co., Ltd. (228 (F%) WEBR A R).
Mr. Guo was the assistant general manager and finance
director of Shenyang region between November 2014 to
November 2016, assistant general manager and finance
director of Northeast China Region from November 2016
to August 2017 and deputy general manager of Northeast
China Region from August 2017 to October 2018, mainly
responsible for financial management of CR Land in the
Northeast China Region. He has been the general manager
of the finance department of CR Land since October 2018.
He was appointed as the chief financial officer of CR
Land in June 2020. Since December 2020, Mr. Guo has
also been serving as an executive director of CR Land. In
December 2022, he was further appointed as the secretary
to the board of directors of CR Land. He is currently a
member of the executive committee of CR Land.

Mr. Guo completed an undergraduate program in
accounting from Xiamen University in the PRC in 1994.
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Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer GBS, SBS, J.P., aged 72,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 25 November 2020. He is the chairman of remuneration
committee and a member of nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Lau has also been serving as an independent non-
executive director of SEM Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 9929) since
January 2020 and SOCAM Development Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 983)
since June 2023, respectively. Previously, he served
as an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1888) from August 2015 to January
2022 and MTR Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0066) from August 2015
to May 2019.

Mr. Lau has more than 30 years of experience in the real
estate industry. Mr. Lau is one of the founders of Hong
Kong Coalition of Professional Services and has been
its chairman since June 2012. He is also a member of
the Board of Governors of Our Hong Kong Foundation.
Previously, he was a member of the Basic Law Promotion
Steering Committee and served as a member of the
Long Term Housing Strategy Steering Committee from
September 2012 to December 2013 and the chairman of
the Surveyors Registration Board from 1996 to 1997. Mr.
Lau is also currently a member of the National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
since March 2018 and served as a member of the HKSAR
Legislative Council between October 2000 to September
2004.

Mr. Lau obtained a higher diploma in quantity surveying
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in 1974.
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Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching, aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 25 November
2020. He is a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and sustainability committee of the Company.

Mr. Cheung has over 30 years of experience in the real
estate industry and is the founder and chairman of ACR
Asset Management founded in March 2019. Prior to the
establishment of ACR Asset Management, Mr. Cheung
joined C.Y. Leung & Co., in March 1993 as a director of the
PRC business. In 1997, he was appointed as the General
Manager of the Shanghai office of C.Y. Leung & Co., which
became part of DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited in 2000.
In 2007, he was appointed as DTZ mainland China CEO
and in 2010, he was appointed as DTZ Greater China
CEO. After DTZ merged with Cushman & Wakefield (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock
code: CWK) in 2015, he was Greater China CEO and
chairman of Asia Pacific Board of Cushman & Wakefield
until April 2019. Mr. Cheung is the honorary chairman of
the Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai, the
chairman of Shanghai — Hong Kong Association and a
Shanghai representative in the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor of science degree in
urban and environmental planning from Anglia Ruskin
University of the United Kingdom in 1985. He is also
a fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors since 2018.
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Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan, age 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 25 November 2020.
He is the chairman of audit committee and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Chan is currently the chief operations officer of Miramar
Hotel and Investment Company, Limited, (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00071). He served as
an independent non-executive director of Upbest Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 00335) from September 2007 to August 2022 and
UBA Investments Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 00768) from September 2007 to
April 2022. He was the managing director of Chinalink
Express Holdings Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of
Kwoon Chung Bus Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 306)) from 2003 to 2021,
and the vice president in the corporate support division of
Henderson China Group Limited (IBEEFREEBEARAR)
from 2002 to 2003.

Mr. Chan has been appointed as a member of the Chief
Executive’'s Policy Unit Expert Group on 30 May 2023.
Mr. Chan was appointed as a member of the Board of
Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) of the HKSAR from
2009 to 2011. He became an elected member of the
Election Committee of the HKSAR since 2021. Mr. Chan is
a standing member and convenor of Hong Kong members
of the Yunfu Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since 2011, a standing
member of the Guangdong’s Association for Promotion of
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Cooperation since 2009,
a member of the China Overseas Friendship Association
since 2019 and a member of Friends of Hong Kong
Association 2019 and a co-founder of Hong Kong Coalition
since 2020.
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Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in 1989 with a professional diploma in Business Studies
(Banking) and graduated from Monash University in
Australia with master degrees in Practising Accounting
and Business Law in 2000 and 2006, respectively. He is a
member and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2002 and 2014 respectively, a
member and fellow of CPA Australia since 2001 and 2014
respectively, the certified membership of the Institute of
Certified Management Accountants (Australia) since 2003,
a fellow of The Chartered Governance Institute (CGl) since
2001 (and has subsequently received the designations
of “Chartered Secretary” and “Chartered Governance
Professional” in 2018), a fellow of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) since
2001, a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
2002, an ordinary member and fellow of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since 2015 and 2021, a
member of Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport in
Hong Kong since 2000. Mr. Chan is also a member of the
Chartered Banker Institute, the United Kingdom since 2014
with a designation of “Chartered Banker” and an associate
and “Certified Banker” of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers since 2003 and 2018 respectively.

Ms. LO Wing Sze BBS, JP, aged 52, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1
July 2023. She is a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and sustainability committee of the Company.
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She is the financial director of Million Tour Limited and
the founder and financial director of M1 Hotel Group. Ms.
Lo was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in 2017 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2020 by the HKSAR
Government. She is a member of All-China Women’'s
Federation Hong Kong SAR delegate and the Election
Committee 2021 (The Fourth Sector) of the HKSAR and
was a member of the Election Committee for the Fifth
Government of the HKSAR (Tourism Subsector). Ms. Lo
is also a member of the Chief Executive’s Policy Unit
Social Development Expert Group, a member of the Social
Workers Registration Board, a member of the Advisory
Committee on Post-office Employment for Former Chief
Executives and Politically Appointed Officials, a member of
the Advisory Committee on Admission of Quality Migrants
and Professionals and the convener of its Panel 3, a
member of the Immigration Department Users’ Committee,
a member of the Correctional Services Children’s
Education Trust Investment Advisory Board and a member
of the District Fire Safety Committee (Wan Chai District).
She is also an Honorary Court Member of the Lingnan
University in Hong Kong. Ms. Lo is the Chairlady of Tai
Hang Fire Dragon Heritage Centre (Revitalising Historic
Buildings Through Partnership Scheme Batch V).

Ms. Lo is an independent non-executive director of New
World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17),
Virtual Mind Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1520),
Goldlion Holdings Limited (stock code: 533) and Lee &
Man Paper Manufacturing Limited (stock code: 2314),
all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange. She
served as an independent non-executive director of Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8018) from 21 August
2020 to 7 July 2023.

She holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the
University of Sydney and a Master of Commerce in
Finance Degree from the University of New South Wales in
Australia. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of CPA
Australia.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Mr. YU Linkang, Mr. GUO
Ruifeng, Mr. WANG Haimin, Mr. WANG Lei and Mr. NIE
Zhizhang, please refer to “Executive Directors”
section. Biographical details of other members of the
senior management are as follows:

in this

Mr. LOU Kewei, aged 40, was appointed as the chief
human resources officer of the Company in April 2022. He
has experience in human resources administration and
party-mass work.

Mr. Lou has joined CR Land since May 2009 after
obtaining his master’s degree, where he successively
served as the recruitment specialist and senior human
resources executive of Dalian company and Changchun
company of CR Land. From May 2013 to January 2017,
he successively served as the assistant manager, deputy
manager and manager of human resources department
of Northeast China Region of CR Land. From January
2017 to January 2018, he successively served as the
director of party affairs of the party-mass work department
and the recruitment director of the human resources
administration department of CR Land. From January 2018
to March 2021, he successively served as the deputy
general manager and general manager of the human
resources administration department of East China Region
of CR Land, responsible for the human resources and
administration of East China Region of CR Land. From
January 2018 to February 2020, he also served as the
deputy general manager and general manager of the
party-mass work department of East China Region of CR
Land, responsible for the party-mass work of East China
Region, and served as the assistant general manager
of East China Region of CR Land from August 2020 to
March 2021, responsible for the human resources and
administration and party-mass work in East China Region.
Mr. Lou was transferred to CR Land in March 2021 as
the assistant general manager of the human resources
department, responsible for the human resources
management of CR Land.
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Mr. Lou obtained a bachelor’s degree in management
majoring in information management and information
system management and a master’s degree in
management majoring in human resources management
from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in 2006
and 2008, respectively.

Mr. Xu Fan, aged 43, was appointed as a Vice President of
the Company in March 2024. He has extensive experience
in real estate development management and company
operation management.

Mr. Xu has joined CR Land since June 2007 after
graduating with a master's degree, and served as a
landscape designer of the development department
and a landscape engineer of the design and technology
management department in Shenzhen company of CR
Land successively. From July 2010 to March 2012, he
served as a senior landscape engineer and an assistant
manager of the design and technology management
department in Shenzhen Region successively. From March
2012 to February 2015, he served as the assistant general
manager and the manager of the project integration
department of Shenzhen company’s Hubei project
company (in preparation) in Shenzhen Region. From
February 2015 to April 2018, he served as the assistant
general manager of the design management department in
Shenzhen Region (presiding over the work), the assistant
general manager of the design management department
in South China Region (presiding over the work), and
the deputy general manager of the design management
department in South China Region (presiding over the
work) successively. From April 2018 to November 2021,
he served as the general manager of Shantou company
in Southern China Region and the general manager
of Guangzhou company in Southern China Region
In November 2021, Mr. Xu was appointed
as an assistant general manager, a member of the party
committee and the general manager of Guangzhou
Company in South China Region of CR Land.

successively.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Arts degree in design art from
Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology in June
2007.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or senior
management members (i) has any relationship with any
Directors, senior management or substantial shareholders
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, (ii) hold
any other positions with the Company or other members
of the Group; or (iii) held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report for the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023.

CORPORATE CULTURE

Through the values of integrity, results orientation, people
orientation, and mutually beneficial cooperation and
positioning itself as an urban quality life service platform,
the Group is committed to becoming an urban quality life
service provider that is trusted and favored by customers.
The Company proactively cultivates a sincere, united, open
and progressive working culture within the enterprise, and
has integrated its corporate culture into employee training,
talent development and other fields.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board are committed to establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The Company recognises the importance of maintaining
high standards of corporate governance to the long-term
stable development of the Group.

The Company has applied the principles and adopted the
code provisions stated in the CG Code.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended
31 December 2023, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code,
except for Code Provision F.2.2. Code Provision F.2.2
of the CG Code provides that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. LI Xin (the
Chairman of the Board) was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2023 due
to his other business commitments. Mr. YU Linkang, an
executive Director, was appointed to chair the meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its own securities dealing code
to regulate all dealings of securities of the Company by
Directors.
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Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to all
Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors.

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date are:

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)
Mr. GUO Shiging

Mr. YU Linkang (President)

Mr. GUO Ruifeng (Vice President and Chief Strategy and
Operating Officer, appointed with effect from 29 January 2024)
Mr. WANG Haimin (Vice President)

Ms. WEI Xiaohua (Vice President, retired with effect from
15 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (Vice President, appointed with effect from
29 January 2024)

Ms. YANG Hongxia (Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, resigned with effect from 17 August 2023)

Mr. NIE Zhizhang (Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, appointed with effect from 17 August 2023)

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 40 to 55 of this annual
report.

Ms. LO Wing Sze, Mr. NIE Zhizhang, Mr. GUO Ruifeng
and Mr. WANG Lei had obtained the legal advice referred
to in Rule 3.09D in July 2023, September 2023, January
2024 and January 2024 respectively, and each of them
has confirmed he/she understood his/her obligations as a
Director.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) between the Chairman
and the President or among the Board and senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior management of
the Company for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an
annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS, COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation
of the majority of the Directors, either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

The Board held eight meetings during the financial year
ended 31 December 2023. The Directors are expected
to convene at least four regular Board meetings in each
financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in
accordance with code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code.
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set out below:

Name of Director

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LI Xin
Mr. GUO Shiging

Executive Directors:

Mr. YU Linkang

Mr. GUO Ruifeng (appointed with effect
from 29 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Haimin

Ms. WEI Xiaohua (retired with effect from
15 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (appointed with effect from
29 January 2024)

Ms. YANG Hongxia (resigned with effect
from 17 August 2023)

Mr. NIE Zhizhang (appointed with effect
from 17 August 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from
1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect
from 1 July 2023)

A summary of the attendance record of the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2023 at Board meetings is

BE-Z-_=%+=-HA=+—H

LHBREFEHEERRE,
FERHENERRH

Number of meeting(s) attended/

number of meeting(s)

eligible to attend during the
financial year ended 31 December 2023

6/8
8/8

8/8
0/Q Note Hiat

8/8
7/8

0/0 Note izt

5/5

3/3

8/8
8/8
8/8
3/4

4/4
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=+-RAREE -

—E-=F+Z-A Note: Both of Mr. GUO Ruifeng and Mr. WANG Lei were

appointed with effect after 31 December 2023.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Board has complied with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise,
and the number of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. The Board
has also received from each independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term
of three years.

Seven Directors (Mr. LI Xin, Mr. YU Linkang, Mr. GUO
Ruifeng, Mr. WANG Lei, Mr. NIE Zhizhang, Mr. LAU Ping
Cheung Kaizer and Ms. LO Wing Sze) are subject to
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting of
the Company pursuant to Article 16.2 or Article 16.19 of
the Articles of Association. Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the
Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Pursuant to
Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation and
be eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting
of the Company, provided that every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board makes decisions objectively to safeguard in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-
day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
senior management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group.

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN
THE CHAIRMAN AND THE PRESIDENT

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code and
the terms of reference of the Board adopted by the
Company on 29 June 2023, the roles of Chairman and
President of the Group are separate with clear division of
responsibilities. The Chairman, Mr. LI Xin, is responsible
for monitoring and controlling the long-term strategies,
goals and directions of the Company, ensuring the Board
operates effectively and performs its responsible duties,
and ensuring the Directors receive sufficient, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner, etc. The
Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without presence of
other Directors. Mr. LI Xin has held such private meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2023. The President,
Mr. YU Linkang, is responsible for leading the management
to implement the strategies of the Company and reporting
to the Board, providing the Board with the required
information to enable the Board to monitor the performance
of the management, formulating plans for the development
and succession of management, etc.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely,
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the sustainability committee (the “Sustainability
Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Each of these committees has
established with defined written terms of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include, but not limited to (1) making recommendations on
the appointment and removal of the external auditor and
approving their remuneration, (2) reviewing the financial
statements of the Company, (3) overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures,
and (4) performing other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board. For further details of the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2020.

As of the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors and
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. CHAN Chung Yee
Alan, Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching, Ms. LO Wing Sze and Mr.
GUO Shiging. Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan is the chairman
of the Audit Committee. On 29 June 2023, the Board
announced that, with effect from 1 July 2023, Ms. QIN
Hong had resigned as a member of the Audit Committee
due to her personal work arrangements and Ms. LO Wing
Sze, an independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Audit Committee held two meetings, during which they
reviewed and discussed, among other things, the following
matters: (i) the Company’s annual report and audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022, and the interim report and unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2023 before submitting to the Board; (ii) the Company’s
continuing connected transactions; (iii) the independent
auditor’'s report to the Board prepared by the external
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the review report to the Board prepared by the
independent auditor for the six months ended 30 June
2023; (iv) the independence of the external auditors of
the Company and effectiveness of the audit procedures,
the election and recommendation of the external auditor
of the Company, and the remuneration of the external
auditor of the Company; (v) the financial control, internal
control and risk management system of the Company; and
(vi) valuation report of investment properties and other
information.

HE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HIFE  FZX The attendance record of the Audit Committee members to
BEXNENHEZESERMEHEHINN T : committee meetings during the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:
BHEBERLEE
Attended/
= Directors Eligible to attend
BRoRSRSC A (F/E) Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan (Chairman) 2/2
B TE Mr. GUO Shiging 1/2
REE S Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching o/2
FN Lt (RZE-_=F+F—BEHF) Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023) 1/1
BEAFLET(RNZZEZ=FtA—HEZT) Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023) 1/1
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During the period from 1 January 2023 up to the Latest
Practicable Date, the Board had not deviated from any
recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditor.

There are proper arrangements in-place for employees, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control and other matters.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include, but not limited to
(i) making recommendations to the Board in relation
to remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management of the Company, and the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing such remuneration policy; (ii) reviewing and
approving the management’'s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives; (iii) determining remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management according to
the authorisation of the Board; (iv) considering salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group; (v) making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; and
(vi) approving compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise
fair and reasonable and not excessive; (vii) reviewing
and approving compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; (viii) ensuring
that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding that Director's own remuneration; (ix) reviewing
and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and (x) performing
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by
the Board. For further details of the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 December 2022.
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The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Board with reference
to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the financial performance
of the Group, individual performance, position, time
commitment and comparable market statistics. In
particular, executive Directors’ remuneration include
salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, discretionary
bonuses and retirement scheme contributions, whilst
independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration include
directors’ fees.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. LI Xin, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer,
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching and Mr. CHAN Chung Yee
Alan. Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Remuneration Committee held three meetings during
which they reviewed and discussed, inter alia, the
following matters: (i) directors’ fee of the Directors; (ii) the
remuneration and contract policy, performance and the
remuneration packages and performance-based bonus of
the executive Directors and the senior management; and
(iii) remuneration matters relating to the appointment of
new executive and independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members to committee meeting is set out below:

BHE BEBHE

Attended/Eligible

=21 Directors to attend
BIMELRE (FE) Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer (Chairman) 3/3
REIIESTAE Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 3/3
BRoR SRS A Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 3/3
TR E Mr. LI Xin 3/3

BE_Z_=Ft+_RA=+—HIEFEENER
AIEEEHM 2 FRBHENGR A M RARIMES -

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The remuneration of the members of senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out
below:

AE
FrfEiE (B T) Remuneration bands (HKS$) Number of Persons
1,000,001 = 1,500,000 1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1
1,500,001 & 2,000,000 1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1
2,500,001 £ 3,000,000 2,500,001 to 3,000,000 1
4,000,001 2 4,500,000 4,000,001 to 4,500,000 1
4,500,001 2 5,000,000 4,500,001 to 5,000,000 1
5,000,001 £ 5,500,000 5,000,001 to 5,500,000 2
7,000,001 £ 7,500,000 7,000,001 to 7,500,000 1
#Et Total 8
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include, but not limited to (i) review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least once a year and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the corporate strategy of the Company; (ii)
identify individuals qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(iii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on appointment or re-appointment of our Directors
and succession plan for Directors. For further details
of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
December 2020.

As of the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises one non-executive Director, namely Mr. LI Xin,
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer and Ms. LO Wing Sze. Mr.
LI Xin is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. On
29 June 2023, the Board announced that, with effect from
1 July 2023, Ms. QIN Hong had resigned as a member
of the Nomination Committee due to her personal work
arrangements and Ms. LO Wing Sze, an independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as a member of
the Nomination Committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Nomination Committee held two meetings during which
the committee reviewed and discussed, inter alia, the
following matters: (i) the structure, size and composition of
the Board; (ii) board diversity and board diversity policy,
including reviewing measurable objectives and exploring
improvement measures; and (iii) recommended the
appointment of Mr. NIE Zhizhang and Ms. LO Wing Sze to
fulfil the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Ms.
YANG Hongxia and Ms. QIN Hong respectively.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members to committee meetings is set out below:

BHEBERLEE

Attended/Eligible

=2 Directors to attend
FMEE (£E) Mr. LI Xin (Chairman) 1/2
BIME A Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 2/2
R L+ (RZZE_=F+F—HEMT) Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023) 1/1
BkFLET(R-_Z-_=ZF+HA—BEZT) Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023) 1/1

BIUFNTES (—WMEMER) BRIESS
ERLETRNEFEANAAFSREEAESH
E—FER R - WEIA RAARRRZ QB
ESRiHEY  RNERE - ARSI EXERS
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The independent non-executive Directors (as the same
with other Directors) are entitled to seek further information
and documentation from the senior management members
on the matters to be discussed at Board meetings. They
can also seek assistance from the Company’'s company
secretary and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.
They shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any
board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
in which he/she or any of his/her close associates has a
material interest. Such mechanisms are to ensure that the
Board has a strong independent element, and independent
views and input are available to the Board. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, all independent non-executive
Directors attended Board meetings regularly and actively
participated in the decision-making process of the Board,
and provided independent views and opinions to the
Board when it performed its duties. In view of the above,
and after review, the Board believes that its mechanisms
for obtaining independent views and input have been fully
implemented and continue to be effective.
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SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

The Company established the Sustainability Committee on
28 March 2023. The primary duties of the Sustainability
Committee include, but are not limited to (i) assessing
the matters in relation to ESG of the Company etc.; (ii)
reviewing the objectives and plans of the Company on
ESG matters and monitoring the policies and measures
adopted by the Company to achieve such objectives
and plans; (iii) assessing the adequacy of resources
invested by the Company on ESG matters, and the
compliance of the Group on these matters and the
effectiveness of procedures in place; (iv) assessing the
risks and opportunities faced by the Company on ESG
matters; (v) reviewing the Company’s performance on
ESG matters from the perspective of sustainability; (vi)
assessing the difference between the Company and
comparable companies domestically and overseas in
terms of policies and performance on ESG matters; (vii)
assessing the impact of the Company’s business activities
on employees third parties, the communities in which the
Company operates and the Company’s reputation; (viii)
reviewing the annual sustainability report to ensure the
accuracy and completeness of the sustainability report
and to continuously improve the quality of disclosure;
(ix) making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the aforementioned matters; and (x) performing such
other duties and functions as may be assigned by the
Board from time to time. For further details of the terms of
reference of the Sustainability Committee, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2023.

As of the date of this report, the Sustainability Committee
comprises one executive Director, Mr. YU Linkang, one
non-executive Director, Mr. LI Xin, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching
and Ms. LO Wing Sze. Mr. LI Xin is the chairman of the
Sustainability Committee. On 29 June 2023, the Board
announced that, with effect from 1 July 2023, Ms. QIN
Hong had resigned as a member of the Sustainability
Committee due to her personal work arrangements and
Ms. LO Wing Sze, an independent non-executive Director,
has been appointed as a member of the Sustainability
Committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Sustainability Committee held one meeting during which
they reviewed and discussed, inter alia, the Company’s
sustainability report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The attendance record of the Sustainability Committee
members to committee meetings is set out below:

BHE BEBEE

Attended/Eligible

=21 Directors to attend
EMEE(EE) Mr. LI Xin (Chairman) 0/1
AR SE A Mr. Mr. YU Linkang 1/1
REIIESE A Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 1/1
ROt (R-_ZE-_=F+F—BHEME) Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023) 1/1
Bk LE (RZE-_=F+A—HEZ) Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023) 0/0
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company follows a fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors for the Board to achieve
a balance of skills and experience and diversity to achieve
the Company’s strategic focus and specific business
needs. Recognising the vitalness of diversity of the Board,
the Company has adopted a board diversity policy, details
of which are set out in the below section headed “Board
Diversity Policy”.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least once a year and makes
recommendation to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy of the Company. The appointment of a new
Director is a collective decision of the Board, taking into
consideration the procedures for Shareholders to propose
a person for election as a Director of the Company and the
board diversity policy adopted by the Company. The Board
believes that changes to the Board composition shall be
managed without undue disruption, and shall continue to
provide a balanced composition of executive Directors
and non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent
element in the Board, which can assist the Board in
effectively exercising independent judgement.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company formalised and adopted a dividend policy
with effect from 29 March 2021, aiming to provide
Shareholders with an annual dividend payout of not
less than 35% of the annual core net profit available for
distribution generated in any financial year, subject to the
criteria set out below. Such declaration and payment of
dividends shall remain to be determined at the absolute
discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable
requirements (including without limitation restrictions on
dividend declaration and payment) under the Companies
Act and the Articles of Association.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also
suitably take into account various factors, including: (1)
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance; (2)
Shareholders’ interests; (3) general business strategies;
(4) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the other members of the Group;
(5) the Group’s indebtedness level, key financial ratios
(such as the Group's debt to equity ratio and return
on equity) and any financial covenants to which the
Group is subject; (6) the Group’'s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans; (7)
liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend; (8) taxation considerations, and
legal and regulatory restrictions; (9) possible effects on
the Group’s creditworthiness; (10) general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact
on the business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and (11) other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.
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The Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders
such interim dividends subject to the Companies Act and
the Articles of Association. Except in the case of interim
dividend and special dividend, any dividends declared by
the Company must be approved by an ordinary resolution
of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and must
not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
Dividends may be distributed in the form of cash or shares
subject to and in accordance with the Companies Act and
the Articles of Association. The Company will regularly
review the dividend policy and reserve the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify
the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare
a dividend at any time or from time to time.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“‘Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board. The Group recognises the benefits
of having a diversified Board and sees increasing diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.
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The Group has developed measurable objectives to
achieve diversity of our Board through considering a
number of factors, including but not limited to professional
experience, talents, skills, knowledge, cultural and
education background, gender, age, ethnicity and
length of service. Our Directors have a balanced mix
of experiences, including overall management, brand
improvement, business development and finance
experiences. Our Directors obtained degrees in various
majors including accounting, engineering and economics.
As of 31 December 2023, the male-to-female ratios of the
Company’s Board, senior management and all employees
are set out as follows:

EExg EREEE
Board of Senior FEEER
Directors management All employees
B Male 90.91% 100% 66.85%
74 Female 9.09% 0% 33.15%
MEBZTEBEmME REE_E-_=F1+= For the purpose of implementing the Diversity Policy, the
A=+—RIBEHEEDEH N atE01E following measurable objectives were achieved for the

(WVARREES EHRATRRGARESSA

FEIRIE ¢ (B IFATEFTABTEIN=
BRTEIREFEABN =02 (IHED
—BBUFNTEFVFABEENEXERK
SRFSABAMBEERANE  R(VEL—RES
ARASREXBEHEITREAREXRAEELR -

financial year ended 31 December 2023: (i) the Company
should comply with the requirements on Board composition
in the Listing Rules from time to time; (ii) the number of
independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board; (iii) at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise; and (iv) at least
one Director should be a professional or have intensive
experience of the industry on which the business of the
Group is in.
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The Board recognises the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at both the Board and senior management
level. Keeping in mind the objectives of the Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to the measurable
objectives set, the Board is of the view that it has followed
the Diversity Policy at the Board level, except for the
measurable gender diversity objective. As at the Latest
Practicable Date, the Company has only one female
Director and has not achieved the measurable gender
diversity objective of “having no less than two female
Directors”. Going forward, the Company will search for
female Director candidates through multiple channels,
and ensure the targeted number of female directors will
be attained. The Board will continue to take initiatives to
promote gender diversity among the Board and implement
measurable objectives in this regard. The Nomination
Committee will also review the Diversity Policy and its
implementation at least on an annual basis to ensure its
implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.

Going forward, the Company will continue to promote
corporate diversity and inclusion, including the gender
diversity among the Group's senior management, by (i)
smoothening career development paths, encouraging more
female employees to develop their careers and creating
a level playing field for all employees to ensure fair and
equal treatment by standardising assessment criteria in
recruitment, developing talent appraisal standards and
multi-dimensional tailor-made training plans, etc. to focus
on job responsibilities and employees’ capabilities; (ii)
regularly carrying out “Female Power” (#1/1£) activities,
where female employees in different areas are invited
to share their success stories and insights to provide a
platform for female employees to exchange ideas; (iii)
promoting a gender-diverse and inclusive culture in the
workplace by publishing and updating relevant policies,
codes and employee handbook to bring such message
to employees and actively promoting diverse means of
employee communication and listening to the employees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviews the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of the responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

The Company recognises the importance of Directors
participating in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The company secretary of the
Company may from time to time and as the circumstances
require provide updated written training materials relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director of a company
listed on the Stock Exchange to the Directors. Internally-
facilitated briefings for the Directors have been arranged
and reading materials on relevant topics would be issued
to the Directors where appropriate. They are encouraged to
attend relevant training course at the Company’s expense.
Directors have provided a record of the training they
received during the year ended 31 December 2023 to the
Company.
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2023 in the following manner:

Directors

Executive Directors:

Mr. YU Linkang (President)

Mr. GUO Ruifeng (appointed with effect from
29 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Haimin

Ms. WEI Xiaohua (retired with effect from 15
January 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (appointed with effect from
29 January 2024)

Ms. YANG Hongxia (resigned with effect
from 17 August 2023)

Mr. NIE Zhizhang (appointed with effect from
17 August 2023)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)
Mr. GUO Shiging

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1
July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from
1 July 2023)

Note:

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
the Directors participated in the continuous professional
developments in relation to legal and regulatory update,
the duties and responsibility of the Directors and the
business of the Group during the year ended 31 December

FEEXERRZER
Type of continuous
professional development

MEAREADRREEY
ZEBHEEEARER
Reading regulatory
updates or information
relevant to the
Company or its
business

v
Nl
N/A Note
v

v

X il
N / A Note
v

= = = <=

HEEERRR
EEREE
Attending training
on regulatory
development and
Directors’ duties

v
T
N/A Note

v

v

Z(i@ﬁﬁ/m}
N/A Note
v

<

= == <=

Both of Mr. GUO Ruifeng and Mr. WANG Lei were

appointed with effect after 31 December 2023.
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Review for the interim financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2023
Total fees for audit services

The Company will arrange regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors
are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

With effect from 6 June 2023, Ernst & Young retired
as the auditor of the Company. With the approval of
Shareholders at the 2023 AGM (as defined below), the
Company appointed KPMG, Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong (“KPMG") as the external auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A statement by KPMG about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements
is included in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s
Report” of this annual report.

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit
services provided by KPMG for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in the table below. No non-
audit services were provided by KPMG for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Services rendered

Audit services:
Annual audit for the year ended 31 December 2023

AR#2 550,000
RMB2,550,000
AER#600,0007T
RMB600,000

AR #3,150,0007T
RMB3,150,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing its
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. The Group's internal
audit team, legal and compliance team, and senior
management conduct reviews of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee reviews the findings and
recommendations of the internal audit team, legal and
compliance team, and the senior management in their
meetings at least twice a year and reports to the Board on
the results of such review.

INTERNAL

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate business risk; to
help safeguard the Group’s assets against fraud and other
irregularities; and to give reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material financial misstatement or loss.
In addition, it should provide a basis for the maintenance
of proper and fair accounting records and assist in
the compliance with relevant rules and regulations.
The Company has established a whistleblowing policy
and system for employees and those who deal with
the Company (such as customers and suppliers) to
raise concerns confidentially and anonymously with the
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any
matters related to the Company. The Company has also
established policies and systems that promote and support
anti-corruption laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board,
through the Audit Committee, reviewed the overall
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, covering financial, operational
and compliance controls, ESG related risks and risk
management functions and results of risk assessment.
The Board believes that there are no material internal
control deficiencies that may affect the Shareholders and
an effective and adequate risk management and internal
control system is in place to safeguard the assets of the
Group. The Audit Committee and senior management will
together monitor the implementation of risk management
policies on an ongoing basis to ensure the policies and
implementation are effective and sufficient.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has in place a framework for the disclosure
of inside information by reference to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission. The framework sets out the
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information in an appropriate
and timely manner, such as steps to ascertain sufficient
details, conduct internal assessment of the matter and its
likely impact on the Company, seek professional advice
where required and verification of the facts. Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, any persons
who possess the knowledge of such information must
ensure strict confidentiality and must not deal in any of the
Company’s securities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

With effect from 20 January 2023, Mr. LO Chi Lik, Peter
resigned, and Mr. SO Yiu Fung (“Mr. SO”), a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
was appointed as the Company Secretary. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 December 2022. Although the Company
Secretary is not a full-time employee of the Company,
he reports to the Board and in his capacity as Company
Secretary advises the Board on governance matters. The
primary contact person of the Company with the Company
Secretary was Mr. NIE Zhizhang, an executive Director of
the Company. Mr. SO has confirmed that he has attended
at least 15 hours of professional development in 2023.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board strives to maintain a continuing open dialogue
with the Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings. The process of the
Company’s general meeting is monitored and reviewed on
a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made
to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

The Company uses annual general meeting as one
of the principal channels for communicating with the
Shareholders. The Company ensures that Shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board. At the annual
general meeting, each substantially separate issue would
be considered by a separate resolution, including the
election of individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of the respective Board committees and the
external auditor will endeavour to attend annual general
meetings to interact with and answer questions from
Shareholders.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
held one general meeting, which was the 2023 AGM.
The 2023 AGM was held on 6 June 2023, at Ball Room,
1st Floor, Hotel Kapok Shenzhen Bay, No. 3001, Binhai
Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China.
All the Directors, except Mr. LI Xin (being Chairman
of the Board, Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Chairman of Sustainability Committee) and Mr. GUO
Shiging, attended the 2023 AGM. The external auditor of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, Ernst
& Young, attended the 2023 AGM. The attendance records
of the Directors at the 2023 AGM are set out below:

BEHEBITAE
Meeting(s)
BE Directors attended/held
FHTES: Non-executive Directors:
TRk (£/F) Mr. LI Xin (Chairman) 0/1
Shit)E S & Mr. GUO Shiging 0/1
BITES Executive Directors:
WIFRER o (%) Mr. YU Linkang (President) 1/1
Mg (R=F=—mF—H=+1H Mr. GUO Ruifeng (appointed with effect from i@ A ()
BZT) 29 January 2024) N/A (Note)
FHREE Mr. WANG Haimin 1/1
BNELLT (R=F-WF—FA+EHA Ms. WEI Xiaohua (retired with effect from 11
RF) 15 January 2024)
Fart(R=F-ZmF—HA=+/1H Mr. WANG Lei (appointed with effect from i g ()
EZ(F) 29 January 2024) N/A (Note)
BHEXT (R=ZF=Z=FA++H Ms. YANG Hongxia (resigned with effect from 11
FHE) 17 August 2023)
EEEEAE (RZFE=_=ZFNA++H Mr. NIE Zhizhang (appointed with effect from 3@ FR ()
HEZT) 17 August 2023) N/A (Nore)
BAUFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
MELE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 11
REIIESE A Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 11
BRoRF L E Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 1/1
B+ (R-ZF—-=ZF+H—HEE) Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023) 11
BAFRLE(R=ZF=—_=F+AHA—H Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July i g ()
HEZE) 2023) N/A (Note)
Mt - IR EE TELELE BEERENRENG Note: Each of Mr. GUO Ruifeng, Mr. WANG Lei, Mr. NIE

pegunk == ﬂﬂfgi_iﬂiﬁ FRERER
£ -

Zhizhang and Ms. LO Wing Sze was appointed with effect
after the 2023 AGM.
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The chairman of the meeting exercised his power under
the Articles of Association to put each proposed resolution
to vote by way of a poll. The Company adopted poll
voting for all resolutions put to vote at the meeting. The
procedures for voting by poll at the 2023 AGM was
explained at the 2023 AGM, prior to the polls being taken.

All resolutions put to the Shareholders at the 2023
AGM were passed. There were no Shares entitling the
Shareholders to attend and abstain from voting in favour
of the resolution at the 2023 AGM as set out in Article 14.2
of the Company’s Article of Association or Rule 2.15 of the
Listing Rules, no Shareholders were required under the
Listing Rules to abstain from voting at the 2023 AGM and
no Shareholders had stated their intention in the circular
to vote against or to abstain from voting on the proposed
resolution at the 2023 AGM. Tricor Investor Services
Limited, the Branch Share Registrar of the Company in
Hong Kong acted as scrutineer for the poll and counted
the poll votes cast at the 2023 AGM. The results of the
voting by poll were published on the respective websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETINGS (“EGM”) BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members holding together,
as at the date of deposit of the requisition, Shares
representing not less than one-tenth of the voting rights,
one vote per share basis, of the Company which carry
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
The written requisition shall be deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office of the Company, specifying the objects
of the meeting and the resolutions to be added to the
meeting agenda and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

081



082

L SAERERNS ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FEIE SRR T 5

ABERARY EBHBRRERRAE LIR2 2R
MR ERY - ARIRZEZBNBRRAER LR
[IRRAFAEKREIAS ([RREBIARE]) A
HEFERLARBBHABRFIAE - RRES
NBZBEENIEFC LHEAR AR -

[va) 2 2H 5 A o) R A S

RIS TR EREE - BRARENE
BRNBFPELYREEESFELARLAAE (U
W REEEREIGRERSRPOI7E) 2 -

PO BRI RARAN L AR E S BB A A
BAMEMPIENARARTAHEOER - B
BT -

EHEREEARAT

BRI L &=

R A IE 96685

EHEMANEBEI0E

TE : ir_mixc@crland.com.cn

T % 852-2877 2330/86-755 28681268 8700
{8H : 852-2877 9068

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no specific provisions in the Articles of
Association for the Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to put forward
proposals may request the Company to convene an EGM
in accordance with the procedures set out in the above
paragraph headed “Convening of Extraordinary General
Meetings (“EGM”) by Shareholders”. Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
have been uploaded to the Company’s website.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD AND CONTACT DETAILS

The Shareholders shall direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

In addition, the Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time contact the Company’s
Investor Relations Department to enquire about the
information published by the Company. The contact details
are as follows:

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

30/F., China Resources Land Building, Tower B, No. 9668
Shennan Avenue,

Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China

Email: ir_mixc@crland.com.cn

Tel: 852-2877 2330/86-755 28681268 8700

Fax: 852-2877 9068
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders. To
ensure that the Shareholders and potential investors
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the
Company, the Company has established the Shareholders’
Communication Policy, which include several channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(

=

corporate communications such as annual reports,
interim reports and circulars are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(iii)  corporate information is made available on the
Company’s website; and

(iv)  annual and extraordinary general meetings provide
a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors.

The Company has reviewed and considered its
Shareholders’ communication policy properly implemented
and effective during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company is available at the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There was no
change in the amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023. A special resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to adopt the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company in
order to fully comply with the latest regulatory requirements
in relation to the expanded paperless listing regime and
the electronic dissemination of corporate communications
by listed issuers and the relevant amendments made to the
Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 25 March 2024 and the circular of the
Company to be sent to the Shareholders in late April, 2024.
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The Board is pleased to present this report of Directors
together with the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date are:

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)
Mr. GUO Shiging

Mr. YU Linkang (President)

Mr. GUO Ruifeng (Vice President and Chief Strategy and
Operating Officer, appointed with effect from 29 January
2024)

Mr. WANG Haimin (Vice President)

Ms. WEI Xiaohua (Vice President, retired with effect from
15 January 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (Vice President, appointed with effect from
29 January 2024)

Ms. YANG Hongxia (Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, resigned with effect from 17 August 2023)

Mr. NIE Zhizhang (Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, appointed with effect from 17 August 2023)

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan

Ms. QIN Hong (resigned with effect from 1 July 2023)

Ms. LO Wing Sze (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 40 to 55 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading property management and
commercial operational service provider in China. The
Group provides property management and value-added
services to one of the largest portfolios of residential
properties and gradually promotes its business
transformation into an urban space operation service
provider, and also manages and operates a diversified
and growing portfolio of commercial properties comprising
shopping malls and office buildings.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group achieved improvements in some of the major
operating indicators, details of which are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. Analysis of the strategies and core
competitiveness of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including an
analysis of the Group’s financial performance and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. These
discussions form part of the report of the Directors. The
Group's key relationship with its stakeholders (including
employees, customers and suppliers) who have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s
success depends, is set out in this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group are set out as follows:

Changes in the general economic and market conditions
including changes in international, national, regional and
local economic conditions, market volatility, declining
demand for residential or commercial real estate, falling
real estate values, disruption to the global capital or credit
markets may also negatively affect the PRC property
management and commercial operational service markets
which could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the
PRC property management and commercial operational
service markets which could, in turn, have a material
adverse effect on the Group.

As the Group does not have control over the business
strategies of CR Group and CR Land, nor any factor
that may affect their business operations, any adverse
development in the operations of CR Group and CR
Land or their ability to develop new properties may affect
the Group’s ability to procure new service contracts. In
addition, there can be no assurance that all of the Group’s
service contracts with CR Group and CR Land will be
renewed successfully upon their expiration.
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The Group intends to strategically expand its business
through collaboration with independent third parties.
However, there can be no assurance that it will maintain
its current revenue levels and profitability if it takes on
more projects from, or sign more service contracts with,
independent third-party developers in the future.

The Group provides property management services
under the trade name of “ZH” (China Resources) and
commercial operational and subleasing services mainly
under brands of “BZM" (MIXC) and “BRIE" (MIXC
ONE). Any material negative publicity associated with the
Group’s brands and any unauthorised use of its brand
names or related trademarks could diminish the value of
its brands, market reputation and competitive advantages.

The protection of the Group’s brands, including related
trademarks, may require the expenditure of significant
financial and operational resources. Moreover, the steps
the Group takes to protect its brands may not adequately
protect its rights or prevent third parties from infringing or
misappropriating its trademarks. Even when infringement
or misappropriation of its trademarks is detected, the
Group may not be able to enforce all such trademarks. Any
unauthorised use by third parties of the Group's brands
may adversely affect its brands. Furthermore, as the Group
continues to expand its business, there is a risk that the
Group may face claims of infringement or other alleged
violations of third-party intellectual property rights, which
may restrict us from leveraging its brands in a manner
consistent with its business goals.

The Group has adopted a sound risk management and
internal control systems, details of which are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — Risk
management and internal control systems” of this annual
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate its business in
compliance with applicable environmental protection
laws and regulations and has implemented relevant
environmental protection measures in compliance with
the required standards under applicable PRC laws and
regulations.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance will be disclosed in the sustainability report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
be published at the same time as the publication of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the
Group has complied in all material aspects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no material
breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and
professional development of the employees contribute to
the growth of the Group. The human resources department
of the Group manages, trains and hires employees. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group had 40,977 (as at 31
December 2022: 40,239) full time employees in Chinese
Mainland and Hong Kong. The Group believes in the
importance of attraction, recruitment and retention of
quality employees in achieving the Group’s success. The
Group’s success depends on our ability to attract, retain
and motivate qualified personnel. Compensation for the
Group’s employees typically consists of basic salary,
allowances and subsidies (transportation, communication,
housing subsidies and allowances for staff relocated
from other places), welfare (lunch subsidies, cold and
heat prevention subsidies), performance-based bonus
and year-end bonus. The Group provides the employees
with basic pension scheme, basic medical insurance,
workplace injury insurance, unemployment insurance,
maternity insurance and housing providence funds in
accordance with relevant PRC laws and regulations.
For the remuneration expenses for the year ended
31 December 2023, please refer to Note 6(b) to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The employees of the PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Group are set out
in Note 2(r) to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.
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OPERATION, STRUCTURE AND POLICIES
OF THE BOARD

The Board has established four committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Sustainability Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Details of the Board meetings and Board committees
are set out in the sections headed “Board Meetings,
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” on pages 58
to 59 and “Board Committees” on pages 62 to 69 of this
annual report, respectively.

The Company has adopted and implemented the Diversity
Policy, and the Group recognises the significance of a
diversified Board. Details of diversity of the Board are
set out in the sections headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 40 to 55 and
“Board Diversity Policy” on pages 71 to 73 of this annual
report.

For details of the amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company and the terms
of reference of the Board meetings, please refer to the
sections headed “Changes in Constitutional Documents”
on page 84 and “Board Committees” on pages 62 to 69 of
this annual report, respectively.
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OBJECTIVES AND PLANS OF THE
BOARD

To achieve the high-quality development of the Group
and the function of the Board of strategies formulation,
decision-making and risks prevention, the Board is
committed to improving the compliance and effectiveness
of operation, granting authorisation in a more scientific and
normative way, enhancing support for the performance of
Directors’ duties.

For the financial year ending 31 December 2024, (i)
the Board meetings will be held at least four times at
approximately quarterly intervals in accordance with
code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code and extraordinary
meetings will be held according to its needs; (ii) the Audit
Committee will hold at least two meetings, each of the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Sustainability Committee will hold at least one meeting;
and (iii) the Chairman will at least hold one meeting with
the independent non-executive Directors without presence
of other Directors.

The Company recognises the importance of Directors
participating in appropriate continuous professional
development to ensure that they have appropriate
understanding of the Company’s business and they are
aware of their duties as Directors under the applicable
laws and regulations. For the financial year ending 31
December 2024, there will be two training activities for
Directors arranged by the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the continuing connected transactions as
disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group has not carried out any connected
transactions that are not exempt from the annual reporting
requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The following entities are connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules who have continuing
connected transactions with our Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023:

CR Land and its associates. CR Land is the controlling
shareholder of the Company, which directly owns
approximately 72.29% of the share capital of the Company.

CRH, its holding companies, and their respective
subsidiaries

CRH, its holding companies, their respective subsidiaries
and their associates (excluding CR Land Connected
Persons). CR Land is indirectly held as to approximately
59.55% by CRH, which is in turn indirectly wholly owned
by CRC.

CRH, Offshore Borrowers (as defined below) and Onshore
Borrowers (as defined below)
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CR Bank is a licensed bank regulated by the China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission and
headquartered in Zhuhai, the PRC. It has branches and
sub-branches in different locations in the PRC where it
operates and provides financial and commercial banking
services. As of the date of this report, CR Bank is held
as to approximately 49.77% by CRI, which holds 100%
of CRH, and therefore is the connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules upon the listing.

CRI, a joint stock limited liability company established in
the PRC, which is an intermediate holding company of
CRH.

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (B FEEIZIEFEA
FR27]), in which CRI holds a 51% equity interest as at the
date of this report.
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PARTIALLY EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (SUBJECT
TO REPORTING, ANNUAL REVIEW AND
ANNOUNCEMENT REQUIREMENTS)

The Company entered into the property leasing
framework agreement with CR Land on 25 October
2022 (the “2023 CR Land Property Leasing
Framework Agreement”’), pursuant to which (1)
the Group may, from time to time, lease certain
properties from the CR Land Connected Persons as
office and/or employee quarter(s) for its own use or
as operating lease for its operating purpose; (2) the
CR Land Connected Persons may, from time to time,
lease certain properties from the Group as office
for its own use; and (3) the CR Land Connected
Persons may, from time to time, lease certain retail
spaces managed by the Group as tenants under the
commercial subleasing model.

The term of the 2023 CR Land Property Leasing
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.
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The annual caps in respect of the 2023 CR Land
Property Leasing Framework Agreement and the
actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

FELR REEE
Transaction
Annual cap amount
AR®T R ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
(1) AEEQEHEMESE The Group leasing from the CR 110,000 94,124
ATHEBEYED Land Connected Persons(”
(2) EHEMBEEATAN CR Land Connected Persons 15,000 -
SEMEAYE leasing from the Group
(3) FERHEEEA TIRE CR Land Connected Persons 20,000 3,134
RESIHERGAREER leasing from the Group under the
A commercial subleasing mode
Biat - Note:

REFEEVHRELENF165 - NE
EEMNMESRS TRMAKED - K
HEATRASREETE - AREE
NOERRENREERBSAEED
EREEE MAKERMNMAZHE
ENREEAR B EENOF

According to HKFRS 16, the rent payable by the
Group contains different components and therefore
different accounting treatments shall be applied.
The fixed lease payments payable by the Group
will be recognised as right-of-use assets of the
Group and the variable lease payments payable by
the Group will be recognised as expenses of the
Group.
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The Company entered into the property leasing
framework agreement with CRH on 25 October 2022
(the “2023 CRH Property Leasing Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which (1) the Group may,
from time to time, lease certain properties from the
CRH Connected Persons as office for its own use,
and (2) the CRH Connected Persons may, from time
to time, lease certain retail spaces managed by the
Group as tenants under the commercial subleasing
model.

The term of the 2023 CRH Property Leasing
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

The annual caps in respect of the 2023 CRH
Property Leasing Framework Agreement and the
actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

FE LR REeE

Transaction

Annual cap amount

AR¥T R AR¥TR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AEEBEHR(KE) BEAT The Group leasing from the CRH 31,000 2,705
HAMEO Connected Persons"

#=H(EE) BEATRESE CRH Connected Persons leasing 35,000 8,039

DHEBEXBAREEERYE

from the Group under the

commercial subleasing mode

Wit -

RIBFBFEMELNE 16 - REBENDH
Heeas TREXD  WEERATREEHE
BIE o ARBENOEREENFERABR
AEBEWEREERE - A BN Z7E
ENREEARRAEENF

Note:

According to HKFRS 16, the rent payable by the Group
contains different components and therefore different
accounting treatments shall be applied. The fixed lease
payments payable by the Group will be recognised as
right-of-use assets of the Group and the variable lease
payments payable by the Group will be recognised as
expenses of the Group.
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The Company entered into the parking spaces
purchase framework agreement with CR Land on 25
October 2022 (the “2023 Parking Spaces Purchase
Framework Agreement’), pursuant to which the
Group may, from time to time, enter into transactions
to purchase the ownership of and/or the right to use
certain unsold parking spaces which are owned by
the CR Land Connected Persons.

The term of the 2023 Parking Spaces Purchase
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

The annual cap of the annual purchase amounts for
2023 and the actual purchase amounts in respect
of the 2023 Parking Spaces Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2023 are RMB440 million and RMB263.4 million,
respectively.



W HLR LA AR China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

ARrEERH(KRE)R_F-__F1+A
— TR BT RE RIEHE & EREE
A ([ ZE2-=F%8(KE) KBE
RipZE]) - Bt ()AKEA AR EE
B(EE)BREALTRBE TEENER
HR% - BREIHNR  RELRAAER
(RRRE) ARIZMIRS (B EAE
BMEE AKREEKZEXZHER) K
Q)R (RE) MEALATERBED
AT AREBRERAP B AKER
FEEHRS

—EZFER(ER)RBEREBEA
FHAA T =F—A—HEE_ZT—
AF+_A=+—Hit-

—EZFER(ER)RBEREBEA
FEEREEE_ZE-_=F+-_A=1+—
BIEFENERISSEHNOT ¢

The Company entered into the procurement of
and provision of goods and services framework
agreement with CRH on 25 October 2022 (the
“2023 CRH Procurement Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which (1) the Group may, from time to
time, procure from the CRH Connected Persons
certain types of goods and services which include
staff uniforms, food items and utilities (gas and
electricity) and technical services which are
aggregated by the Group to streamline the Group’s
management of these transactions, and (2) the CRH
Connected Persons may, from time to time, procure
from the Group marketing services for the respective
users in the CR Life Club (ZEfi®) through points
conversion.

The term of the 2023 CRH Procurement Framework
Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2025.

The annual caps in respect of the 2023 CRH
Procurement Framework Agreement and the
actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

FELR RELE

Transaction

Annual cap amount

AR¥T R AR¥TR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AEENEESTHE Purchase amount by the Group 200,000 125,827
2 (KR BEALH Purchase amount by the CRH 65,000 4,676

BELH

Connected Persons
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The Company entered into the provision of
commercial operational services framework
agreement with CRH on 25 October 2022 (the
‘2023 CRH Commercial Operational Services
Framework Agreement’), pursuant to which the
Group may, from time to time, provide commercial
operational services to the CRH Connected Persons
for their commercial properties (including shopping
malls and office buildings). The commercial
operational services include (i) pre-opening
management services (such as positioning and
design management services, and tenant sourcing
and management services) and (ii) operation
management services (such as opening preparation
services, tenant coaching, consumer management,
and marketing and promotion and product
informationisation services).

The term of the 2023 CRH Commercial Operational
Services Framework Agreement is from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025.

The annual cap of the annual service fee amounts
for 2023 and the actual service fee received by
the Group in respect of the 2023 CRH Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are RMB170 million
and RMB68.7 million, respectively.
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The Company entered into the value-added services
framework agreement with CRH on 25 October 2022
(the “2023 CRH Value-added Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group may
from time to time, provide value-added services
to the CRH Connected Persons for the residential
properties and other non-commercial properties
developed and/or owned by them. The value-added
services include community value-added services
(such as community living services and brokerage
and assets services) and value-added services to
property developers (such as consultancy services,
preliminary preparation services and pre-delivery
marketing services).

The term of the 2023 CRH Value-added Services
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

The annual caps and the actual transaction amounts
received by the Group in respect of the 2023 CRH
Value-added Services Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

FELR &

Transaction

Annual cap amount

ARBTT AR¥TR

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

NEE L RIBEREEWEL Fees to be received by the Group 50,000 24,035
EoE=J:¢! for the community value-added

services

REBRETE Y EFEENIE Fees to be received by the Group 15,000 17

BERBE R UE R E A for the value-added services to

property developers
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The Company entered into the procurement of
goods and services framework agreement with
CR Land on 25 October 2022 (the “2023 CR Land
Procurement Framework Agreement’), pursuant
to which the Group may, from time to time, procure
from the CR Land Connected Persons certain
types of goods and services which include interior
design and construction, purchase of furniture and
fixtures, utilities (water and electricity) and technical
services.

The term of the 2023 CR Land Procurement
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

The annual cap and the actual purchase amount
paid by the Group in respect of the 2023 CR Land
Procurement Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are RMB400 million and
RMB125.2 million, respectively.
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The Company entered into the deposit and financial
service framework agreement with CR Bank on 25
October 2022 (the “2023 Deposit and Financial
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Group may, from time to time, (1)
deposit cash into CR Bank, while CR Bank will
provide deposit services and pay deposit interest
to the Group on such deposits; and (2) use the
commercial banking services of CR Bank including,
but not limited to, letter of credit, letter of guarantee,
granting of loans with collaterals, bill acceptance
and discount services, account receivable factoring
services, provision of loans and security, wealth and
cash management services, financial consulting
service and other financial services as agreed by
the parties.

The term of the 2023 Deposit and Financial Services
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.
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—EC=FEREERREIERGER The annual caps in respect of the 2023 Deposit
TI=FNFELR  URBEZZ-= and Financial Services Framework Agreement for
FHZA=T—AIEFEARSEFERRE 2023 and the actual maximum daily balance of
BRITHNER &S ST B 175058 M EHIRTT deposits placed by the Group with CR Bank and
FrigttemRERERNER SRS maximum daily amount of financial services and
FIEAT products provided by CR Bank for the year ended

REEF R EBRITH

EBRTRESBBH R
EREARELH

31 December 2023 are set out below:

BE-ZE-=F
+=ZHA=+—H

LEENER

FELR BEeSHEHE
The actual

maximum daily

balance or amount

during the

year ended

Annual cap 31 December 2023

AR¥T R ARBTR

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

Maximum daily balance of deposits 700,000 530,122
to be placed by the Group with CR

Bank
Maximum daily amount of financial 500,000 -

services and products to be
provided by CR Bank
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The Company entered into (1) a framework
loan agreement and guarantee for advances in
HKD, RMB and United States Dollar with CRH
(the “Offshore Framework Loan Agreement
2023"), and (2) a framework loan agreement and
guarantee for advances in RMB with CRI (the
‘Onshore Framework Agreement Loan Agreement
2023, together with the Offshore Framework
Loan Agreement 2023, the “Framework Loan
Agreements 2023") on 20 January 2023. Pursuant
to the Offshore Framework Loan Agreement 2023,
the Offshore Lenders (i.e. the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which has become a party to
the Offshore Framework Loan Agreement 2023
by acceding to its terms but excluding any entity
which is established in the PRC) may extend loans
to the Offshore Borrowers (i.e. CRH, any China
Resources Group listed companies and any of
their subsidiaries, which has become a party to
the Offshore Framework Loan Agreement 2023 by
acceding to its terms, but excluding any entity which
is established in the PRC and any member of the
Group) (“the Offshore Borrowers”) in accordance
with the terms of such agreement.

Pursuant to the Onshore Framework Loan
Agreement 2023, the Onshore Lenders (i.e. any
PRC established subsidiary of the Company, which
has become a party to the Onshore Framework
Loan Agreement 2023 by acceding to its terms) may
extend loans to the Onshore Borrowers (i.e. CRI
and any of its PRC established subsidiary or any
China Resources Group listed companies, which
has become a party to the Onshore Framework
Agreement 2023 by acceding to its terms, but
excluding CR Bank, CR Trust and any subsidiary
of the Company) (the “Onshore Borrowers”) in
accordance with the terms of such agreement.
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The initial term of the Framework Loan Agreements
2023 is from 20 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

The annual lending caps for the maximum aggregate
amount that can be lent by the Group on any single
day in respect of the Framework Loan Agreements
2023 and the actual maximum daily balance of
loans extended to the Offshore Borrowers and the
Onshore Borrowers (in the aggregate) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

BE-Z-=F
+=—HA=+—HLt
FENERES
BEREESHE
The actual
maximum daily
outstanding
balance or amount
during the year

FELR ended

Annual cap 31 December 2023

ARBEHER ARBEER

RMB million RMB million

FNERHEEREELETE Maximum daily aggregate amount 1,000 -

outstanding during th

e year
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ANNOUNCEMENT AND INDEPENDENT
SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL
REQUIREMENTS)

The Company entered into the provision of property
management services framework agreement with
CR Land on 25 October 2022 (the “2023 CR Land
Property Management Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group may,
from time to time, provide property management
services to the CR Land Connected Persons for the
residential and/or commercial properties and other
non-commercial properties developed and/or owned
by them.

The term of the 2023 CR Land Property Management
Services Framework Agreement is from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount in
respect of the 2023 CR Land Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out below:

FEE LR RELHE

Transaction

Annual cap amount

AR®TR AREBTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AEBEBYIRHNYEERE Property management fees to 1,300,000 671,195
GEXZED) be received by the Group (for

commercial properties)

AEBBWEHNYEEREE  Property management fees to 525,000 312,585

(EEMEREMIEE be received by the Group (for
M) residential properties and other

non-commercial properties)
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The Company entered into the provision of
commercial operational services (commercial
properties) framework agreement with CR Land on
25 October 2022, which was supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 7 December 2022
(collectively, the “2023 CR Land Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement”’),
pursuant to which the Group may, from time to time,
provide commercial operational services to the
CR Land Connected Persons for their commercial
properties (including shopping malls and office
buildings). The commercial operational services
include (i) pre-opening management services (such
as positioning and design management services,
and tenant sourcing and management services)
and (ii) operation management services (such as
opening preparation services, tenant coaching,
consumer management and marketing and publicity
and product informationisation services).

The term of the 2023 CR Land Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement is from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2037.

The annual cap and the actual service fees received
by the Group under the 2023 CR Land Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are RMB3,000
million and RMB2,076.6 million, respectively.
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The Company entered into the value-added services
framework agreement with CR Land on 25 October
2022 (the “2023 CR Land Value-added Services
Framework Agreement’), pursuant to which the
Group may, from time to time, provide value-added
services to the CR Land Connected Persons for the
residential properties and other non-commercial
properties developed and/or owned by them. The
value-added services include community value-
added services (such as community living services
and brokerage and assets services) and value-
added services to property developers (such as
consultancy services, preliminary preparation
services and pre-delivery marketing services).

The term of the 2023 CR Land Value-added Services
Framework Agreement is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

The annual caps and the actual transaction amounts
in respect of the 2023 CR Land Value-added
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out below:

FELR XBEE

Transaction

Annual cap amount

AR®T R AR¥TR

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

NEE L RIBEREEWEL Fees to be received by the Group 300,000 161,047
EoE=J:¢! for the community value-added

services
NEBGRITEER LA Fees to be received by the Group 1,250,000 576,532

EREAWERNE A

for the value-added services to
property developers
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The Company entered into the provision of property
management services framework agreement with
CRH on 25 October 2022 (the “2023 CRH Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”’),
pursuant to which the Group may, from time to
time, provide property management services to the
CRH Connected Persons for the residential and/
or commercial properties and other properties
developed and/or owned by them.

The term of the 2023 CRH Property Management
Services Framework Agreement is from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025.

The annual caps and the property management
fees received by the Group in respect of the 2023
CRH Property Management Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out below:

FE LR RBEH

Transaction

Annual cap amount

AR%T T AR¥TT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AEEBWERNYEEERE Property management fees to 295,000 174,540
GE3/E) be received by the Group (for

commercial properties)

AEEBWEMNYEERE Property management fees to 570,000 289,920

(EEWz R HMIER be received by the Group (for

) residential properties and other
non-commercial facilities)
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LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS AND
WAIVERS FROM THE STOCK EXCHANGE

CR Land Connected Persons, CR Group, CRH Connected
Persons, CRH Borrowers, CR Bank, CRI and CR Trust
are connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each
of (1) the 2023 CR Land Property Leasing Framework
Agreement; (2) the 2023 CRH Property Leasing Framework
Agreement; (3) the 2023 Parking Spaces Purchase
Framework Agreement; (4) the 2023 CRH Procurement
Framework Agreement; (5) the 2023 CRH Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement; (6) the 2023
CRH Value-added Services Framework Agreement; (7)
the 2023 CR Land Procurement Framework Agreement,
(8) the 2023 Deposit and Financial Services Framework
Agreement, (9) the Framework Loan Agreements 2023,
(10) the 2023 CR Land Property Management Services
Framework Agreement; (11) the 2023 CR Land Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement; (12) the 2023
CR Land Value-added Services Framework Agreement;
and (13) the 2023 CRH Property Management Services
Framework Agreement as mentioned above (collectively
known as the “CCT Agreements”) constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Further details of the CCT Agreements
are set out in the relevant announcements of the Company
dated 25 October 2022, 7 December 2022 and 20 January
2023 and the circular of the Company dated 9 December
2022.
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CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
CCT Agreements, and confirmed the CCT Agreements
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii)  according to the agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

CONFIRMATIONS FROM THE COMPANY’S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Group has engaged its auditor (the “Auditor”) to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions conducted by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements include related party
transactions disclosed under accounting standards and
related party transactions which also constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of
Directors and chief executives of the Company constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, these transactions are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Save as the connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions disclosed above,
the related party transactions set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall within the
definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (as the case may be). The Company confirmed that
it was in compliance with the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2023.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed on this annual report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2023 was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our customers primarily consist of property developers,
property owners and tenants, property owners’
associations and residents.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, a significant
portion of our property management and commercial
operational services was related to properties developed
by CR Group and CR Land. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the revenue amounts from the Group's
five largest customers accounted for 33.5% (2022: 33.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue amount from
the Group’s single largest customer, CR Land, accounted
for 26.0% (2022: 28.0%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Other than CR Group and CR Land, the Group’s major
customers during the year ended 31 December 2023 were
all independent third parties.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, members
of senior management, any Shareholder who, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital or their close associates
held any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers other than CR Group and CR Land. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, other than CR Group and
CR Land, none of the Group’s major suppliers was the
Group’s customer.

The Group’s suppliers primarily consist of subcontractors
providing cleaning, greening services, and repair and
maintenance services, services providers of utilities, third-
party merchants providing renovation services, advertising
and community living services and property owners.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases
amount from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 12.1% (2022: 10.6%) of the Group’s total purchases
and the purchases amount from the Group’s single largest
customer, CR Land, accounted for 5.6% (2022: 6.8%) of
the Group’s total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, other than
CR Group and CR Land, (i) none of the Group’s major
suppliers was also the Group’s customer and (ii) all of the
Group's major suppliers were independent third parties.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, members
of senior management, any Shareholders who, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, or their close associates
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
other than CR Group and CR Land.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and
the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 316 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF
HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their respective
holding of the Company’s securities.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are set out in Notes 15, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and details of
the Shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as at
the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has maintained
the public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

CHARITABLE DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
make any charitable donation.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2023.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The consolidation results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out on page 152
of consolidated statement of profit of loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMBO0.481
per Share (“2023 Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB0.312 per Share) payable on
or around 26 July 2024 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 14
June 2024. Together with the interim dividend of RMB0.223
(2022: RMBO0.127 per Share) per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 which was paid on 27 October 2023,
the total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023
shall amount to RMBO0.704 per Share (Total dividend for
2022, including interim dividend, final dividend and special
dividend: RMB0.8033 per Share).
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The 2023 Final Dividend, if approved, is to be payable
in cash in HKD which will be converted from RMB at
the average CNY Central Parity Rate announced by the
People’s Bank of China for the five business days prior
to and including the date of the 2024 AGM (as defined
below) for Shareholders electing to receive the 2023 Final
Dividend in RMB. To make such election, Shareholders
should complete the dividend currency election form which
is expected to be dispatched to shareholders in June
2024 as soon as practicable after the record date of 14
June 2024 to determine Shareholders’ entitlement to the
2023 Final Dividend, and lodge it to the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investors Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 9 July 2024.

Shareholders who are minded to elect to receive all or part
of their dividends in RMB by cheque(s) should note that
(i) they should ensure that they have an appropriate bank
account to which the RMB cheques for dividend can be
presented for payment; and (ii) there is no assurance that
RMB cheques can be cleared without material handling
charges or delay in Hong Kong or that RMB cheques will
be honored for payment upon presentation outside Hong
Kong. The cheques are expected to be posted to the
relevant shareholders by ordinary post on or around 26
July 2024 at the Shareholders’ own risk.

If no duly completed dividend currency election form in
respect of that Shareholder is received by the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on 9
July 2024, such shareholder will automatically receive the
2023 Final Dividend in HKD. All dividend payments in HKD
will be made in the usual way on or around 26 July 2024.
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If Shareholders wish to receive the 2023 Final Dividend in
HKD in the usual way, no additional action is required.

Shareholders should seek professional advice with their
own tax advisers regarding the possible tax implications of
the dividend payment.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company
has taken out liability insurance to provide appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately RMB8.57 billion.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank loans
and other borrowings.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors had
any service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors nor any entity connected with
the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than being
a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Board with reference
to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the financial performance
of the Group, individual performance position, time
commitment and comparable market statistics. In
particular, executive Directors’ remuneration include
salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, discretionary
bonuses and retirement scheme contributions, whilst
independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration include
director fees.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of
the five highest paid individuals (included four Directors)
in the Group are set out in Note 8 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any Director or any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been
made or are payable, for the year ended 31 December
2023, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions”, “Continuing Connected Transactions”,
‘Related Party Transactions” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report, no contract of
significance was entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2023 or subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at the end of the
year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

On 20 November 2020, CR Land entered into a non-
competition undertaking in favor of the Company, pursuant
to which, among other things, CR Land has given certain
non-competition undertakings to the Company. Details of
the non-competition undertaking are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — CR
Land Non-competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

CR Land confirmed that it and its close associates have
complied with the non-competition undertaking for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and also reviewed the relevant
undertakings and are satisfied that the non-competition
undertaking has been fully complied with.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and
business partners are keys to its sustainable development.
The Group is committed to establishing a close and
caring relationship with its employees, providing quality
services to its customers and enhancing cooperation
with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff,
provides competitive remuneration and benefits and
career development opportunities based on their merits
and performance. The Group also puts ongoing efforts to
provide adequate trainings and development resources to
its employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the
same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment
in their positions. Further details in relation to the Group’s
employees are set out in the paragraph headed “Human
Resources” in this report.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with customers and provide the services
in a way that satisfies needs and requirements of the
customers. The Group enhances the relationship by
continuous interaction with customers to gain insight on
the changing market demand for the services so that
the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in place for handling customers’
complaints to ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with
in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good
relationship with suppliers and subcontractors as long-
term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s
business. The Group reinforces business partnerships with
suppliers and subcontractors by ongoing communication
in a proactive manner.

12
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

According to the relevant regulations issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council of the PRC, the Board proposed Ernst & Young
to retire as the auditor of the Company upon expiration of
its term of office at the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 6 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM") and not
to be reappointed. With effect from 6 June 2023, Ernst
& Young retired as the auditor of the Company and, with
the approval of Shareholders at the 2023 AGM, KPMG
has been appointed as the new auditor of the Company
following the retirement of Ernst & Young.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by KPMG,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the 2024 AGM. A resolution for re-
appointment of KPMG as the independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2024 AGM.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The Company entered into the following loan agreement
which have specific performance covenant of its
Controlling Shareholders. The obligations of such loan
agreements continue to exist as of the date of this report.
As at the date of this report, CRH beneficially owns
directly or indirectly approximately 73.72% of the issued
share capital of the Company, and CR Land is the single
largest shareholder of the Company, directly owning
approximately 72.29% of the issued share capital of the
Company and being able to control the Company.

. A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an
aggregate amount of up to HKD600,000,000 with an
expiration date of 12 months was entered into on 20
October 2021, details of which have been disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 20
October 2021. The Company has undertaken that
during the term of the facility, the Company shall
procure that CRH and CR Land remain directly
or indirectly interested in no less than 35% and
51% of the issued share capital of the Company
respectively. If violation of the relevant undertakings
under this facility letter occurs, the lender may
declare any commitment under this facility letter to
be cancelled and/or declare the outstanding loans,
together with all the interests accrued thereon,
and all other amounts due under this facility letter
shall become immediately due and payable. The
revolving loan facility letter has been renewed on
the same terms on 20 October 2022 and 20 October
2023 respectively with the maturity date having
been extended for 12 months on each occasion. As
of 31 December 2023, the Group did not draw down
this facility.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does
not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2024 AGM")
will be held on 7 June 2024. Notice of the 2024 AGM
and all other relevant documents will be published and
despatched to Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 3 June 2024 to 7 June 2024, both days inclusive and
during which period no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the 2024 AGM to be held on 7 June
2024. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
31 May 2024.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the 2024 AGM,
the 2023 Final Dividend will be payable to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company after the close of business of the Company at
4:30 p.m. on 14 June 2024 and the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 14 June 2024 to 17 June
2024, during which no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the 2023 Final
Dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates shall be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at the above address not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 13 June 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of our Directors or chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

A

EE BETHRAEHS EEME ZEREAO BERES L

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

Name of Director/chief executive Nature of interest shares™ holding®

g R B 95 AE Hith® 358,304 (L) 0.02%
Mr. YU Linkang Others®

BInggLE® Hp® 49,884 (L) 0.00%
Mr. GUO Ruifeng ® Others @

FEREE HAh® 52,955 (L) 0.00%
Mr. WANG Haimin Others®

BELE (BT _ME—-ATRERE) Hhe 263,459 (L) 0.01%
Ms. WEI Xiaohua (retired with effect from Others®

15 January 2024)

127



128

IEI=tid) s 1

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

wiiz :

FRILIEZALAHRO TR -

BER-_ZE-_=F+-A=+—BHOBITERNE
#2,282,500,000% BEEFE o

W TRER ST - BIRtEGLE C TEREERRN
#4+3EBCICC Financial Trading Limited
BRUMBEERFEABBEEREEEREL
FEER AHESELEENE—SER
E2HHERER -

B EER S __FN\ARZT AL L
BREEE YAZZ-=Ft-ARETE
wE e Bt - MR- =F+-A=+—H
RARBRSITHRAR - FEENR -_F M4
—AZTNBEZERANTES -

Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our
Shares.

The calculation is based on the total number of
2,282,500,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Mr. YU Linkang, Mr. GUO Ruifeng, Mr. WANG Haimin and
Ms. WEI Xiaohua subscribed and hold interests under
the employee preferential offering through the asset
management schemes established by CICC Financial
Trading Limited. For further information on the employee
preferential offering, please refer to the Prospectus.

Mr. GUO Ruifeng was appointed as the Chief Operating
Officer of the Company in August 2022 and has been
serving as the Vice President since December 2023.
Thus, he has been chief executive of the Company as at
31 December 2023. He was subsequently appointed as
executive Director with effect from 29 January 2024.
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B

EEnE EEME ZERHEO BFRESK®
Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest shares™ holding®
FRFEE EREBAA 40,000 (L) 0.00%
Mr. LI Xin Beneficial owner

Hat - Note:

1. FRILIEZATAFERIBMRGITE - 1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the

shares of CR Land.

2. BR - E-_=ZF+_A=+—HIETERE 2. The calculation is based on the total number of
AR {D 48 807,130,039,579MF AEEELE - 7,130,939,579 shares of CR Land in issue as at 31

December 2023.

B4

EERE EntE ZEREEO BFRESL®
Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest shares™ holding®
E L& B iBEm® 60,000 (L) 0.01%

Mr. GUO Shiging Interest of spouse®
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Note:

1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
shares of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

2. The calculation is based on the total number of
629,444,958 shares in issue of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd as at 31 December 2023.

3. Mr. Guo Shiging was deemed to be interested in 60,000

R © shares through interest of his spouse.
EEHE EEME gaO Batk®
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares™ holding®
BmERELE EnEBA 32,000 (L) 0.00%

Mr. NIE Zhizhang

Beneficial owner

Mat

1. FRILIEZALAHFERRE
MR aF A -

SEERAT

2. i*ﬁé T+ A=t HEETERER
BB AR AR EE6,282,510,461 (% &
=93

s
RICE
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Note:

1. The letter
shares of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited.

“L” denotes the person’s long position in the

2. The calculation is based on the total number of
6,282,510,461 shares of China Resources Pharmaceutical
Group Limited in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none
of the Directors or the chief executives of the Company
had, or were to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or were required
to be entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS”’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are
aware, the following persons (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company) and companies had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by our Company under section 336 of the SFO were as

BRER

Shareholder

PEEBHERAAC

China Resources Company Limited®
EHRMBRAAO®

China Resources Inc.®

CRC Bluesky Limited®

CRC Bluesky Limited®

#FH(£E)®

CRH®

EHEHE (Ei) BRAF®

CRH (Land) Limited®

SEBRATO

Commotra Company Limited ©®
EHEMO

CR Land®

JPMorgan Chase & Co.®
JPMorgan Chase & Co.®

follows:
B RnttE ZERHEO BREDL®
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Capacity/Nature of interest shares™ holding®
SR AR 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
Interest in controlled corporation
PR R 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
Interest in controlled corporation
e NGIE 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
Interest in controlled corporation
SR AR 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
Interest in controlled corporation
PR R 1,650,000,000 (L) 72.29%
Interest in controlled corporation
EHEBA 32,644,400 (L) 1.43%
Beneficial owner
EmEAA 21,600 (L) 0.001%
Beneficial owner
EmEBA 1,650,000,000 (L) 72.29%
Beneficial owner
S NG 4,706,957 (L) 0.21%
Interest in controlled corporation
1,766,689 (S) 0.08%
wEKE 55,279,511 (L) 2.42%
Investment manager
FHARMDOREEZDA 152,200 (L) 0.007%
Person having a security interest
in shares
ZEEERIEA 53,660,320 (P) 2.35%

Approved lending agent

1

3

1
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3. EHEH AEARARREHEE (Sih)
ER AR D RIEEFRA A 271,650,000,000
A%« 21,6000% A }2.32,644,400 0 B 1 - 28
EWHEREE (FH) BRAFFHES59.51%
Bw o BH(EE) REEERQAGIRERER
(BEHh) BRARIZMW—ARE - mEHE (L)
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CRC Bluesky LimiteddBZEHERHER A G ZE
BA - MEEARODAERAREFEESS
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A7)~ %M (%£ME) - CRC Bluesky Limited *
EHROHBRIBARTREBGRAFIIHE
B AEHEBARE,682,666,00008 815 H DS o

4. RIEFHRAEEAEXVBE2REID I
RMEMARAEEMNEMER  ZERMHES
JPMorgan Chase & Co.[E##4599.99%1%
%14 2 JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia
Pacific) Limited AR E Al dy H H ok fHiZ iR
100% =6l 2 EE A - K - 52,626,200
BeREn (W5 &) 379,008 %D CAA) JHIAIR
SRHIELETAITETA -
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A BT A TRB G SARBRG P ES
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Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our
Shares. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position
in the shares of the Company. The letter “P” denotes the
position in lending pool.

2. The calculation is based on the total number of
2,282,500,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

3. CR Land, Commotra Company Limited and CRH (Land)
Limited directly held 1,650,000,000 Shares, 21,600 Shares
and 32,644,400 Shares of the Company, respectively. CR
Land is owned as to 59.51% by CRH (Land) Limited. CRH
is the sole shareholder of Commotra Company Limited and
CRH (Land) Limited. Moreover, CRH is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn wholly-
owned by China Resources Inc. China Resources Inc. is
wholly-owned by China Resources Company Limited. Thus,
CRH (Land) Limited, CRH, CRC Bluesky Limited, China
Resources Inc. and China Resources Company Limited are
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1,682,666,000
shares in the Company.

4. According to the information disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of SFO, these
shares were held by JPMorgan Chase & Co. through
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific) Limited
which is controlled indirectly as to 99.99% by it and other
corporations controlled directly or indirectly as to 100%
by it. Among which, 2,626,200 shares (long position) and
379,008 shares (short position) are cash settled unlisted
derivatives.

Save as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2023, no other
person had any interest or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange on 9 December 2020, with total
net proceeds of the Listing amounted to approximately
RMB11,600.4 million after deducting the underwriting fees
and relevant expenses.

As set out in the Prospectus, the Group intends to use
the proceeds for the purposes and in the amounts set
forth below: (i) approximately 60% of the net proceeds for
making strategic investments and acquisitions to expand
our property management and commercial operational
businesses; (ii) approximately 15% of the net proceeds for
pursuing strategic investment in providers of value-added
services and across the upstream and downstream supply
chain of our industry; (iii) approximately 15% of the net
proceeds for investing in information technology systems
and smart communities; and (iv) approximately 10% of the
net proceeds for working capital and general corporate
uses.

As at 31 December 2023, RMB4,409.0 million of the
proceeds of the Listing had been utilised. The remaining
amounts were held by way of bank deposits with licensed
banks in Hong Kong or the PRC.
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TERAHEZZE-_=—F+-A=+—HARFE The following table sets forth the status of use of net
HBEESENMEREFREABENERTEE proceeds from the Company's global offering as of 31

FAFREE - December 2023 together with the expected timeline of use:
BE-®o=F
RZZZZ% +ZA=+t-B RZB==ZF
FiEXEFE +-A=+t-0 LEERSHE +-A=t+-H
RRERFANERES to FERAE RBRAMSHNE FENERAER KDAMGRE

Actual use of

net proceeds
Proceeds during the Proceeds
Planned  unused as of year ended  unused as of
use of net 31 December 31 December 31 December

Business objective as stated in the Prospectus Proportion proceeds 2022 2023 2023
(ARM (AR# ON= (AE®

BER) BER) BER) BER)

(RMB (RMB (RMB (RMB

million) million) million) million)

() BROXEBRANRXELEBOERRENE 60% 6,960.3 5,457.4 826.0 46315

(i) Making strategic investments and acquisitions to expand

our property management and commercial operational

businesses
(i) RELERBOATE L THEERNSRILRE 15% 1,740.1 1,527.6 210.0 1,317.6
(ii) Pursuing strategic investment in providers of value-added

services and across the upstream and downstream

supply chain of our industry

(i) REEBRMAGANDEHR 15% 1,740.1 1,392.1 149.7 1,242.4
(iii) Investing in information technology systems and smart
communities

(iv) 8 EE2 R—MRRaAR 10% 1,160.0 - - -
(iv) Working capital and general corporate uses

100% 11,600.4 8,377.1 1,185.7 7,191.5
it Note:
1. BAMBEAA - BUHREFAR N EREF o 1. The sum of the data may not add up to the total due to

rounding.
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BETHAGTENRRTE  WEELBHAHE
%o M EHMATETAERNS T BRE
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BT EAAEE -

As announced by the Company on 25 March 2024, after
careful consideration and detailed evaluation of the
Group's operations and business strategy, the Board has
resolved to change the use of the unutilised portion of
the net proceeds as follows: (i) reallocate 43.2% of the
unutilised Net Proceeds of approximately RMB3,043.9
million on pursuing strategic investment in providers
of value-added services and across the upstream and
downstream supply chain of our industry, (ii) reallocate
17.6% of the unutilised Net Proceeds of approximately
RMB1,237.6 million on investing in information technology
systems and smart communities, whilst (iii) reducing
the allocation on making strategic investments and
acquisitions to expand our property management and
commercial operational businesses to 39.2% of the
unutilised Net Proceeds of approximately RMB2,758.5
million. The Directors expect to fully utilise the unutilised
net proceeds by 31 December 2027. For further details on
the Company’s use of net proceeds of the Listing and the
proposed changes to the use of net proceeds, please also
refer to the Company’s announcement published on 25
March 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code. Details of the role and work performed by the Audit
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in this annual report. The Audit Committee,
which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director (namely Mr.
CHAN Chung Yee Alan (Chairman), Mr. CHEUNG Kwok
Ching, Ms. LO Wing Sze and Mr. GUO Shiqging), have
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 with
the Company’s management and considered that such
statements have been prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and requirements with
sufficient disclosure. There had not been any significant
changes in accounting policies during the reporting period
and there are no prior period adjustments due to correction
of material errors during the Reporting Period.
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IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no significant events affecting the Group which
have occurred after 31 December 2023 and up to date of
this report.

On behalf of the Board
LI Xin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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B

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES MIXC
LIFESTYLE SERVICES LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (the
“‘Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 152 to 315, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement cash
flows for the year then ended and notes, comprising
material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 2(f)

B E AN T 14K 25t R 2(1)
Key audit matter

HREXER

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded goodwill
of RMB1,900 million in relation to business acquisitions,
which represented 6.8% of the Group’s consolidated

total assets.
RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H  BESEREBKERSE
BARBA100E8T 1§ BEHRBESNELEEMNG68% -

The goodwill impairment assessment, carried out by
management with the assistance of external valuer,
involves the exercise of significant management
judgements and estimations including those regarding
identification of cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
forecasted profit margin, short-term revenue growth and
long-term growth rates and discount rates.

R BB B B TR A R AT S R T E
AERBHMRME  SEENBARSELEN ((REE
BT )) - FIBRTER - B HM A R R R R R DA R
B o

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the assessment
of the recoverable amount of CGUs can be inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of significant
management judgement and estimation which increases
the risk of error or management bias.

BB EERER A HE SRREZTR - JTIARFHE
ReELSBMAKESRAERNEIRE  YRBITEEX
EIREHE R EF - S HBRERIEEER R HRRIE
e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzBERNAEERREERSE

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of

goodwill included the following:

B EEERECRENEZEFEEATRIA

o evaluating the appropriateness of the
identification of CGUs and the allocation of assets

to each CGU with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

. REBERTEHEAMRE
REENRERRSELEMNE

AHEBRIR S EEEL K
B

° for goodwill arising from acquisition in prior
years, performing a retrospective review, on a
sample basis, by comparing the key assumptions
included in the prior year’'s discounted cash flow
forecasts with the current year’'s performance to
assess the reasonableness of the prior year's
discounted cash flow forecasts and making
enquiries of management as to the reasons for
any significant variations identified and whether
there were any indications of management bias;

. HBEFERBEEANRE  MEETENES B
B E—FERRRSREDAT B HRERRRE
REENERBETEER AR E—FENFTRES
MEFANESEY  XYREREBEAMARNERNE
REFHHWRE > REAETAEEERINOTR

1

3

9
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B g A I (&) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

° assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer appointed by
management;

. AHBEEERITNINIMEEMNER - I REH
(N

° evaluating the reasonableness of short-term
revenue growth rates and forecasted profit
margin by comparing these with historical results;

. BB S EEETH R AR RRAERERTR
RFEENSIEIE

° with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialist, evaluating the appropriateness of
methodology adopted with the reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and reasonableness of the discount
rates by benchmarking against other comparable
companies in the same industry; and challenging
the reasonableness of long-term growth rates by
comparing with historical economic results;

o EABHEEZROHBET - 2ERTSHERRRE
SHEFTERAN T ARGEE M - WBBRRFTEEMAIE
LR A B B BRTAEITIR RS B - A RBB
R EEARNEBRE RAERENSEMIELE
£
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° evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis
of key assumptions adopted and assessing
the impact of changes in these assumptions
on the conclusions reached in the impairment
assessments and whether there were any
indications of management bias;

. A E IR ERMRMN AR BROSREDT - WG
ZEBRBRNBHESHREN EERNTE  UEE

BEEMEEERANTR
° testing the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of the goodwill impairment

assessments; and
. BIATE BB RENENEEERIE : &
° assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures

with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

. RBRTEHEARTE  FERENAEN -
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oH A A R I (4

Valuation of investment properties
REMENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 2(g)

BREEE I BEEEMN T 12 R 25BN E2(9)
Key audit matter

HREXER

As at 31 December 2023, the investment properties of
the Group were located in the Chinese Mainland with
a fair value of RMB3,788 million, which represented
approximately 13.6% of the Group’s consolidated total
assets.

MIBZ=F+-R=+—H  EXEZREVELRT
BA - AREER/RARKI788EET 16 EXERS
BEER13.6% °

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
was assessed by management based on independent
valuations prepared by external qualified property
valuer. Management’'s assessment of the fair values of
investment properties requires significant judgements
and estimates, particularly in relation to selecting the
appropriate valuation methodology, capitalisation rates
and prevailing market rents.

BEREERBEMENAABEDHEEEREINESERYE
HEMRHEA B (EETTE - EREFEREVENR
REEFRELERAE G LERABEREEGES
& BRNMEMEXRBITHHEEE ©

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzBERNAEERREERSE

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included the following:

BMBRRENEEENEZEFREN TSR

° obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuers
engaged by management and on which the
management’ assessment of the fair values of
investment properties was based on;

. RSt REREEERBNI B EGEMARREA
ERERBREHREME QA BEELFENELENG

B#RE

° assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external qualified property
valuer;

AHEINER A BB EMLEMNER - e RFEIN

with the assistance of our internal property
valuation specialists, discussing with the external
property valuer the valuation methodology,
evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards and
challenging the reasonableness of capitalisation
rates and prevailing market rents adopted in the
valuations, on a sample basis, by comparison
with available market data;

. EROEGHESKOBET - BN RGBT
WwihETE - 2EZRITEFHERINREF A ZIEN
BEMN - WA AR STISEURELE - $ih
EFRANERMNERRTHSESNAE LR
B
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(oA St i Ao S I () KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We identified the valuation of investment properties e comparing tenancy information, including
as a key audit matter because of the significance of committed rents and occupancy rates, provided
the balance to the consolidated financial statements by the Group to the external property valuer with
as a whole and the significant judgements involved in existing tenancy information, on a sample basis;
estimating the fair values of the properties, particularly and

in light of the current economic circumstances.

. LR ERERNEMEGEMEROEEER

HPIBREMEMERNAEREZEE - DARZAREY (PREEFEHSREEX) RREEHEER &
BREAUBHREAMESBEXN ' URETDENDABEYS
REXRAE - LHEERERINLEERE . assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures

with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

. BRERITEHEANBRE @ FFERENSEE -
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oH A A R I (4

Expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables
BEZRWARERACEBRRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Refer to notes 19 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 2(n)

B A BRI F 19 K31 AR EETEEHTF2(n)
Key audit matter

HREXER

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade
receivables with a total gross carrying amount of
RMB2,074 million, net of loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) of RMB82 million. The net carrying
amount of trade receivables represented 10.2% of the
current assets of the Group.

WZBZ=F+-RA=+—H EXEEZFEKFEAZE
FRHEASARE2074BET - HREHEEEE ([REIE
EER) ZBEEEBARBAEET - EHEEFIA R
EFEN BEEERBHEEZ10.2% °

The Group used judgement in making the assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the ECL allowance
calculation, based on the Group’s historical loss
experience, ageing profile of the receivables, existing
market conditions at the end of each reporting period.

BERERE ESEREERLR  BEFURZIRESRN R
REBRERRZBITTN  MELZERREERMEE
SRR AT H da A BB RS (R #I B

We identified ECL allowances of trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of the significance of
the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole and the assessment of the ECL allowance
is inherently subjective and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

MRZHBBEHBBEAMBHREMEBEA - BRAEEE
BRENTHEANE LBV BIEHERNEREHE - &%
PR ZREFREREEBERR G ARREZER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzBERNAEERREERSE

Our audit procedures in relation to the ECL allowances
for trade receivables included the following:

R FIE 5 R SOR T B S R R M B IR a5
TEE :

° evaluating the Group's policy and method for
estimating the ECL allowance with reference to
HKFRS 9;

. K2EFBUBMEERFEORE ERE(EFTTE
HEEBERE CBERKLTE

° assessing the accuracy and reliability of the

parameters used for the estimated ECL rates
by examining historical collection data of trade
receivables, and assessing, on a sample basis,
whether the trade receivables were categorised
in the appropriate time bands by comparing
individual items with sales invoices and other
underlying documentation;

. BBRER S EUGRIEBEURBIEF GG TRRE
EBBEEMASMEERENATES - A RBEBIE
RITA B B E R R MR I T LB - FhARRT
HESREKBERETIREENRRROE
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(oA St i Ao S I () KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

° re-performing the calculation of the ECL
allowances as at 31 December 2023 based on
the Group's accounting policy and method; and

. AR BERBEZEFABERTEZEFFEN_T_=
FH-_A=+—BAMNEBEHNEEERRE &

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of ECL allowances
for trade receivables with the reference to the
requirements of HKFRS 7.

. BREEBVBREEANETRORE - SHEEHES
EWRFREREEBRRERERS M HRERANEK

?go
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Chun Pong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_Z_=F+_A=t+—BILFE (UAREESIT)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi)

—Eo=F —E 8
2023 2022
i ARETT ARBETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 4 14,766,952 12,016,179
SHEBCAR Cost of sales (10,072,674) (8,405,245)
EF Gross profit 4,694,278 3,610,934
KEMEZ AABEZEWE  Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 12 39,353 43,260
g€ Other income and gains 5 576,502 579,899
mimHE RS Marketing expenses (284,707) (151,232)
B H Administrative expenses (949,805) (1,052,763)
H Other expenses (48,944) (37,939)
MEEA Finance costs 6(a) (117,202) (87,224)
e — & AR 2% A Share of profit of interest in an associate 16 4 595
EE—AetE#S 2 EH  Share of profit of interest in a joint venture 17 2,645 623
B A& R Profit before tax 6 3,912,124 2,906,153
PRS BRI X Income tax expenses 7 (969,484) (692,905)
FREFRZEKREE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 2,942,640 2,213,248
BT AR Attributable to:
NG £ Equity shareholders of the Company 2,928,749 2,206,126
FEE RS Non-controlling interests 13,891 7122
FRENREZEKEAE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 2,942,640 2,213,248
BREF Earnings per share 10
FRERREHE Basic and diluted for the year RMB128.3 cents RMB96.7 cents

AR#128.3% AR¥96.75

%157;.:31SEE’JMT?T%EXM—rﬁﬁ“#&%%E’]—*B The notes on pages 157 to 315 form part of these financial

o REFERMAQNRERB R ZKRBFBHR statements. Details of dividends payable to equity

FfEE28(b) ° shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for
the year are set out in note 28(b).



W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(UXAR#Z )
(Expressed in Renminbi)
—E= —E - _—F
2023 2022
B 5E AREET T ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE Non-current assets
W - BB &R Property, plant and equipment 11 551,857 569,133
AW Investment properties 12 3,788,000 3,366,000
BEE Intangible assets 13 1,573,593 1,470,018
FREEE Right-of-use assets 26(a) 112,161 102,524
[EES Goodwill 14 1,900,340 1,804,719
R—REE &R e 2 s Interest in an associate 16 599 595
R—REEELE I ER Interest in a joint venture 17 3,703 1,058
RIEHIEEE Deferred tax assets 27 117,122 124,604
TEfTFIA - HAbEUEIE KR Prepayments, other receivables and
HMEE other assets 20 15,595 1,451
TEBITFER Time deposits 22 202,097 2,558,608
FREBEERE Total non-current assets 8,265,067 9,998,710
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 202,745 147,973
H 5 FEWRIE R R T Trade and bill receivables 19 1,995,595 1,557,885
JEftFIE « HibEWRIER  Prepayments, other receivables and
Hih&E other assets 20 1,620,537 1,410,493
Z R FIRITIFR Restricted bank deposits 21 66,613 129,949
& HATE K Time deposits 22 4,052,766 =
ReRIBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21 11,580,159 12,592,832
MEEERAE Total current assets 19,518,415 15,839,132
RBAE Current liabilities
E SR FRE Trade payables 23 1,546,118 1,339,345
H At A5 5RIE K FE AT B F Other payables and accruals 24 4,121,078 4,651,067
eRAE Contract liabilities 25 2,171,612 1,831,887
HEBE Lease liabilities 26(b) 151,786 99,755
BRANBEFEEAY Financial liabilities at fair value through
PAEHEENESRAaE profit or loss 29 114,025 -
BN EAFR I8 Current taxation 235,088 117,507
mEE EETE Total current liabilities 8,339,707 8,039,561
REBEEFE Net current assets 11,178,708 7,799,571
EERERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 19,443,775 17,798,281
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(AARBZT)
(Expressed in Renminbi)

—E2-= —E-_—F
2023 2022
B sE AREET T ARETT
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEaE Lease liabilities 26(b) 2,267,323 2,301,962
BEAREBEGEEEES Financial liabilities at fair value
FFAZHESNERERE through profit or loss 29 221,131 390,860
Hfm% & Other liabilities 13,238 14,335
EERTBEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 906,033 765,392
FRBAFEES Total non-current liabilities 3,407,725 3,472,549
BEERE NET ASSETS 16,036,050 14,325,732
fE= EQUITY
[N Share capital 28(a) 152 152
] Reserves 28 15,948,084 14,279,577
AT ERBRREGER Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 15,948,236 14,279,729
R E R Non-controlling interests 87,814 46,003
ERAEE TOTAL EQUITY 16,036,050 14,325,732

R-E-_NNF=A-t+HBESEEeERKE Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

FJEE o directors on 25 March 2024.
A 6 % B
Li Xin Yu Linkang
Director Director
5% o

EAS7TEI5EMW T B ZEMERERA—I The notes on pages 157 to 315 form part of these financial
) statements.

N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE_Z_=F+_A=+—BILFE (UAREESIT)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi)

AR RRERRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
us RVEE  AbRE IERHEE gl a  FEREE  BRAB
Statutory Non
Share Share Merger surplus Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
ARBTR  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Fizt2e) (Wi2s)  (Kee)
(note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
RZB=Z%-F—A 28 Balance at 1 January 2022 152 11,640,394 (638,191) 210,897 2614628 13,887,880 1,145 13,889,025
SECCERREE. Changes in equity for 2022
EMEENRLE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 2,206,126 2,206,126 7122 2,213,248
ERER A Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 19,320 19,320
WEnELA Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = = = 18416 18416
“EC-FRERS Final dividend for 2021 = = = - (661719)  (661,719) - (661719)
ZECCERERE The interim dividend for 2022 - - - - (299328)  (299,328) - (299,328)
BHRE Special dividend - - - - (853230)  (853,230) - (853,230)
RRERUE Appropriation of retained profits = - = 107,369 (107,369) = = =
RZBZZ%#+=B=+-A Balance at 31 December 2022
R=%-=E-f-A and 1 January 2023
&8 152 11,640,394 (638,191) 378,266 2,809,108 14,279,729 46,003 14,325,732
TECCEEREE. Changes in equity for 2023
EMEENEER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 2,928,749 2,928,749 13,891 2,942,640
E Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 34,938 34,938
WEEMBAE (M3E30)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 30) - - - - - - (3,789) (3,789)
ZECCERERE Final dividend for 2022
(& 280(1)) (note 28b(i)) - - - - (151,279)  (751,279) - (751,279)
ZECERERE The interim dividend for 2023
(FizE80(i)) (note 28b(i)) - - - - (508,963)  (508,963) - (508,963)
mEERERERR S Dividend declared to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (3,229) (3,229)
RRERUE Appropriation of retained profits - - - 7020 (247,020) - - -
RZB-=E+ZA Balance at 31 December 2023
St-Rzék 152 11,640,394 (638,191) 625286 4,320,595 15,948,236 87,814 16,036,050

N

T3 °

F157E315 B MM EBEKZEPEHREH—I0

The notes on pages 157 to 315 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HEZZ-—F+-A=1+—RHILFE (UAREIT)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi)
—E2-= —E-—
2023 2022
Pt EE ARETT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RETEH Operating activities
KERSIRE Cash generated from operations 21 3,776,580 2,541,969
BT Tax paid (735,075) (650,936)
RETHRESRLSTFH Net cash generated from
operating activities 3,041,505 1,891,033
RESEE Investing activities
2B Interest received 342,316 308,945
KEMERME - BE R Payments of items of investment property
HRBIE B MR and property, plant and equipment (431,848) (114,207)
BV EEEBNR Payments for items of intangible assets (149,826) (6,838)
g4 by =YNG)| Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
(HIKREWERS) acquired 30 2,196 (1,263,502)
TF =16 A LA _E 2 A Placement of bank deposits with maturity
BITIFR over three months (1,600,000) =
HEME  BEREELR  Proceeds from disposal of items of
| AEEEMSHIA property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 10,379 11,464
RETEBFTARSEE Net cash used in investing activities (1,826,783) (1,064,138)
Al E B Financing activities
IR H A Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests 34,938 19,320
ERITEE New bank borrowings 21(c) - 307,540
BERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings 21(c) - (1,154,003)
EARFLE Interest paid 21(c) — (4,773)
BRAQRIERRER S Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the company (2,089,868) (962,775)
B IR R Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (3,229) -
MERK Payment for leases 21(c) (169,801) (140,982)
RETBHAARS T Net cash used in financing activities (2,227,960) (1,935,673)
RERBEEB/YRDF Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (1,013,238) (1,108,778)
R—A—BHWEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
ReZEY 21 12,592,832 13,698,238
IEEREE R Effect of foreign exchanges rates
changes 565 3,372
R+=—A=+—HHKEEK Cash and cash equivalents at
ReZEEY 31 December 21 11,580,159 12,592,832

o

|

F157E2 315 A MM EBR XS EHRERA—

statements.

The notes on pages 157 to 315 form part of these financial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHTTIEHES) » AAEREST)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

— R

EHEREFERAT ([AAA]) AR
—E—+FRATN\BEREHSTMK
SYHBERDF o ARQ R GEM I EE UL
APO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

FAR - ARBAREMBAR ([AEH])
EFERETEABESREEEEMREER
BHREEEE RMEEERT -

KRR R _ZE_ZEF+_-_ANLBRE
BHARZGAR AR ([BEZFT]) iR
EmEMmD -

ARBEFRES  ARANEREZERAA
REFENBERAR (EHEM])  Z
NARRASHESEMRILNARERA
IR 870N o i R NI E 0 S 38
ERABATEEFERAR ([HEE
1) AR AR BEAMEMKZN A
= o

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited
(the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May
2017. The registered office address of the Company
is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) was mainly engaged in the provision
of residential property management services and
commercial operational and property management
services in the Chinese Mainland.

The Company's shares became listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 December 2020 (the
“Listing”).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
immediate holding company of the Company is
China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”), a public
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
ultimate holding company of the Company is China
Resources Company Limited (“CRCL”), a company
incorporated in Chinese Mainland.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B EITIEAES) - UABRKEST)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2  HAEEIBUOR 2

ZEVBHRRERBAAEERNE
B BHRELER (FEMBRE
ZADETHRRE  BARBRS
ElREHBRERMAS (&
BEEAE ) RAEWMEER
BRI EEM B mEER - FEE
ZH([EBGFER]) RRER
BARRAURHIMRTE - ZFHBH
RN EBAMERZ BRI
Er EMRAMERRERE - A
SERAHERNGETHERN T X

%o

BEEGIHMAGERMETRASE
B2 A& s i E R AERK A H
REPRMN BB BHREERNE
Rl BRAERZEEAKREEHAN
ZRIFTSI B E R SR E A SRR
REY  ERBRZFVHHRE
A BREMENKE2(C) °

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 comprise
the Group and the Group’s interests in an
associate and a joint venture.

The financial statements are presented in
RMB rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that investment property
(see note 2(g)) and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (see note 2(0)).
are stated at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

159



160 B UEEHEE  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B SITHBHZESN - UARBEZT)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
2  EASEIEOR(&) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

K’il AT AT Ef AT KRR

c B FHERTRERTIER EIERT
163%!’]%@?? BB AEHERT AR
TR ERT R HARIRERR - SRR AT &
AERE AR RYE G @BEKREE
Alg M RT /Y B MR R
FERR. ©

FREEEERATEMBHRESE
AR L B B RREERTE
MHE ARG T RERRENEER
HORE S e BN HIFES ©

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 3.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The HKICPA has issued the following new
and amended HKFRSs that are first effective
for current accounting period of the Group
of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting
policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of
accounting policies

o Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome
taxes: related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

° Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome
taxes: International tax reform — Pillar
Two model rules

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B SFTHEEE SN + YN REEFT)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
2  EASEIEOR(&) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

MERRAKEEHNER - 2
AEEAXAZELEERMFTZ
AEmE - BARNEBHENER
ZHENFELT R -
BHZER - HBRRNMBEREK
HIEHIEFIGE BEF AKRA MK
Bk EEERITHIRKREER
ke

SEARRIBNERERZS - IR
EERNREIMBRZ S E SR ER
REBWARAL (INER WS
&%Ehﬂﬁﬁ%uﬁ% EER

NN S MEENRERER
LR FER W AR A 7 X E A -
HERRRE T FERETRNIE
e

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the
date on which control commences until the
date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised income and expenses (except
for foreign currency transaction gains or
losses) arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) either at fair value or at the
NCI's proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NCI are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. NCI in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
NCI and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of NCI and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes 2(0),
depending on the nature of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B EITIEAES) - UABRKEST)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2  EASEIEOR(&) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

AREERHERRNERZEE I
WA LG RleARSER
X5 e

AN SR B RSP B R Rl HE Il - H
ERUIEAMNBARNEERA
& AREMAAREIF R E S R
iz El D © FREL et E R
RIBEAFER - NERKRIEHIHEE
ERDABENAK B AR DS
AR EERE -

RAR BB BAR R AR B A A
& Ty R A AR 2O B B 1 I BR
(RMEE2(K)) °

Changes in the Group's interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary, and any related NCI| and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or the Company has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over the financial
and operating policies. A joint venture is
an arrangement in which the Group or the
Company has joint control, whereby the
Group or the Company has the rights to the
net assets of the arrangement, rather than
rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities.

An interest in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method.
They are initially recognised at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequently,
the consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of those
investees, until the date on which significant
influence or joint control ceases.
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When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method, together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate
or the joint venture, after applying the ECL
model to such other long-term interests where
applicable.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with equity-accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an interest in an associate or a joint
venture is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. The Group determines
that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the previously held equity interest is
remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost,
being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The
Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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Investment properties are interests in land
and buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair values of investment properties
are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.
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Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost or valuation of items of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building 30 - 40 years
Machinery equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Other equipment 3 - 10 years

Leasehold improvements At lease term
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Construction in progress represents plant and
machinery under construction or installation,
which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.
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Expenditure incurred on projects to develop
new products is capitalised and deferred
only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding three years,
commencing from the date when the products
are put into commercial production.

- Software

Software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses (see note 2(k)) and
is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 2 to 10
years.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

- Research and development

Costs associated with research and
development software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are
recognised as intangible assets where
the following criteria are met:

° it is technically feasible to
complete the software so that it
will be available for use

° management intends to
complete the software and use
or sell it

° there is an ability to use or sell

the software

o it can be demonstrated how the
software will generate probable
future economic benefits
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. BES A R E B . the expenditure attributable
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development can be reliably
measured.

Bt BEHE T EE Directly attributable costs that are

EEKABREREER AR capitalised as part of the software

HERAZNEE S - include employee costs and an

appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

BT FREKARERER Capitalised development costs are

BEEAR  WHEBEERH# recorded as intangible assets and

{55 PR RE FE BB T DABESH o amortised from the point at which the

asset is ready for use.

A LGN REE Research expenditure and
Bk FAES HEEERE development expenditure that
RERAXZ - ZAERAH do not meet the criteria in above
R ABEXATEREER are recognised as an expense
HEwRAREE ° as incurred. Development costs

previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

= Customer relationships acquired in
business combinations

Customer relationships acquired in
business combinations are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date
and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives
of 15 years. The Group estimates the
useful life of the customer relationships
and determines the amortisation
periods with reference to its industry
experience and taking into account
the customer turnover history and
expectation of the renewal pattern of
property management contracts.

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Other intangible assets, including patents and
trademarks, that are acquired by the Group
and have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see note
2(k)).

Amortisation is calculated to write off the
cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives, if any, and is
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

The Group assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The Group applies a single recognition
and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

- Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets
are recognised at the
commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the
commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset
transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised
at the commencement date
of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets

The Group applies the short-
term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term
leases (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment
and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.



MBS B AE China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited ] 83

2  EATENEOR(4) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

EAEEEASLEAA K
SERHEMRE (KHEE
R ERE) KEEES A
DTHERREHESRMEM

= ©

MEAEBYABREE
FIT 76 RE PRI &5 O B K BB D
BB & B ROEEFES
KEeME - MaRes™d
ERFFHERD AEH
RHREBLEERE
EHERRESEE S
7o HEWARBERRIE
BAORIIREBIBELE
HEFAZRERE REAM
EEBERAN RS - B
ERhkZHEEEHERE
ER MR BEERXATIETA
HEEEMER@E IRV
HEAZREESWARF
B JTEHER - ARBEET)
AP R EX &Y HA ) R B BB S
YA e

5 10 BE B EE R B S Y
&R By BB B o] e o o
TEREANEE - AKR7
FRAETE -

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of
its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income
due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.
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When the Group is an intermediate
lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the recognition
exemption in the statement of financial
position, the Group classifies the
sublease as an operating lease.

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
on: financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits, trade
receivables and other receivables).
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ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Generally,
credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash
shortfalls between the contractual and
expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following rates if
the effect is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are the
portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12
months); and

lifetime ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.
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The Group measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
except for the following, which are
measured at 12-months ECLs:

- financial instruments that are
determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial instruments
(including loan commitments
issued) for which credit risk
(i.e. the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since
initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
the financial instrument's credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition and when measuring
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed
credit assessment, that includes
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.
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REBRESREEBR The Group considers a financial asset

THERBEL - to be in default when:

- B AT KA - the debtor is unlikely to pay its
REB A EEEIR credit obligations to the Group
ER(WNEBR)E1T in full, without recourse by
HHOBE R NEHEE the Group to actions such as
EBHUBAEEBHNE realising security (if any is held);
B 3 or

= TREEEAHIRX o = the financial asset is 90 days

past due.

BHEEEERE®REH ECLs are remeasured at each reporting

HETENFENRRES date to reflect changes in the financial

BT BB YmERNARS instrument’s credit risk since initial

FEERRES  BHEE recognition. Any change in the ECL

EESBENTEMNESHTR amount is recognised as an impairment

B ER AR E WK gain or loss in profit or loss.

B -
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or being more than 90
days past due;

the restructuring of a loan
or advance by the Group on
terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

it is probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, lease receivable
or contract asset is written off to
the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the asset becomes
when the Group otherwise determines
that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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its non-financial assets (other than
property carried at revalued amounts,
investment property, inventories and
other contract costs, contract assets
and deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash-generating
units (“CGUs”"). Goodwill arising from
a business combination is allocated
to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.
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An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. They are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the resulting
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
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Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 2(k)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value as follows:

- Parking spaces

Parking spaces are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

- Other inventories

Other inventories, comprising
ornamental plants and other materials,
are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2(u)(i)). A contract liability
is also recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such latter cases, a
corresponding receivable is also recognised
(see note 2(n)).

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 2(u)(i)).
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A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration and only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant
financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are

subsequently stated at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, and lease liabilities.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss include financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS
9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except for the gains or losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification
to the consolidated income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated income statement does
not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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After initial recognition, trade payables
and other payables and accruals are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions
that are held for meeting short-term cash
commitments, and other short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management
are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL (note

2(k)(i))-

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.
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Short-term employee benefits are
expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid
if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are
expensed as the related service is
provided.

Termination benefits are expensed
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group
recognises costs for a restructuring.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax expense comprises current tax
and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income (“OCI").

Current tax comprises the estimated tax
payable or receivable on the taxable income
or loss for the year and any adjustments to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any
tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset
only if certain criteria are met.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to
investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture to the extent that
the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future;

- taxable temporary differences arising
on the initial recognition of goodwill;
and

= those related to the income taxes
arising from tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted to implement
the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The Group recognised deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities separately in
relation to its lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are
determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount
of taxable temporary differences is insufficient
to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals
of existing temporary differences, are
considered, based on the business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.
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Where investment properties are carried
at their fair value in accordance with note
12, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date, unless the
property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at
the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only if certain criteria are met.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Generally provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised when
the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a
weighting of possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured
at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract, which is determined based on the
incremental costs of fulfilling the obligation
under that contract and an allocation of other
costs directly related to fulfilling that contract.
Before a provision is established, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract (see note 2(k)

(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain.
The amount recognised for the reimbursement
is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

The Group provides residential
property management services and
commercial operational and property
management services. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognised
when services are rendered to the
customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange of
those services.
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When the consideration in a contract
includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2  EASEIEOR(&) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

- FEMEER RS = Residential property
management services

TEMEERERE Residential property
B (VDEERE management services comprise:
R . (i)Y (i) property management
¥ EmaEER services; (ii) value-added
% R EmIgE services to property developers;
AR o and (iii) community value-added
services.
MEETERBEE Property management services
BiEHKEEZDFE mainly include security,
REMYERHE cleaning and greening, repair
®BRBREE - and maintenance services and
HIEEERE AR customer services to residential
EFPIR o s properties and other properties.
ERERY  A5E For property management
BAMEHEN RS services, the Group bills a fixed
AL EESER amount for services provided on
B UHAEESF a monthly basis and recognises
EHEAZFEAHED it as revenue in the amount to
TERHENBEER which the Group has a right to
ErEeEER invoice and that corresponds
BN - EEWMHE directly with the value of
B ) 35 1R AR 7% K performance completed.
AEBE =BG EE - Property management service
AEBEERESE income from residential
A REBBREEZ properties is managed on lump
B ERMES sum basis, where the Group
BEREENEEE acts as a principal. The Group
N entitles to revenue at the value

of property management service
fee received or receivable.



SRR AW China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited — 2()9

2  EATENEOR(4) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

HHYEFAERNIBER
BEREEIMNAEHE
BR% - BRI RER
AR - BB EEfE AR 75 & B
iR (EREEEFLE R
TEBENER) AKHE
HEFBELHETERRS
WER LAEFELA
BRE MAKREREEA
B e IR 8 B R K &
BERR - AR TP R
B RO FEA S B IR A A
73 WEEREEAE—
B RAEAEEE EH
ARG REMER -

Value-added services to property
developers mainly include pre-delivery
marketing services, preliminary
planning and preparation services,
preliminary consultancy services
and other services including housing
trust and vacant unit management.
The Group agrees the price for each
service with the customers upfront and
issues the monthly bill to the customers
which varies based on the actual level
of service completed in that month.
Revenue from value-added services is
recognised over time, in the amount to
which the Group has a right to invoice,
because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.
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For community value-added services
including community living services
and brokerage and asset services,
revenue is recognised when the related
services are rendered. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately
when the community value-added
services are rendered to the customer.
Sales of goods are included in asset
services. Revenue from sales of
goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, generally
on the acceptance of the goods by the
customer. Revenue from brokerage
services is recognised at the point in
time when the services are rendered
and accepted by the customers.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

- Commercial operational and
property management services

Commercial operational and
property management services
are provided to property
developers, and owners or
tenants of i) shopping malls and
ii) office buildings.

For shopping malls, the Group
provides:

Property management and other
services, mainly including security,
cleaning and greening, repair and
maintenance and customer services for
shopping malls. Property management
fees are charged on a lump sum basis
or commission basis. The Group bills
a fixed amount for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises it
as revenue in the amount to which the
Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.
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For property management service
income from properties managed
under commission basis, the Group
considers its obligation is only limited
to arranging and monitoring the
services provided by other parties
to the property owners as an agent
and accordingly recognises the
commission, which is calculated based
on fixed fee on a per sg.m. basis, as
its revenue. On a commission basis,
the Group is not entitled to any excess
of the property management fees
paid by customers (after deducting
the fees receivable by the group
as the property manager) over the
costs and expenses associated
with the provision of services to the
shopping malls. Therefore, the Group
does not recognise any direct cost
under property management service
contracts charged on a commission
basis in general. Such costs are borne
by the property owners.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Commercial operational services,
including pre-opening management
and post-opening operation
management services. The Group
charges pre-opening management
service fees at a fixed rate per
square meter or per monthly rent, or
an annual fixed fee depending on
the nature of services rendered. The
Group collects fees from providing
post-opening operation management
services typically as a percentage of
the rental income, operating income
and/or operating profit of the relevant
shopping malls. Revenue from
commercial operational services is
recognised in the amount to which
the Group has a right to invoice that
corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

For office buildings, the Group
provides property management and
other services, mainly including
security, cleaning and repair and
maintenance services. Property
management fees are charged on a
lump sum basis. The Group bills a
fixed amount for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises
it as revenue in the amount to which
the Group has a right to invoice that
corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.
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= P R EEE — Sales of goods and properties

KEEm &Y EE Revenue from the sales of goods
ERNRAREEE and properties is recognised at
HliEEE TEPH the point in time when control

e B RERR © of the asset is transferred to the

customer.
= KrEHERS KA = Rental income from operating
leases

KERERS KA Rental income from operating
REHANZEHE leases is recognised in profit
REZANER © FT or loss on a straight-line basis
ERMNHEEER over the term of the lease.
HEHRNERAHES Lease incentives granted are

WA @5 Aa L recognised as an integral part
BW—& D o TIKE of the total rental income, over

R FE B A E # A] the term of the lease. Variable
BHEN AT lease payments that do not

B #) & 5t B AR 3R depend on an index or a rate
BIA o are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they
are earned.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised
on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument of
the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Government grants

Government grants are
recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

When a foreign operation is disposed of
in its entirety or partially such that control,
significant influence or joint control is lost, the
cumulative amount in the exchange reserve
related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. On disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating
to that foreign operation that have been
attributed to the NCI shall be derecognised,
but shall not be reclassified to profit or loss.
If the group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary but retains control, then the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
is reattributed to NCI. When the Group
disposes of only part of an associate or joint
venture while retaining significant influence
or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

- has control or joint control over
the Group;

- has significant influence over
the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

- The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others);

- One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

- Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party;

- One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

- The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

- The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a);

- A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity); and

- The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.
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Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

A measure of assets and liabilities for each
reportable segment should be disclosed if
such amounts are provided regularly to the
CODM.
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3 aruhAE PGt 3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

ERAAEEOEHRFBET
EIRE DR AT R HI8 -

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, management has made
the following accounting judgements:

AEEEREREMEA
BRIVAEMERE - R
5 BB B R B R AR
ZEHE - TS
AMEzZRBESTHEIE
By EHEEERBRE
TERBRYEZ B
DRAEBE AEBECDE
EHERBZEFLEYER
BERWENBATDERKR
Rk@®k - bEERE
FIAZLEHEAR °

The group has entered into commercial
property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation
of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of
the economic life of the commercial
property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not
amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the
significant risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of these properties which
are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
3 @nbHEr R AhEC &) 3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

AEBEZODERESR
RIEPERENHESR -
AEBEFNGHRETEE
BREESENKLHERE
HHE - Bl EZBMA
HHETEBERRIESE
REBRNEBEER - &
MEBE  HBEEEKRE
SR IR B 2 I %6
EA - YERFEETESX
FITEEEHRITHER
Ereevae ) (Bl - EEX
EHERNENUEEE
ENEANES)  AEREH
EXHAHEMR -

HRZEEEHHEZEN
EE2N AEEBEEH
EREHESENEERDN
— 8D mFHEMTH
BIHERE - WEA A
BRm AgHEEEN
EXTHZE -

The Group has several lease contracts
that include extension and termination
options. The Group applies judgement
in evaluating whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either
the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not
to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate the lease (e.g., construction
of significant leasehold improvements
or significant customisation to the
leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period
as part of the lease term for leases of
machinery due to the significance of
these assets to its operations. These
leases have a short non-cancellable
period and there will be a significant
negative effect on production if a
replacement is not readily available.
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BEEAKEERREEEXS
AIREBAZTEZEEMAE
HEAZEEREBER  UEY
XEERRFERNA R K
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e

AEEREBEEHGI M E
BEEME - REEHHIE
M AEEEZEEE
A ABTETBEERMETR
HYMEEERY - LB
WRBREENYEER
EmRASHEKRE KA
HEYEEREKANER R
HRBEA - SLiREBEM S
BERNYMEZMEER
RBUYA > AEERBE
BEEERNAREANH
MEHFEREREMBETTRA
EXRHEWRE - Bt
MeERBERA  He
BEY I AKEEEMRFTHE -

3

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Determining whether the Group
is acting as a principal or as an
agent requires consideration of all
relevant facts and circumstances,
and the contractual terms of property
management service contracts.

The Group manages properties either
under lump sum basis or commission
basis. Under lump sum basis, the
Group acts as a principal and is
primarily responsible for providing
property management services to the
property owners, and recognises the
property management fee received or
receivable from property owners as
its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of
services. For property management
service income from properties
managed under commission basis, the
group considers its obligation is only
limited to arranging and monitoring
the services provided by other parties
to the property owners as an agent
and accordingly recognises the
commission, which is calculated based
on fixed fee on a per sq.m. basis, as
its revenue.
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(BRHTTIEHES) » AAREST)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3

kA B Atist (&)

AT RBRERREARKEEME
ETHEEMFTRRZEERR - H
RATEEZAH T — AMBRFEH
BERBBEREEFELECIERN
EXER -

AEEERBREREEFTE
B RUHERERER
MEHEEER - BEX
DEREBBEUEBEEKRN
MZ AT P o EA R (Bliz
e -~ RBEE - BFE
BRFRE D) B PRE

B -

BERERNIIERASE
BHNBATEBERENXRMIE
o 7N &2 B % 4 IE B e LA
BRAEMEERAEBER
EBERRER - Pl H8
H T8R4 8 AR 1 2R
B - AREEZUENHE
B AELSEHRS

AT -

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

The key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

The Group uses a provision matrix
to calculate ECLs for trade and bill
receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, service type, customer
type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which
can lead to an increased number of
defaults, the historical default rates are
adjusted.
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3 eruhHE P Aht (&) 3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

BEBRENE - AL
ERARBHEESBZ
MHOAAETHEENG
e EHEEBENSE
IR B & TEOR A8 B AR Y
BEHRAHE - AEED
BERFEBBLCRHR KA
KOEMRR MK TERRE
PREHEERENER
BEEASEENE S EIK
B KRR R A & H A B
WHRENEREEBSEN
B R RIS E
BesE19 R Ffd5E20 ©

The assessment of the correlation
among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future.
The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s trade and bill receivables
and other receivables is disclosed in
note 19 and note 20 to the financial
statements, respectively.



226  “® O SWEEHE  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRS1T18AE 5] » AN EHST)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
3 @nbHEr R AhEC &) 3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

REME (BIEEREARE
BEREAEMBEEDE)R
REMBMRARFRAA
BEAER  SBEEEAN
T12 - WEMENRAARE
E2E—ZBUBEELE
A EMERAY REBET
MRHETRENMER
BEEMEZSYEETH
HEEE ZEBXRNE
F 3k F) 2 b 7] B E 205
ARG BRI RO ARE
EREMENRAREBEE
b - WHEHERESFEEER
REMEEKERPRE
MAREBEED - REY
ENRAABEEFBERYH
WA 12 E -

Investment properties, including the
leasehold property held as a right-
of-use asset, are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair value, details
of which are disclosed in note 12.
The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by
reference to valuations conducted on
these properties by an independent
and professionally qualified valuer
using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favorable
or unfavorable changes to these
assumptions may result in changes in
the fair value of the Group's investment
properties included in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
the corresponding adjustments to the
changes in fair value reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
Details of the fair value of investment
properties are disclosed in note 12 to
the financial statements.
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3 eruhHE P Aht (&) 3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

AEBEREHREHRTMGE
MEFEREERERHE
EARETR - EBTR
2% B B T B BE DA
B HFSREEETR
BRAHA BEEAREE
EEBEUNMRAEBBHEA
Wl €5 (Bl AR EER D
ERAEFEREEMEF
mEReE) R - BFEER
B ARBEBRLEKSE
M EERBEUEENRQ
FRBPREBEARINE
EXFNRBEHRE - XA
BRMmSERRELESR
ENEERN - £1TE A
EBEFER BEEMBA
Bt EERBRELEM
WBFRERERE @ X
EERBEEOFTRER - LAG
EZEHeRnENRE -

The Group assesses whether there
are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financia
assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value-
in-use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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3 @nbHEr R AhEC &) 3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

AEEELBFHEHE The Group determines whether
EEEERE - BEERKY goodwill is impaired at least on
WA ENRESELE an annual basis. This requires an
U REBEETHE - estimation of the value in use of the
HEEAEBEER  AEE cash-generating units to which the
FEMHKEREELE goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
UWEHRRRESRE - value in use requires the Group to
R EZRE IR X make an estimate of the expected
EZEReRENEE - future cash flows from the cash-
BEFHBHNMGE14 - generating units and also to choose

a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Further details are given in
note 14.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
REPORTING

Information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (“CODM”) of
the Group, was specifically focused on
the segments of the residential property
management services and commercial
operational and property management
services. These divisions are the basis
on which the Group reports its segment
information under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments.

- Residential property management

services: The Group provides
residential property management
services to residential properties and
other properties. Such services mainly
include (i) property management
services; (ii) value-added services
to property developers; and (iii)
community value-added services.

- Commercial operational and property

management services: Commercial
operational and property management
services are provided to property
developers, owners or tenants of
shopping malls and office buildings.
For shopping malls, the Group
provides property management and
other services, commercial operational
services and commercial subleasing
services. For office buildings,
the Group provides commercial
operational services, property
management and other services.
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4 g oo s (4 ) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

REPORTING (continued)

D EPERABIEE D EBER IR A
FREUH) R M R E LB
B RN EIFEFEL R
TELERREFAGEASE
BEEeRREBOBAK
PRS- a0 E U A R e
(TBEERAAEEFER
HEFHFAEHBEZS
RMABNAREBEZESK
@) DER—HEeElE
ZEE - TR REA
ER - 0HBARESER
AEELERRERE N
PEREREFERENG

AEECDEIDHMER L
BT NEXFEHZ2
Ao

Segment results represent the profit
earned or loss incurred before taxation
by each segment without allocation
of income or expenses which are not
recurring in nature or unrelated to the
CODM'’s assessment of the Group’s
operating performance, e.g., other
income and gains excluding gain
on changes in fair value of financial
liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, share of loss of a
joint venture, administration expenses,
and other expenses. Segment
revenues and results are the measures
reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The Group has restated segment
information comparative figures to
conform with the presentation in the
current year.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

REPORTING (continued)

KA &

REVENUE AND SEGMENT

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

and results by operating and reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2023

BmEEE
EEE &Y ES
R NS st
Commercial
Residential operational
property  and property
management management
services services Total
AR¥ETTT ARBETTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue
RBEEFERMNBA Revenue from contracts with
customers
ER—RBHER Recognised at a point in time
672,354 17,812 690,166
E—ERERRAER Recognised over time 8,898,480 4,699,231 13,597,711
9,570,834 4,717,043 14,287,877
R EH RO A B A Revenue from other sources
HEB WA Rental income 29,778 449,297 479,075
REIMBEF A Revenue from external customers 9,600,612 5,166,340 14,766,952
DEEE Segment results 1,729,125 2,950,541 4,679,666
JEMR—FE & &% MEE  Share of profit of interest in a joint
25 F venture 2,645
fE(R—FBE 2 AR Share of profit of interest in an
2% associate 4
EAth U A R Y as Other income and gains 525,519
ROBFX Unallocated expenses (1,283,456)
ROWMBEER Unallocated finance costs (12,254)
BRELARER Profit before tax 3,912,124
=N Capital expenditure* 235,028 346,646 581,674
5 EXARASTBEABYE  BFEREE * The capital expenditure consists of additions to
AR A E - property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets.
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4

Wi B 43 e v ( 4 )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
REPORTING (continued)

(a) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

LON Revenue

REEFERHEA Revenue from contracts with

customers
EX-BEER Recognised at a point in time 674,609 = 674,609
TE—BREENER Recognised over time 7,104,614 3,927,177 11,031,791
7,779,223 3,927 177 11,706,400

REEMIRHRA Revenue from other sources
HelA Rental income 22,831 286,948 309,779
REMBEFHWA Revenue from external customers 7,802,054 4,214 125 12,016,179
AREE Segment results 1,472,787 2,098,956 3,571,743
ElE—RaEtEER Share of profit of interest in a

iRl joint venture 623
[EfE— R A A Share of profit of interest in an

-yl associate 595
Hib A Rz Other income and gains 579,899
AABAX Unallocated expenses (1,241,934)
RAORHTBER Unallocated finance costs (4,773)
BB AR Profit before tax 2,906,153
EREY* Capital expenditure* 101,557 19,488 121,045
* EARLBEAEDE  BE * The capital expenditure consists of

RREAR BV EE -

(i HERER

(i)

HRASERBIBEL
A ZEIRE P E AR
X% AAKEERPE
EEBURTEAM -
LI 2 51| b [ E Y o

additions to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

Geographic information

No geographical information is
presented as the Group’s revenue from
the external customers is derived solely
from its operation in Chinese Mainland
and all non-current assets of the Group
are located in Chinese Mainland.
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4 Mg o s (4 ) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

REPORTING (continued)

—E_=F B F
2023 2022
AREFTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERAMKERELERE155 Revenue from contracts with
HEANEFESRMHKA customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15
REEFERHKA Revenue from contracts with
customers
EEYHEEE RS Residential property management
services
— MEBTERY — Property management services 7,245,377 5,572,668
— it g E AR — Community value-added services 1,188,638 841,089
— STEYEREHAIEE - Value-added services to
il property developers 828,883 973,404
—HEEY - BAREM — Sales of goods, carparks and
others 307,936 392,062
9,570,834 7,779,223
BEBERMEEERE Commercial operational and
property management services
— B — Shopping malls 2,789,010 2,195,375
—BFiE — Office buildings 1,928,033 1,731,802
4,717,043 3,927,177
REEFERNBALE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 14,287,877 11,706,400
REH MR A Revenue from other sources
WA Gross rental income
— NHURR I BN R a4 - Variable lease payments that do not
AEAENR depend on an index or rate 71,960 69,435
—HtBAENK — Other lease payments, including
(BEBEEMZ) fixed payments 407,115 240,344
REE MR U A EER Total revenue from other sources 479,075 309,779
#UA Total revenue 14,766,952 12,016,179
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4 Wt b sy (&) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
REPORTING (continued)

Bz Z-_=%+=-A=+—8H For the year ended 31 December 2023,
IEFEE  REFKREZERAR KRR revenue from the ultimate holding company
AMBAR (ERSAMNEED and the fellow subsidiaries (along with their
E¥RBENT) NBRABARKE respective joint ventures and associates)
4,409,618,000 0 (ZE = —4F : amounted to RMB4,409,618,000 (2022:
AR#3,759,577,0007T) ° BR2R RMB3,759,577,000). Other than the revenue
B&EERARRRRNB QR from the ultimate holding company and the
WASN  BHEZEZ=FR_F= fellow subsidiaries, no revenue derived from
ZEFTZA=T—RHILFE & sales to a single customer or a Group of
REHE-—RPHZARIEHIN— customers under common control accounted
AR IHENR AL R EBITAR for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for

10% 3 PA £ o the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

—EBE-=F B F
2023 2022
Pt & ARKETTT AREFTT
Notes RMB'000 RMB’'000
FEUA Interest revenue 395,186 424,580
T 78 Bh Government grants (i) 95,743 105,142
HEME  BER Net gain on disposal of items of
BAEIEE TR property, plant and equipment 3,559 452
LB B Operating subsidies (i) - 29,116
BAREEFEHAEEE Gain on changes in fair value of
FFAEBERZ financial liabilities measured at fair
TRAERNANER value through profit or loss
HEen 50,983 =
Hith Others 31,031 20,609
576,502 579,899
e - Notes:

(i)

B S M R R E AR T B A IR 4 B
FIAGRRFBIRNKROEME(E - #
B2 E 40 B A B A0 R AR IR IR S
REIR -

R-ZB-—F ZEHPERAEER
CRERENETYEERLR ([BiK
FIHA ) MEEHIRE -

Government grants received for which related
expenditure has not yet been incurred are included
in other liabilities the consolidated statements
of financial position. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

In 2022, operating subsidies referred to cash
received for managing certain property projects in
relation to the reform of state-owned enterprises
(“SOE Reform Projects”).
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(BRHTTIEHES) - AAERBEST)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6 AR AT A1) 6 1) 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBHBRBATEF &R (GEA) The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after
Ty &EIRERTE - charging/(crediting):
(a) MKER (a) Finance costs

ARBTT ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000
HAbF 2 HX Other interest expense - 4,773
HEAEFR S Interest on lease liabilities 117,202 82,451

117,202 87,224
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6  FRETGIA( 4 ) 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)
(b) BIRAX (b) Staff costs

ARBT T ARBETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000
SBINA - BIEESHM Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments 4,922,971 4,451,141
HR FEHRE BB AR Costs related to defined
contributions scheme 437,326 331,398
5,360,297 4,782,539
Mid: BE_T_=FR-_T__F Note: During the year ended 31 December
+ZA=+—HLEE ~& 2023 and 2022 the Group had no forfeited
B 3 £ 7] AR AR - FEH contributions available to reduce its
WMARFEFRERKESFTE A H contributions to the pension schemes in

E ) future years.
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6  FRETATHA( A) 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)
—E_=F —E-__F
2023 2022
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B IR AR IS A A AR Cost of services provided 9,813,510 8,236,307
EEFSNKAR Cost of inventories sold 259,164 168,938
ME - B REREITE (M3E11) Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (note 11) 102,051 91,697
FAEEENE (Mizto6e(a)) Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (note 26(a)) 59,431 57,006
Em A EREH (FIEE13) Amortisation of intangible
assets (note 13) 113,436 85,829
ZHRNFIER ERZERE  Impairment of trade and bill
(FfE19) receivables (note 19) 32,160 6,895
TEfTFRIE  H A EUGRIE 2 Impairment of prepayments,
HEmEERE (Ki5E20) other receivables and other
assets (note 20) 7,028 5,870
WoRF 8 =0 211 %E (M5E18) Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value (note 18) (207) (533)
BN (Yezk),/ BE - B8 Exchange (gains)/loss, net (6,064) 7,981
RTAHEBEFEZ Short-term or variable lease
A AT EEENK payments not included in the
(Ft3E26(b)) measurement of lease liabilities
(note 26(b)) 44,520 44,621
=S AN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,550 3,000
WEYEERHE S Rentals receivable from
investment properties (449,297) (286,948)
W BREMEEERY Less: direct outgoings from
investment properties 145,267 112,629

(304,030) (174,319)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AREFTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BNEARY IR Current taxation 835,125 623,958
H U+ IR E R PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 2,632 17,796

([ 3B ER )

RERIA (MzE27) Deferred taxation (note 27) 131,727 51,151
FRBIBL HEE Total tax charge for the year 969,484 692,905

AEBEAREREERNANEENX
B AR PN MR & 2 BA% RDA
B BRI P A SIS i M PR
B - REFSHEABR LR
ERAUER  AEEETRHAS
BERRBREZESEMKINE
BHABMEMMSH

REBBERFARBBEENG
SR HEAIR16.5% (ZE ==
F:16.5%) W RFAREEFEG
B ARAEBRBE_T-_=F
+ZA=+—BIEFENERES
ELEIRER - O\ B AR
FREHEE (-4 - |) -

The Group is subject to income tax on an
entity basis on profits arising in or derived
from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands,
the entities within the Group incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
are not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
at the rate of 16.5% (2022:16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).
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7 FEBIBASC (A )

HE-T-_=F+-HA=+—H1t
FE AEERTEAMMEEN
B AR —RREZ25% (ZE ==
F:25%) BERGMPEARILRM
B ([RE]) DERMEH ([
B EAREENE THEAM
Bt A A (AL RYIBTER B IR
RIS AIERE - AEEM T ERTE
RNBRERFCEER) IRBES
T+ -_A=t+—RHLFEER
15% B EEB RBMDEREN -

RIFCPEARAMBE R ERAFHR
EY R BEAMKZNINERE
ERABEREETRNVREAR
10% BB RGN TFEHIBL - X R E
B-ZTN\F-A—HRER &
AR-FETLF+_A=+—H%
BEA o fih B A RINEIRE F
FERDEBE BRI BRKHE » A
ERBENEMBRE - BAKH
mE  BERRERES

TR EHRBEERET EARNR
BARRIERERE bt - TR
ERCIRERDZRERREL
B WA TANERIAR -

7

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in
Chinese Mainland are generally subject to
the People’s Republic of China (‘the PRC”)
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") rate of 25%
(2022: 25%) for the year ended 31 December
2023, excluding certain subsidiaries of the
Group in Chinese Mainland which are either
located in shenzhen gianhai shenzhen-Hong
Kong modern service industry cooperation
zone, western cities or qualified as Small and
Micro Profit Enterprises and were subject to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established
in Chinese Mainland. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Chinese Mainland and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.

The provision for LAT is estimated according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant
the PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable deductions.
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

“EB=fF —EF

2023 2022

ARBFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

bR B B A Profit before tax 3,912,124 2,906,153

BERI BRI A EFIE (B Notional tax on profit before taxation,

AERRMNERAVEE) calculated at the rates applicable to

the jurisdictions concerned 807,135 594,913

LIk b Expenses not deductible for tax 932 5,854
FEMEHMNEMKAN  Other permanent differences affecting

=5 current income tax 38,639 45,646
TRIAMER - MOHRWBE  Tax losses and deductible temporary

BB R AT B E R difference previously not recognised,

EHEE now recognised, net (16,503) (562)
BAEEERETR /(BEEEH)  Under/(over) provision in prior years 12,636 (57,543)
BAHH KA Income not subject to tax (13,929) (2,024)
IR Withholding tax 137,942 93,274
TIIBER LAT 3,509 17,796
THEERNT G E Tax effect of LAT (877) (4,449)
BAREEERNETER Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate

B 969,484 692,905

B AFEEFEHFMBEAT

= HTN 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BiE EMAER - BB QBHEHIZE383(1) Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
AR AR (BEEENRER) RHIZE2 pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
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8 HHHM(H) 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

ARBETT ARBTR ARETL ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—EC=F 2023
IE Chairmen
FREE Mr. LI Xin = - - - -
HTES Executive directors:
WFREREE Mr. YU Linkang - 1,624 4,651 157 6,432
BhELL Ms. WEI Xiaohua - 1,037 3,626 157 4,820
TEREE Mr. WANG Haimin - 977 3,786 157 4,920
B EZ L (R Ms. YANG Honggxia (resigned
—E-=F with effect from 17 August
NATLHEE) 2023) - 488 3,618 88 4,194
BEEEE (R Mr. NIE Zhizhang (appointed
—EC=F with effect from 17 August
NA+EBEZRE) 2023) - 264 1,343 59 1,666
FHTESE Non-executive directors:
PHEFERE Mr. GUO Shiging - - - - -
BUFNTES Independent Non-executive
directors:
ARERE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 360 - - - 360
REELAE Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 360 - - - 360
BrR&LLE Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 360 - - - 360
R+ Ms. QIN Hong 180 - - - 180
F G Ms. LO Wing Sze 180 - - - 180

1,440 4,390 17,024 618 23,472
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8

=HHHT (4 ) 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

ARBTT ARBTR ARETL ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—EC-CE 2022
IR Chairmen
FREAE Mr. LI Xin i - a2 o o
HOTES Executive directors
WFREREAE Mr. YU Linkang - 1,581 4,963 159 6,703
WgERL Ms. WEI Xiaohua - 1,017 3,587 159 4,713
TEREE Mr. WANG Haimin - 963 3,739 159 4,861
GAELL Ms. YANG Hongxia - 739 3,493 154 4,386
FRITES Non-executive directors
PR E Mr. GUO Shiging S = = = =
BUFRITES Independent non-executive
directors
REIEEA Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 357 - - = 357
AmELE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 357 = = = 357
R+ Ms. QIN Hong 357 = = = 357
BrR&LE Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 357 = = = 357
1,428 4,300 15,732 631 22,091
G P A FE AN U8 N 3R N1 T 2B 55 Y Lt 5 A There were no other emoluments payable to the
(ZEZZF: |- independent non-executive directors during the year
(2022: Nil).
FATHRESSHZRITHABEREXRE There was no arrangement under which a director or
WEE MM HE - the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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9 =l N 9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

hAEEeFMALT  WE (=== Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,

F:OR)BEE  BEZHHBEENN 4 (2022: 4) are directors whose emolument

H8 - HHMEN—R (ZZTEZ=F : —%) is disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the

ATHF AN T - emoluments in respect of the other 1 (2022: 1)

individuals are as follows:

ARBT T ARBETT

RMB’000 RMB’000
e FRREYEF Salaries, allowance, and benefits-in-kind 2,455 848
BIETE4L Discretionary bonuses 2,407 3,128
RIREETEIHR Retirement scheme contributions 187 159
5,049 4,135
— % (ZT==ZF: —F)BEaFMAL The emoluments of the 1 (2022: 1) individuals with
BIHT BB P LA T A the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:
BEAZ

Number of employees

74,000,001 TE HKD4,000,001 — HKD4,500,000 = 1
7% 4,500,0007T
715,000,001 L& HKD5,000,001 — HKD5,500,000 1 =

75 #5,500,0007T




10 & fl 10

BREAXRANTDBEARRQA
Bl REMLRNARE
2,928,749,000 L (===
ANR¥E2 206,126,0007T) A K
FABBETTBEROMETHH
2,282,500,000f% (ZF ==
2,282,500,000f% L i@A%) 515

KRR BE T -_=FK_T—
T+ - A=t—HBItFEIEL
MBBEITEEES LB -

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings
per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB2,928,749,000 (2022:
RMB2,206,126,000) and the weighted
average of ordinary shares of 2,282,500,000
(2022: 2,282,500,000 ordinary shares) in
issue during the year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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11 Y2k, s Bkt 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
e TR AE Hitdh  BENERE kRIE szt
Machinery Motor QOther Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements in process Total

ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ﬁﬂi Cost
R-B--F-f-R: At 1 January 2022: 377,619 115,383 15,492 210,502 119,830 9,902 848,728
AE Additions 510 26,912 38,946 54503 8,085 9,163 138,119
WEHELA Acquisition of subsidiaries - 948 606 11,580 1696 = 14,830
g% Transfer - 12,083 = = = (12,083) =
EE Disposals (262) (1,548) (776) (8,260) - - (10,846)
RZZEZZF+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2022 377,867 153,778 54 268 268,325 129,611 6,982 990,831

RE Additions - 14,827 3,966 69,175 1,204 - 89,172
WEMBLE (KE30) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 30) - - 30 3,579 102 - 3,711
g% Transfer - 6,982 - - - (6,982) -
RE Disposals (24,261) (2,241) (1,807) (9,194) (17,882) - (55,385)
WZEZ=F+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2023 353,606 173,346 56,457 331,885 113,035 - 1,028,329
ZHBHERTE: Accumulated amortisation and

depreciation:
R-B--F-f-H: At 1 January 2022: (72,539) (59,558) (8,205) (138,695) (53,128) - (332,125)
AE Additions (11,120) (13,974) (5,139) (42,983) (18,481) - (91,697)
RE Disposals 184 1,086 202 652 - - 2,124
RZB-ZE+-F=1—H At31 December 2022 (83,475) (72,446) (13,142) (181,026) (71,609) - (421,698)
NE Additions (10,660) (15,893) (6,842) (49,800) (18,856) - (102,051)
WEHB A (HEE30) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 30) - - - (2,735) - - (2,73)
RE Disposals 2,11 1,223 1,323 7,592 17,103 - 50,012
RZEZZEFTAZ+-A A3 December 2023 (364 @706 (18661)  (225969)  (73.362) - W64m2)
QEE%E ' Net book value:
AZEZ=E+-A=1-H At31December 2023 282,242 86,230 37,796 105,916 39,673 - 551,857

RZFZZE+ZA=1—H At31 December 2022 294,392 81,332 41,126 87,299 58,002 6,982 569,133
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3 LYES 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FR - REVENEHPMOT - The movements in investment properties during the
year is summarised as follows:

ARETT ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NZE=-—F+=-A=+—H At31December 2021 and 1
r—Z2-_—F—HF—H January 2022 2,264,000 - 2,264,000
RE Additions 1,058,740 - 1,058,740
HEWMEAABEZFHIWE Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 43,260 - 43,260
RZZZ=F+=-A=+—H8 At 31 December 2022 and 1
;r—ZT-=%#—HF—H January 2023 3,366,000 - 3,366,000
NE Additions 24,681 357,966 382,647
BEWEANBEZFHWIWE Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 21,319 18,034 39,353

RZTZ=F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2023 3,412,000 376,000 3,788,000
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12 BEm¥E(4)

(a) AEEWGERRF

AEEREMEMRPEAM - A&
BERAREBEABERENE - A&
BREMER_T_=F+=-_A=+
—HNARBEDERBIZEESE
RGEM P EBITEERFERERE
RAF ([PERTT]) EITHHEETE -

(b) (EREESE

HEPRANGETZRBRAERR
X -

WAE - IRNENEBEZEEBREREHR
HENMEEERA (HEENHEER
BRAELEERE)  RRAEED
BERMeRERMCREE -

RERE - R EE BB EREE (T4
BREED INBHRBELENEE
A~ FSIARBERANBRORGRE
B - MBEELAHERREZEREA
EREEREERMNABERE
B - ZRERBABNGEKRARER
R MIGHESL  FXEM -
FHEBARMBERA  SNERRE
B LB B A R o MR B AR B
RAKREEREET R LEH
BREYEORISREE -

12

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties are situated
in Chinese Mainland. The Group measures its
investment properties at fair value. The fair value
of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2023 have been determined on the basis
of valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
an independent and professionally qualified valuer.

Valuation techniques

The valuation methodology adopted in valuation are
the income approach and residual method.

Income approach — the income approach operates
by considering the rental income of the property
derived from the existing tenancy with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the tenancy, which is then capitalised into the value
at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

Residual method - the residual approach takes
into account the residual value of the gross
development value (“GDV”) after deduction of
the outstanding construction costs and expenses
as well as profit element. It involves firstly the
assessment of the aggregate GDV of the proposed
development, as if completed, as at the valuation
date. Estimated costs of the proposed development
include construction costs, marketing expense,
professional fee, finance charges and associated
costs, plus an allowance for the developer’s risk
and profit. The outstanding development costs
are then deducted from the GDV and the resultant
figure is the residual value of the subject property.
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(c)

(d)

EREREANTESZBABENR
AEBEAENER (F3R)

B ARER (%)

REHERITMSEE
(BRASFHAARET)

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

(c)

Capitalisation rate (%)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

Assessed prevailing market rents
(RMB per square meter per month)

B =5 S - =
2023 2022

6.25 to 7.50 6.25 to 7.50
6.25%7.50 6.25%7.50
30-310 95-346

TSR AZBRERAEENEE

BEARERME  AAEBEBIE - BRI
miEHelS  ARBEES

RER AREBEFEFEI1REF2H
AR 3 ) N1k 3 NI R
B(ZTZ=F  ]|) -

RER - BEDENBHESKRABA
R#449 297 0000 (ZE=-—%F : A
R#286,948,0007T) °

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:

The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair
value. The higher the prevailing market rents, the
higher the fair value.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

During the year, the gross rental income
from investment properties amounted to
RMB449,297,000 (2022: RMB286,948,000).
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13 MIE¥E 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EFE% B 5t
Customer
relationships Software Total
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RN : Cost:
RNZZE-—=—F—A—H At 1 January 2022 - 125,566 125,566
W B BT 8 1 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 1,424,300 9,016 1,433,316
NE Additions - 6,837 6,837
BE Disposals = (263) (263)
RZZEZ=—F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 1,424,300 141,156 1,565,456
U BB BT B A B) (FiFE30) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 30) 67,600 46 67,646
NE Additions - 149,826 149,826
BE Disposals - (1,641) (1,641)
RZZEZ=F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2023 1,491,900 289,387 1,781,287
E-5 1N Accumulated amortisation:
RZE2-_—_F—HA—A At 1 January 2022 - (9,614) (9,614)
FRZH Charge for the year (68,203) (17,626) (85,829)
RE Disposals = 5 5
M-ZZE-—F+-HA=+—H At31 December 2022 (68,203) (27,235) (95,438)
FAZH Charge for the year (95,705) (17,731) (113,436)
RE Disposals - 1,180 1,180
R-ZZTE==F+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2023 (163,908) (43,786) (207,694)
BREFE ! Net book value:
RZZE-_=F+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2023 1,327,992 245,601 1,573,593

RZETZZF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2022 1,356,097 113,921 1,470,018
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e E(4)

BEFBEIERERA G — &0 WRE (5
BRAESHMES0) - RIRWER AR
EBERER  HENGHARFHRAAELR
EEE o RBEFPBAEREERBNARE
ENHARREEK2EHBISEREE
MEMETHEERETE - EEFAME
REFPBEENKBEEHN R EENITDE
REZBEZBEENT

RETMEAREEREER DA ([BIE])

Chengdu Langiji Life Service Co., Ltd.
(“Langiji”)

13
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Customer relationship was acquired as part of
business combination (see note 30 for details).
It is recognised at their fair value at the date of
acquisitions and is subsequently amortised on a
straight-line basis over the estimated contract lives.
Fair values of this customer relationship at the date
of acquisition was determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed
by an independent qualified professional valuer.
Method and key assumptions in determining the fair
value of customer relationship recognised during the
year as at acquisition date is disclosed as below:

fhE Bl BRI =R (Bi&)
Valuation Discount rate
technique (after-tax)
BRI ® 15%
mEER
Discounted 15%

cash flow model
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14 R 14 GOODWILL
ARETT
RMB’000
KA Cost:
RZZEZ=F—HA—H At 1 January 2022 =
U B Bt B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries 1,804,719
RZZE-_—_F+=-RA=+—H At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023 1,804,719
k=—E-_=F—H—H
W B P B A A (FI3E30) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30) 95,621
1,900,340
BREE : Carrying value:
RZTEZ=F+=ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2023 1,900,340
RZFZZ_F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2022 1,804,719
REBEHFPREHEEEWER DI Goodwill acquired in business combinations is
EZE  BMUERBERAAE ([ & allocated, at acquisitions, to the cash generated
M)~ EINUNF %R E R QA units (“CGUs") of Langji, Yuzhou Property Service
(FrmAtM]) - EBREMEFR AR Co. Ltd. (RM¥ZERBBR AT, “Yuzhou”), Sichuan
(IFBERYE]) RIHTEYERBER Jiuzhou Qiancheng Property Service Co. Ltd.(/™
rEl(IHTml) MBEeEESM (IR MAM TR ER AR, “Sichuan Jiuzhou”),
SEEBMDIT Nantong Changle Property Co., Ltd (“Nantong

Changle”) and Jiangsu Zhongnan Property Services
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Zhongnan”) as below:
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GE{G D) 14 GOODWILL (continued)
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERE R I#HTE Nantong Changle and Jiangsu Zhongnan 1,153,274 1,153,274
BN Yuzhou 630,763 630,763
Pl AW Sichuan Jiuzhou 20,682 20,682
BAE Langji 95,621 =
1,900,340 1,804,719

ERER-_Z=F+T-A=1+—HHH
EHITRERR - EBERERTI&FR
S NN R EEEHIRSEAE
TR AT YR Bl & BB Ty R B E R B A D
RESEREFEAEE((FREE] FE
BE HuKEe@ENIERETEUEE
B - ATERAERNEREEEIENR
IANFHUKEEOHARS R -
W E B E&EIFAIE B T8 - AT
HRMRASTREFEAU T EF R RE
HE - SRRV EBHRSEEBMME
BRBATENRBATERE - AR
KT ABATANIR R R AERATTE R E R
B BeELBEUAGRRSELEBMNAT
EEMBMENREIRE - FTARBEXT
AR ATRLIR R R ARRAI TS E AR
ReELSENAT RABEMENREIR

3 o

o

Management performed impairment testing on
goodwill as at 31 December 2023. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs of Nantong Changle and Jiangsu
Zhongnan, Yuzhou, Sichuan Jiuzhou and Langji
business are determined based on the value in use
(“VIU") calculation by the directors of the Company
with the assistance of an independent valuer.
Their recoverable amounts are based on certain
similar key assumptions. The calculation use pre-
tax cashflow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five
or six-year period after considering latest projects
delivery scheme. Cash flow beyond the projection
period is extrapolated using the estimated long-
term growth rates below. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
related industry in which the CGUs operates. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant industry and the CGU
itself and macro-environment of the relevant region
which the CGUs operates. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant industry and the CGU itself and macro-
environment of the relevant region.
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14 FE(4) 14 GOODWILL (continued)
BEEENREELENNRE Impairment tests for cash-generating
A (&) units containing goodwill (continued)
At ERRSEAE ARG S A The key assumptions used in estimating the
FERRLOT - recoverable amount of significant CGUs are as

follows:
R-B-_=%+-RA=+—H As at 31 December 2023

W FEgRE Annual growth rate of revenue -2.7% to 13.9% -8.4% to 11.9%
-2.7%%213.9% -8.4%%11.9%
MBS Net profit margin 9.5% to 11.4% 11.0% to 13.8%
9.5%%11.4% 11.0%%E13.8%
REPERE Long-term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
TATALRER & Pre-tax discount rate 18.3% 17.8%
N-BE-—F+-A=+—~1 As at 31 December 2022

W FEIERE Annual growth rate of revenue -5.9% to 7.4% -13.6% to 13.8%
5.9%%7.4% -13.6%%13.8%
FFEE Net profit margin 9.8% to 12.0% 10.3% to 14.3%
9.8%£212.0% 10.3%%14.3%
KA R K Long-term growth rate 2.5% 2.5%

FRATRAIR & Pre-tax discount rate 19.7% 17.2%
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iy
3
e

EREE AR BB ST
FEHEE  EFE  REERERHA
RREOBREE - HEEAEARET
HBE D -

ARREZRE  TABERBENEIANE
B E T gEYReELBMNER
BERRAENR T _=FK_F-_—F+=
A=+—B/akE&EE -
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GOODWILL (continued)

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on
the impairment test of goodwill by evaluating the
hypothetical changes to annual growth rate, gross
margin rate, long-term growth rate and pre-tax
discount rate that would, in isolation, have removed
the remaining headroom respectively.

The directors of the Company are of the view that
any reasonably possible change in any of the key
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount
of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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15 JRIEA A 2 85cE 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
THREBEEIEFEREEER  BESN The following list contains only the particulars of
BEMNNBARMNFFE - BRIEHBEN subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
Fri i {0 B8 B A im AR o assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

FRRLA
Proportion of ownership interest
HERRIR BEARAR AEEN H-EE
£ e Pussd EREL HARTEE AREE TEEH
Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued and paid ~ Group's effective Held by the Held by a Principal

Name business up capital interest company subsidiary activities

HERRARAA B 7%100,0007T 100 100 - RARR

Super Honour Development Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - Investment

holding

AFEEERAA B 1000007 100 - 100 REmR

Cheer Ocean Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - 100 Investment

holding

BMERRE (R BRAR RERE AR1,0000000007 100 - 100 BXEEEERE
([&5E2 1))

Runxin Commercial Investment Chinese Mainland ~ RMB1,000,000,000 100 - 100 Commercial
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (*Mixc operational
Commercial”) (ii) management

services

BENFMRRBEERA) RERE  AR3000,0000007 100 - 100 WxERR

Runying Property Technology Services ~ Chinese Mainland ~ RMB3,000,000,000 100 - 100 Property
Co. Ltd. (if) management

services

RENZRE (B5) BRAA() mERE  AKH20,0000007 100 - 100 EE

Runjia (Shenyang) Property Management ~ Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 100 - 100 Property
Co. Ltd. (i) management

services
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R

Name

ERWERSE (1) ARAR()
Runying (Chengdu) Property Management
Co. Ltd. (i)

EENEER (LR) ARAT()
Runjia (Beijing) Property Management Co.
Ltd. (i)

Bz CRI) BRAF)
Runjia (Shenzhen) Property Management
Co. Ltd. (i)

EMERSE (L8 ERAR()
Runjia (Shanghai) Property Management
Co. Ltd. (i)

BN REAERAR)
Yuzhou Property Service Co. Ltd. (i)

THERENEREERAA()
Jiangsu Zhongnan Property Services Co.
Ltd. (i)

LR
CESIES

Place of
incorporation and
business

hERE

Chinese Mainland

hER

Chinese Mainland

hERE

Chinese Mainland

HER
Chingse Mainland

hER

Chinese Mainland

hERE

Chinese Mainland

15

BEIREE
fusd
Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital

AB:%120,000,0007
RMB120,000,000

AR %400,000,0007C
RMB400,000,000

AR #400,000,0007
RMB400,000,000

AE#120,000,0007
RMB120,000,000

AR 50,000,007
RMB50,000,000

AR%10,101,0107%
RMB10,101,010

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Group’s
effective interest

100
100

RRLh

Proportion of ownership interest

HALRNE

Held by the
company

H-EHRE
DARE

Held by a
subsidiary

100
100

TEEH

Principal
activities

EST
Property
management
services
EE
Property
management
services
NEERRY
Property
management
services
HEEBRH
Property
management
services
ESE
Property
management
services
HEEBRH
Property
management
services
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15 RAMBAR 2 BE(4)

16

R B EM A EREARREX S
BMRARBEFHZFARNT X AHE
NETHERE - REARZFARLELELN
MR AZHE -

fi g -

()  HREEBARBTEARLNE (4

B ) EE My 2 BNk -
SEBBRESDEEEMRLY

HEBELE -

Jit — [R]85 2 v 2 A A

NRINVRAKE 2 FF{ERIE AR =
BEMBER

(if)

NGILY)

15

16

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

The English names of all group companies
registered in Chinese Mainland represent the best
efforts made by the directors of the Company to
translate the Chinese names of these companies as
they do not have official English names.

Notes:

(i) These entities were registered as domestic
enterprises under the laws of the People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC”).

(i) These entities were registered as wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises under the laws of the PRC.

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associate that is not
individually material:

—EB-=F —E-F
2023 2022
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERIFEE AB S A RN ABRTEE Aggregate carrying amounts of

individually an immaterial associate 599 595

FREEBE AR Share of the associate’s profit for the
year 4 595
Ht 2w Other comprehensive income - =
ERELERE R Total comprehensive income 4 595
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18

A —H B2 Rt 17 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
TRINTAEEZ FEEFEREEREN The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
BRI ER information of the Group's a joint venture that is not

individually material:

ARBT T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR EERAS L ENMIREE Aggregate carrying amounts of

individually an immaterial joint venture 3,703 1,058
FARGEE DR Share of the joint venture’s profit for the

year 2,645 623
H 2wk Other comprehensive income = =
EHE =B Total comprehensive income 2,645 623
8 18 INVENTORIES

ARBT T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000
=ty Parking spaces 183,715 130,717
Hib17 & Other inventories 19,030 17,256

202,745 147,973
RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8" 2% As at 31 December 2023, the provision for write-
WREEEA R FEAREBEEAR down of inventories to net realisable value amounted
2 305,000 (ZE-Z—_F: AR to RMB2,305,000 (2022: RMB2,512,000).

2,512,0007T) ©
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19 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

19 B By HEIGKIE b RSO 35

—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AREFT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000

g S EWRE Trade receivables
Bt 77 (M13E33) Related parties (note 33) 878,178 708,490
EF=F Third parties 1,195,366 881,360
2,073,544 1,589,850

W EE Bill receivables

Bt 77 (M93E33) Related parties (note 33) 777 9,865
F=H Third parties 3,762 6,231
4,539 16,096
W R Less: loss allowance (82,488) (48,061)
1,995,595 1,557,885

B HRYGIAR BB REEBRZE 5
EENYEEEREMIEERBMESL -

B G YR EEIRF WAL IRERE Y X IR
75 h ik B R SR MR © WD 56 & B AR A% 0 AR 7%
WABBETHERBRBREN - AEE
T RBARAE B EL R Uk Bl &0 FEURIR - L
R EIEEE R - EN LA
AAREENE HREFEREBEREES R
BT BE-RPRIARESHNTS ¥
TEEERBREAES - AEEYERHE
B 5 WA KRR R IR AR A TR
MR EMERER - B RWFIANE
WEBTEER -

Trade and bill receivables mainly arise from property
management services managed on a lump sum
basis and value-added services.

Property management service income on a lump
sum basis are received in accordance with the term
of the relevant property service agreements. Service
income from property management services is due
for payment by the property owners upon rendering
of services. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade and bill receivables related to
related parties, single customers or a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade and bill receivable balances. Trade
and bill receivables are non-interest bearing.
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W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

(continued)

(4 ) 19 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

HEWRSHR  EHRIGRIEREKREE As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
AN EZEQHMERRSITOT : analysis of trade and bill receivable, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:
—E_=F =S - =
2023 2022
AREETTT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 1,901,026 1,487,605
15224 1to 2 years 132,195 80,701
2% 3%F 2 to 3 years 28,948 22,121
3FLAE Over 3 years 15,914 15,519
2,078,083 1,605,946
SRR Less: loss allowance (82,488) (48,061)
5 EIGRTE M WY - 1K Trade and bills receivable, net of loss
EERE allowance 1,995,595 1,557,885

BHRWFIAEREERERERBRES

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

EJ N of trade and bill receivables are as follows:
—E=F —E-_F
2023 2022
AREETTT AREETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of year 48,061 8,935
L BB B8 A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 3,105 32,231
BEEIEFRE Impairment losses, net 32,160 6,895
F AZEH Written off during the year (838) =
RER At end of year 82,488 48,061
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19 B GIBGKIE B REN 2 PE(4%) 19 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES
(continued)
REREAHERAREERETRES An impairment analysis is performed at each
- U ERHEEEE -BEXDLE reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
REEBEUBEEANZERTF2EA ECLs. The provision rates are based on days past
Al (BNEFEAMRRSER) M XE due for groupings of various customer segments
BT o ATERMBENELER - EBEHE with similar loss patterns (i.e. customer type
BEERRREAREEBESEG - AR and service type). The calculation reflects the
RARKGEHERRATBEINHEGEREZFH probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
B A ANTBEREEEERTER money and reasonable and supportable information
01% (ZEZZF : 0.1%) * KEERBE that is available at the reporting date about past
WSk B © events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The expected credit loss rate
for related parties is calculated as 0.1% (2022:
0.1%) by considering the historical collection data.
TXHIEBANEEE S FEWGRIE A # Set out below is the information about the credit risk
HEENEERKRIER exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:
£=h )yl
Related
Third parties parties
15/ 1228 2Z3F  3FNLE Bct
Less than 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
N-B=-=F At 31 December 2023
+=A=+-AH
BHEEHEX Expected credit loss rate 2.41% 18.16% 72.27%  100.00% 0.10%
FHAE Gross carrying amount 1,031,694 120,168 28,174 14,553 878,955 2,073,544
BHEEER Expected credit losses 24,870 21,827 20,360 14,553 878 82,488
R-B=-—%F At 31 December 2022
+=A=1+-H
BHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 1.20% 15.00% 35.00%  100.00% 0.10%
REAE Gross carrying amount 782,951 53,011 20,827 14,706 718,355 1,589,850
BHEEEE Expected credit losses 17,268 9,306 6,063 14,706 718 48,061
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PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

—E-=F —E__—F
2023 2022
AREFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Current
TBRFIE Prepayments 299,674 215,820
Ze Deposits 73,341 48,331
H fth fE Y GRIE Other receivables 601,105 556,225
TR K% A 8 Wit R BS 7 5R I8 Prepayment to and other receivables
(Pf17E33) from related parties (note 33) 675,453 610,031
1,649,573 1,430,407
o EERE Less: loss allowance (29,036) (19,914)
1,620,537 1,410,493
IEFRE Non-current
TE FE Prepayments 15,595 1,451

B ft JE MR DA R (T AR D) 3
[ TR RACRER A o B AT
AR - RS =5 M0 LA R MR A
I - 28 RAREREE o BKMHS
B E A B IE e B - FES A B33
B -

AEEFERS - BVHREREEBEY
AN EER R EARIEMN - REHRSE
HIR - RERUGESBAF 1R - &
H12EABHER RBE_T_=F
TZA=T—BLEFER  AEERESB
FRFERMEUSEF I EERRIEAM
NFAER - FHE R EREE T A H e U R
HENFEHEEREEE -

The other receivables were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”), and the fair value of other
receivables approximated to their carrying amounts.
Other receivables with third parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Other
receivables with related parties are interest-free,
details of which are disclosed in note 33.

The Group has assessed that the credit risk of other
receivables has not increased significantly since
initial recognition. At the end of each reporting
period, these receivables were categorised in stage
1 and 12-month expected losses are calculated.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group calculated the ECL rate for other receivables
from related parties based on historical collection
experiences and other public information of the
credit risk of similar counterparties.
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20 WEAPAxIE. HibERGREKRE 20 PREPAYMENTS, OTHER

fiin 3 7 ( 4 ) RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS
(continued)

TXEY B BASEBE AR FIE (R Set out below is the information about the credit risk

& REMRIEIN) OEERRER exposure on the Group's other receivables (except

for deposits and prepayments):

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R-ZE-=%+=8 At 31 December 2023

=t+-8
RHEEBEE Expected credit loss rate 1.20% 15.00%  50.00%  100.00% 0.10%
EEgE Gross carrying amount 502,995 78,917 6,211 12,982 643,437 1,244,542
EHEEHE Expected credit losses 3,980 8,326 3,105 12,982 643 29,036
R-B--f£+=H At 31 December 2022

=t+-8
BHEEHEX Expected credit loss rate 1.20% 10.00% 20.00%  100.00% 0.10%
FEAE Gross carrying amount 508,081 26,325 7,069 14,750 546,355 1,102,580

EHEEHE Expected credit losses 1,981 1,830 807 14,750 546 19,914
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20 FEfFERIE. HibEKREKELE 20 PREPAYMENTS, OTHER

s ¥ 7 (48 ) RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS
(continued)
Hib EURIE R EEERENEBHNT - The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

of other receivables are as follows:

—EBE-=F —E -5
2023 2022
ARKETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REA] At beginning of year 19,914 5,080
U B BT 8 1 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 2,094 8,964
BIEBEFRE Impairment losses, net 7,028 5,870
RER At end of year 29,036 19,914
21 & R BEEEY) 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bt 5 —E-=F —EBF
Note 2023 2022
ARKETFTT AR¥EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PIRFERS Cash at bank and in hand (i) 11,646,772 12,722,781
B ZREIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits (66,613) (129,949)
— BN EEE — SOE Reform Projects (iii) (27,811) (96,120)
— ERTF — Guaranteed deposits (10,184) (19,445)

— ERARYFERERN - Property owners that

¥+ is restricted to use in
construction of properties (11,493) (2,370)

—ZB&HIEEMIER - Projects managed on
commission basis (4,229) (6,028)
— Hfth — Others (12,896) (5,986)

HWEREXRPHIESE K Cash and cash equivalents in

HEZEED the cash flow statement 11,580,159 12,592,832
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21

Bl R Bl S EY (%)

(if)

(iif)

RZTEZ=F+=ZA=+—
A AEBUARENED
BITRFHEHESAARE
11,512,926,000C (ZE ==
F: AR#12,690,267,000
) e ARBATTEHRAERA
Hiv & - R - BIBEREE
NEBERIEHD) R(EE - &
ERMEEERE)  A5EH
BESREEEEITINESE
WIRITARB RS BEME
e;;g o

RITREER T A RITHFRA
RENFBFIRE S - RITHERR
R E Y EEHELNE
BRIFNRT - RERREF
EBYOEEEREEQAABER

4

Eo

BRMEBRNRE - AEEE
TRAEEBWEE A BBk
2HE (BRI =H—%7A
B 1) FIEF A EER
BEERITIRP - XBRHIRE
R BefE EUAS AR BE U & P4t
& AR ST AR R P 2 B0 12 3R K
A o

21

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(if)

(iif)

As at 31 December 2023, the cash at bank
and in hand of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to RMB11,512,926,000
(2022: RMB12,690,267,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents approximated to their
fair values.

In accordance with relevant government
requirements, certain companies of the
Group are required to place the amounts
received from the SOE Reform Projects,
commonly known as the “Three Supplies
and Property Management Projects”,
in designated bank accounts for the
constructions of the related properties.
The restricted cash can only be used for
payments for construction costs of the
relevant properties when approval from
the related government authority has been
obtained.
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21 CASH AND

(continued)

CASH EQUIVALENTS

—E-=E —E-CF
2023 2022
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PR AT A Profit before tax 3,912,124 2,906,153
HE Adjustments for:
s E A (fff76(a)) Finance costs (note 6(a)) 117,202 87,224
5 (W), BEFE (Me(c)) Exchange (gains)/loss, net (note 6(c)) (6,064) 7,981
FI2MA (H5E5) Interest income (note 5) (395,186) (424,580)
BOMRTFEE 25 FE (K56(c)) Reversal of write-down of inventories to
net realisable value (note 6(c)) (207) (533)
B oRKTELENRERE Impairment of trade and bill receivables

(Ftike(c)) (note 6(c)) 32,160 6,895
BIFE - EthEKTEREM Impairment of prepayments, other

BERME (fe(c) receivables and other assets

(note 6(c)) 7,028 5,870
BENERABEZFHNURE (Fi12) Gain on changes in fair value of investment

properties (note 12) (39,353) (43,260)
FEfEaE hERF (FE17) Share of profit of a joint venture (note 17) (2,645) (623)
e E N alal (FiE16) Share of profit of an associate (note 16) (4) (595)
nE - BERRETE (Fi6(c) Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (note 6(c)) 102,051 91,697
FEREEENE (ME6(c)) Depreciation of right-of-use assets

(note 6(c)) 59,431 57,006
EREESH (FiFE6(c)) Amortisation of intangible assets

(note 6(c)) 113,436 85,829
HEME - BERSHEEE R Gain on disposal of items of property,

(Fi35) plant and equipment (note 5) (3,559) (452)
FEEM Increase in inventories (54,556) (8,108)
B OEWFIR R EKREEM Increase in trade and bill receivables (389,349) (667,314)
BIHIE Bt ENFIEREMEE  (Increase)/decrease in prepayments, other

(m),/ ®o receivables and other assets (260,457) 279,304
B SR FIBE M Increase in trade payables 59,300 151,032
HAb R IR RIEF B REM Increase in other payables and accruals 224,888 93,608
ARAEEN/ (RD) Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 301,437 (87,334)
HigaECad),/ & (Decrease)fincrease in other liabilities (1,097) 2,169
REMBERE Cash generated from operations 3,776,580 2,541,969
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21 BleRBIeEEY (&) 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)
TR ASEREETHEENE The table below details changes in the
EEEHFE (RIERERIFRSE group’s liabilities from financing activities,
) mMEGHELEANBERELIER including both cash and non-cash changes.
MEAARKREREN AT EEHER Liabilities arising from financing activities are
ERERERPEAMELZHESE liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
FESREMARE - cash flows will be, classified in the group’s

consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.

HityFETFRIE HEEE @t
Other payable Lease liabilities Total
ARETTT ARBETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
W-ZE-=%-A-H At 1 January 2023 44,446 2,401,717 2,446,163
MERSRERT Changes from financing cash
flows:
ENRERESHEEHD Interest element of lease rentals
paid - (169,801) (169,801)
MERSRELDEH Total changes from financing
cash flows - (169,801) (169,801)
Hit#s Other changes:
HEAEHR Interest on lease liabilities - 117,202 117,202
bk New leases - 95,792 95,792
TAREROBENZHESE  Revision of a lease term arising
MR ER B R] from a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease - (25,801) (25,801)
Hitn#gam Total other changes - 187,193 187,193

RZBZ=F+=HA=+—H At31 December 2023 44,446 2,419,109 2,463,555
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B e B 5E (A1) 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)
RITER
H At EfT50E HEAE RigE st
Other Lease Bank loans and
payable liabilities borrowings Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=B-=—#-F-H At 1 January 2022 44,446 1,358,470 801,249 2,204,165
MERSREST Changes from financing
cash flows:
BITEERBRE Proceeds from bank
borrowings - - 307,540 307,540
BERRTEE Repayment of bank
borrowing - - (1,154,003) (1,154,003)
ERBEEREFEHH Interest element of lease
rentals paid - (140,982) - (140,982)
ERFIS Interest paid - (4,773) (4,773)
MERSRERDAR Total changes from
financing cash flows - (140,982) (851,236) (992,218)
Hib 25 : Other changes:
FIERA% Interest expense = 82,451 4,773 87,224
ik New leases - 1,102,968 = 1,102,968
G N| Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 8,597 = 8,597
TR HSHANSREAEE  Revision of a lease term
EEMTBE arising from a change
in the non-cancellable
period of a lease - (9,787) - (9,787)
[EREE) Foreign exchange rate
changes - - 45,214 45,214
Hi#aan Total other changes = 1,184,229 49,987 1,234,216
RZBZZ%+=f At 31 December 2022
=+-H 44,446 2,401,717 - 2,446,163
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21 BI&RBIESHE(4) 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)
(d) HERSARLLRE (d) Total cash outflow for leases
WAREREXRNHEERESRHEE The total cash outflow for leases included in
muw the statement of cash flows is as follows:

ARBT T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000
EREA Within operating activities 44,520 44,621
EESEEII Within financing activities 169,801 140,982

214,321 185,603
ZEHMEETIZIAEHA - These amounts relate to the following:

ARBTT ARMBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ENHEERES Lease rentals paid 214,321 185,603
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22 TIME DEPOSITS

=8 —E-F
2023 2022
AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZIH A BB =@ AMIEITF  Bank deposits with maturity
over three months 1,612,254 -
RNETFE (Fisr) Deposit certificates (Note) 2,642,609 2,558,608
#Et Total 4,254,863 2,558,608
DR Analysed into:
BN E] Current 4,052,766 =
JEENEA Non-current 202,097 2,558,608
Mt : SRERETPEAMEEEENFERR Note: The balance represents deposit certificates

THEENKREGFE  BEFMNXA
3.5%  RATHIRABE T - —F#36
BA - REFENFAEBB=EAF
A FLAEE - FHEFERHNE REHRR
HEBHEANRSREEAHAS
RAREEZERSF BN - WiKEZ
REBUERERBSRENEBE
AR - At - KREFEARIER
BHKAFTENEREE - AERE
BER-ZZT-F = AEIERER -

purchased from creditworthy licensed banks in
Chinese Mainland earning interest at a fixed rate
of 3.5% per annum with an original maturity period
of 36 months starting from 2021. The deposits
certificates are redeemable upon holding for longer
than three months. The contractual terms of the
time deposits give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and
are held within a business model with the objective
to hold in order to collect contractual cash flows.
For such purpose, the deposit certificates are
accounted for as financial assets at amortised
cost. The deposit certificates were matured and
redeemed in February 2024.
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23 HGEAERIE 23 TRADE PAYABLES

ARBTFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000
B SR Trade payables
RaE 7 (M17E33) Related parties (note 33) 83,808 113,665
F=F Third parties 1,462,310 1,225,680
1,546,118 1,339,345
HEREHR  EFSERNRIBENREEA As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
HMERRDITOT ¢ analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

ARBT T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000
1F R Within 1 year 1,443,103 1,208,093
1224 11to 2 years 60,564 89,714
2&E 34 2 to 3 years 22,136 22,151
3FLAE Over 3 years 20,315 19,387

1,546,118 1,339,345
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24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

=8 —E-F
2023 2022
AREFIT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Eofth AT 3018 K FEET B A Other payables and accruals
Bt 7 (M13E33) Related parties (note 33) 311,027 258,566
F=5 Third parties 2,288,069 2,063,464
2,599,096 2,322,030
FEFIAR B Dividend payable
Bt 5 (M93E33) Related parties (note 33) - 611,603
F=H Third parties - 218,023
- 829,626
JERT & Salaries payable 1,369,988 1,320,080
BIEART 1S3 B E DAY Tax payables other than current income
FERT R IR tax liabilities 151,994 179,331
4,121,078 4,651,067

(b)

ENE = EMENRERESE
RARERR 2 NARERER -

HibENFIAR SRS HARRO QR

EEEEAENREEMRS

ENFE=NFEAREE[ =%
I REFTERIRME HIE IR
BARMENTUR -

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Other payables and accruals with third parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The fair values of other payables at the end of
each of the reporting period approximated to their
corresponding carrying amounts.

The amounts due to third parties includes the
payable related to “Three Supplies and Property
Management Projects”, construction of properties
on behalf of property owners and projects managed
on commission basis.
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(BRBITIEHES » UARHEST)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 GlfifE 25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
AEENEREBEFERER M RREHD Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
HERBERZFKIE - ZEa8EEELR advance payments received from customers while
SEEBIERMIG M o the underlying services are yet to be provided. Such

liabilities increased as a result of the growth of the
Group’s business.

—E=F —E-F

2023 2022

AREFTTT ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Rk 75 (M93E33) Related parties (note 33) 41,121 71,342

£=H Third parties 2,130,491 1,760,545

2,171,612 1,831,887

AREBEZHNT : Movements in contract liabilities are as follows:

—E_=F — g2

2023 2022

AREFTT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

®—A—H At 1 January 1,831,887 1,417,223
EETAFERAEEHRTY Revenue recognised that was included in
B R the balance of contract liabilities at the

beginning of the year (1,586,636) (1,379,412)

W B KB A R (FIEE30) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30) 38,288 22,335

HIBEYEETERBGKER  Net increase in contract liabilities as a
ReEMEMARAMEIEINFRE  result of cash received for property
management services in advance 1,888,073 1,771,741

R+—A=+—B0&s4 Balance at 31 December 2,171,612 1,831,887




25

Zl

GR=0

W
i

EEMEEE RS (BLRE - Bm&

MERHEERI) ERREBERMEEER
Bns  ARESAREXNFAARERE

E’]é%ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂgz’&%@t BHHER
MEE) BRKA - AEEE AR
REF L EBREST ¥ FHELIUR
BE  FEAXAE=ZTHEARIH - K
SECDEERBMBHRESERNEI15RE
121(b) BT BFREE L - TREZ
FRUWARNB TROET ©

RERBENEFEHRE (—RTE—F) R
B -R-B_=FR-_FB__F+-A=
T—HAERBETOROE - FKIARR
PR ARAG R AN 2H] -

IEmMYEEEMS  BOBRBEERE
ZHEER TEPEEN - FAREP I
SEmrYENBERGERIEIEMEE

BEENREIE - R T —=FE R T ——
+-—A=+—8  UTERETHIDET

MR NBAIETS ©
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

For residential property management services
(except for brokerage services,
and properties) and commercial operational
and property management services, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount that equals the
right to invoice which corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the Group’s performance
to date on a monthly basis. The Group bills the
amount for services provided on a monthly basis
or pre-charges service fee on a half year basis
and payment is due within 30 days of invoice.
The Group has elected the practical expedient as
described in HKFRS 15.121(b) for not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations for these
types of contracts.

merchandise

For brokerage services, the services are rendered
in a short period of time which is generally less than
a year and there was no unsatisfied performance
obligation as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
payment is due immediately when the services are
rendered to the customer.

For sales of merchandise and properties, the
performance obligation is satisfied when control
of the asset is transferred to the customers. The
payment is due immediately when the customer
obtains the physical possession or the legal title
of the merchandise and properties. There were
no remaining performance obligations unsatisfied
or partially satisfied as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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26 S 26 LEASES
AEBERELERFEHNSEEFRRE The Group has lease contracts for various items of
RAIBEHESR - BFHNHEHETE R2E26 buildings and motor vehicles used in its operations.
F-mMABENHEBRENT1E3F - & Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
R ENRAE—RAB1I2EARIA TR, between 2 and 26 years, while motor vehicles
SHEREERIE - generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years.

Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12
months or less and/or is individually of low value.

RAFEE  AEEFAREEKR The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-
HEREZESHOT : of-use assets and the movements during the

year are as follows:

BF RE @zt
Buildings  Motor vehicles Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-Z--%¥-A-H At 1 January 2022 98,050 1,366 99,416
NE Additions 56,672 1,270 57,942
WK B AT Acquisition of subsidiaries 11,358 767 12,125
WEER Depreciation charge (55,190) (1,816) (57,008)
METTHEABKEMES  Revision of a lease term arising from a
MHEREET change in the non-cancellable period of
a lease (9,907) (46) (9,953)
RZEZZ%+=H=1+—H At 31 December 2022
k—E-=5-F—-H and 1 January 2023 100,983 1,541 102,524
A Additions 95,136 656 95,792
HEER Depreciation charge (58,544) (887) (59,431)
METAHERSERENESE  Revision of a lease term arising from a
BT change in the non-cancellable period of
a lease (26,535) (189) (26,724)

R=ZZBZ=F+=-HA=+—-H At 31 December 2023 111,040 1,121 112,161




W E SR AMA Y China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited 277

26 FfHE(H) 26 LEASES (continued)
—E= —E—_—
2023 2022
ARKETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—HA—BrEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,401,717 1,358,470
MEE New leases 95,792 1,102,968
W B BT B8 2 R Acquisition of subsidiaries - 8,597
RAFEHERMNF S  Accretion of interest recognised
0 during the year 117,202 82,451
N Payments (169,801) (140,982)
THE TR HEH A B Revision of a lease term arising
BETEAEMRNE from a change in the non-
H) cancellable period of a lease (25,801) (9,787)
R+-—A=+—H& Carrying amount at 31 December
REE 2,419,109 2,401,717
DA Analysed into:
mEE D Current portion 151,786 99,755
IETENEB Non-current portion 2,267,323 2,301,962

AEBEREFTHESR T The Group leased certain service

RPEAERE RS - apartments located in Chinese

WiEREEHMESHETH Mainland, from property owners and

FURBRBESWA - BHE subleased to tenants through operating

MEREEEDNEERT leases to earn rental income. The

EREMENTE - right-of-use assets of the leases are
determined to meet the definition of
investment property.

HEABENIHAS TR The maturity analysis of lease liabilities
B 5 sR R M sE31(b) W E - is disclosed in note 31(b) to the
financial statements.

AEBRFASH HEA The Group has applied the practical
REESETHERZER expedient to all eligible rent

L EEEREERS
RMERERIDEA

concessions granted by the lessors for
leases of certain plant and equipment
during the year.
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26 fHHAE(4) 26 LEASES (continued)
EEBEREBEA (K) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) FEREEEE) (a)  Right-of-use assets (continued)
(i) REZERHAHEEEF B (i)  The amounts recognised in profit or
TR T - loss in relation to leases are as follows:

ARBT T ARBETT

RMB’000 RMB’000
HEAEFE Interest on lease liabilities 117,202 82,451
TREEENEER Depreciation charge on right of
assets 59,431 57,006
B HATHE MEEEE Expense relating to short-term
EREEHENFAX leases and leases of low-value
assets 11,697 13,095
Kt ABEABE 2 Variable lease payments not
AT E R included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 32,823 31,526
RIEEZRRNESRE Total amount recognised in profit
or loss 221,153 184,078
(i)  AEEERLHEA (iii)  The Group as a lessor
R-ZB-_=F+=-A=+ At 31 December 2023, the Group
— B - REEBEAREAGT had contracted with lessees for the
BER - REBDAHBEL following future undiscounted lease
EHENATREE D payments under non-cancellable
RRKREIRAESRAOT - operating leases which fall due as
follows:

ARBT T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 259,899 248,059
RE-_FEZERF (B In the second to fifth year

BREME) inclusive 400,060 398,319

HFE After five years 210,945 185,108

870,904 831,486
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27 ORI R PSR 27 INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

CRAEEHEEERAE Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:
(i) BEHBEERBESEAKID 2 (i) Movement of each component of deferred tax
23 assets and liabilities
RAFE - RirE BRI RER The components of deferred tax (assets)/
ZIEERTE (BE),/ BEHEK liabilities recognised in the consolidated
SREZBHT : statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR ARRTR ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR
RMBOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO

RoEZZE-F-B A Janvay 2022 61B 3468 5% - u® 700 o U (106%00)  (21091) o sTe)
WEHELA Deferred tax increased
ERERELN from acquisiion of

subsidiaries - 10576 - 10,093 - - 1,290 - - - (354435)  (332,476)

EREA/(BE)E Deferred tax credited
aNELHE toj(charged to) proft
or loss during the

year 2520 2,97 (84) (8.821) 703 32,167 (202) (3,370) (93,274) 91 16,822 (51,151)
RZZZZ%+2F At 31 December 2022
=t-Bk and 1 January 2023
“E--%-f-A 308,653 16,341 2 1,212 3195 102,266 1,088 (515,258)  (200,174) (21,000)  (337,613)  (640,788)
WEHELA Deferred tax increased
ERERELN from acquisiion of
(HfsEa0) subsidiaries (note
%) : 504 - - B B B - : S (690 (1639%)

ERIIRE/(FA)  Deferred tax charged
BRuEERE tof(credted to) profi
or loss during the
year 26,176 9,797 - 2,188 (450) (40,784) (807) (34,831) (137,942) 21,000 23,926 (131,727)

RoE-=% At 31 December 2023
+2A=t-R 334,829 26,642 2 3,460 2,745 61482 281 (550,089)  (338,116) - (330,587)  (788911)
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27 HGWMBRIEDHEMEHR 27 INCOME TAX IN THE

(#1) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

ERAEEHREEERES Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(&) recognised: (continued)

(i) EERSPBIRAREE (i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement

of financial position:

ARBTT ARBETT

RMB’000 RMB’000
GRAPBARRAKRPRELERE  Net deferred tax asset in the
BEFHE consolidated statement of
financial position (117,122) (124,604)
RABARRERPHIELERIE  Net deferred tax liability in the
BEFHE consolidated statement of
financial position 906,033 765,392
788,911 640,788
HE-_Z-_="+=-H=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
LEEE AEBEUTEREEAR Group did not recognise deferred income
#3,156,000 L (ZFE==4F : A tax assets in respect of losses amounting
R #38,0007T ) MRELFFEH A to RMB3,156,000 (2022: RMB38,000). The
E - MIEBBEIUHAERZASE - tax losses could be carried forward for a

maximum of five years.
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RIF(PEARAMBE R ERAFHR
E) RAPBAMKAINEIRE
EERAEREETIRREAR
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28 AN, fififh BB

INCOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
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TAX IN THE

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established
in Chinese Mainland. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Chinese Mainland
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Chinese Mainland in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The
Group has fully made provision of deferred
taxation for earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
as the Group has a plan to distribute all these
earnings out of the PRC.

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS

—EBE-=F —EB-—F
2023 2022
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE Authorised:
5,000,000,0000% (ZZE=— 5,000,000,000 (2022:
£ : 5,000,000,000/% ) =A% 5,000,000,000) ordinary shares
M{E0.00001 T2 L@’ of US$0.00001 each 338 338
ERITRHRE : Issued and fully paid:
2,282,500,000 (= E == 2,282,500,000 (2022:
£ 1 2,282,500,0000%) Fi% 2,282,500,000) ordinary shares
ME{E0.00001 T2 E @M’ at US$0.00001 each 152 152
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28 AN, it BB R (4 )

REERERNARAEZER Dividends payable
RS -

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)

to equity

shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year.

—EBE-=F B F
2023 2022
ARKEFTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R E AR SR Interim dividend declared after
P EAR B B AR E AR the interim period of RMB22.3
ARM2230 (rE cents per ordinary share,
FREE@EAY24.3781l)  equivalent to HK24.3 cents
(ZZ——F: 8K cents per ordinary share (2022;
LiBRARB12.7 RMB12.7 cents per ordinary
o AR 14.5%80) share, equivalent to HK14.5
cents) 508,963 299,328
MAREEBETIRO KL Final declared after the year of
KESRLTBKAR RMB48.1 cents per ordinary
4819 (ZZFE == share (2022: RMB31.2 cents
F:RTBEBAR per ordinary share, equivalent
3129 #{A35.7 to HK35.7 cents)
A (l'D) 1,097,883 711,100

RBEHR  REREY

EEARAE-

The final dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of

the reporting period.
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28 B, fifE R e (%) 28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

BEMBFERENARA Dividends payable to equity
ERBRRHOKRE  ERAE shareholders of the Company
FEHE attributable to the previous financial

year, approved during the year

—E-=F —EB-F
2023 2022
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAREEEBAEI R Final dividend in respect of
FEMNKRARETR the previous financial year,
LTmRARE31.2 approved during the year, of
2 FrE35.7 % RMB31.2 cents per ordinary
(BRETBRARE share, equivalent to HK35.7
27.65 * F1E33.9 cents (RMB27.6 cents per
L) ordinary share, equivalent to
HK33.9 cents) 751,279 661,719
RZE-_—_F+-_A=+ On 21 December 2022, the Company
—B ARRREBE=ZFT declared a special dividend of
—ZHE+ZHA=+—H1E RMB853,230,000 (equivalent to
FETRENREARK HK$928,749,000) for the year ended
853,230,0007T (& B 31 December 2022.
928,749,0007T) °
REBRAEERERFEEAHE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
HEREEBRIBERERNGERE the movements therein for the current and
mEHRET - prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
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28 B, fifE R e (%) 28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)

AEENAHHEEREAS
2 35 BF BE T B B B X B A
JR P AN 4B R BN 5= B A
RS T HEBE G
WREZEHZERE -

BEFERARVEEREER
AR AZHEBER - RE
Gk R RV ENGIPEE |
B1O%IREBEFRARES
HAEENRBEENZE
EERBER BEEED
FMEANS50% AL - &
BEzFEEARAREE
HRESDIRAIEDL ©

AEBBBEE/STAD
i RBERBEAXB@T
B0 Bl Py 805 T BR 1) 79 A8
R AT AEHEERAEIR
HEDME BB BASD -

The merger reserve of the Group
represents the difference between the
aggregate of the paid-up share capital
of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group and the consideration paid by
the Group for the business combination
under common control.

In accordance with the Company
Law of the PRC and the respective
articles of association of the Group
companies, each of the companies
that is domiciled in the Chinese
Mainland is required to allocate 10%
of its profit after tax, as determined
in accordance with PRC GAAP, to
the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserve is non-
distributable except that in the event
of liquidation where it can be used
to offset accumulated losses or be
capitalised as paid-up capital, subject
to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the
liability-to-asset ratio, which is total liabilities
divided by total assets, on a continuous
basis, taking into account the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the raising of new
debts as well as the redemption of the
existing debts, and manage the liability to
asset ratio. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the year.

The liability-to-asset ratios at the end of 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

—E-=F 2
2023 2022
AR¥ETTT ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
27,783,482 25,837,842
11,747,432 11,512,110
42.3% 44.6%
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29 <5l e B < £ £ IR 29

REBESN  BRRE - IHTEMAE
MET (BRI BREE R
AEBEAB LR LARHIBITE - (RN
TETNBERETRHEEKRES RER
BTHEOR - XERRNFENAEHR -

o 4ok s
HEE

P SN £R B B B AROR 2 B 40

-
it

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement with
the sellers of Yuzhou, Nantong Changle, Jiangsu
Zhongnan and Langji (the “Sellers”), the Group has
a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts due
from the Sellers and their related parties from the
purchase consideration payable to the sellers and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis.

The effect of the netting arrangements on the
Group's financial position is as below:

As at 31 December 2023

TEHRRRINEE
Amounts subject to enforceable netting
arrangements
FHRHER
BER ik 2HEE  ZHNEE &t
Amounts not
subject to
enforceable
Gross Amounts  Net amounts netting
amounts offset reported  arrangements Total
ARBTR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARBTR  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets
BHRMTERERRE Trade and bill receivables 564,581 (564,581) - 1,995,595 1,995,595
SRERE Financial liabilities
BRAABEFTEBEEHA  Financial liabilities at fair value through
EHBRNSRAR profit or loss 899,737 (564,581) 335,156 - 335,156
VL Analysed into:
ok Current 114,025 114,025
FERE Non-current 221,131 221,131




29

S e R I (4) 29

R-EBE—_—_F+-_A=+—H

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(con

tinued)

As at 31 December 2022

RHFERHNEE

Amounts subject to enforceable netting

arrangements
THRHEE
BeH iRk EREE  ZHMEE @t
Amounts not
subject to
enforceable
Gross Amounts  Net amounts netting
amounts offset reported  arrangements Total
ARBTR AR¥TR  ARETR  AR%Trn AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets
B RUTERENZR Trade and bill receivables 544,183 (544,183) - 1,557,885 1,557,885
SRER Financial liabilities
BRAAEEFEREEHA  Financial liabilities at fair value through
EHERNERAR profit or loss 935,043 (544,183) 390,860 - 390,860
AR Analysed into:
ik Current - _
£/ Non-current 390,860 390,860
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30 EBOHE 30 BUSINESS COMBINATION
RZZEZ=F+H AxEERE=FWKE On October 2023, the Group acquired a 100%
BRETAREEEREERAA ([RAE]) equity interest in Chengdu Langiji Life Service Co.,
100%#Ez=  REBRRREeRERIZZE Ltd (“Langji”) from a third party at a consideration
HEEBRRTHEETENHANRE - BAE including cash consideration and contingent
NEMXEEEED - WESBERAEER consideration at fair value based on the actual
PR A ER A Y EE IR EB R 2 Hp delivery progress of the managed areas. Langji is
—IRM{EHR ° engaged in the property management service. The

acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy
to expand its property management operation in the
Chinese Mainland.
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30

EBOU(H) 30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
WEREHTREEEREERA Acquisition of Chengdu Langji Life
7 (&) Service Co., Ltd (continued)
REEBHA#REERBENAAEE The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities at
I the acquisition date are as follows:

AREFT
RMB’000
W - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 976
mEEE Intangible assets (i) 67,646
B IEEE Deferred tax assets 504
ReRIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,245
FE Inventories 9
B 5 fe W R I IR B Trade and bill receivables 60,123
B SRR Trade payables (93,295)
aR&E Contract liabilities (38,288)
RNVERT 18 Current taxation (1,942)
BEBHIEBE Deferred tax liabilities (16,900)
IR Non-controlling interests (ii) 3,789
FrUtBE nl s Bl B &% 2 A/t Fair value of net identified liabilities acquired,

BE - MERIEERE R net of non-controlling interests (7,133)
Yo B i ) P 2 Goodwill on acquisition 95,621
BRME Total consideration 88,488
EEEARE - AT« Consideration transferred, satisfied by:

ReERE Cash consideration 47,062
BAREEFEBEEZSEHT AE Contingent consideration for a financial
HIEZMNEREBENHARKE  lability at fair value through profit or loss 41,426

88,488
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30 EHOUF(A])

(i) EREEBREHEINBFBERHOA
R #67,600,0007T °

(i)  ARERBEIEIEBRESN BT
BENMBGBECHIASRTHOERL
{5 R IR A 2R o

(i) ERAFEEXEREEAEERSH
NEERMEER G T RNTER
R e R E AR %S o TR
HER B AT BLPT S B A T AR ©

(iv) 1ERKERZEN—BD - WHETK
% PEREEEBE(AXEEE
%/ SeREEREmMK) BER
NEZFEERNAARE - &)
RN E2ERAARKS0,439,000
T FRIERE e RIENET - B
RE=FRANEEBEFE - ZREHK
BRWIEHEN G SIS EA
HE—R - RZEVBHMERIED
B BERETEEMERNES) -

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

Intangible assets including identified
customer relationships of approximately
RMB67,600,000.

The Group recognised the non-controlling
interests based on their proportionate interest
in the recognised amounts of the assets and
liabilities of the acquirees.

The goodwill
attributed to the expected synergies and
other benefits from combining the assets
and activities of property management with
those of the Group. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

recognised is primarily

As part of the purchase agreement,
contingent consideration is payable, which
is dependent on the actual delivery progress
of the managed areas (as converted from
secured areas and/or contracted areas) of
Langji subsequent to the acquisition. The
initial amount recognised was RMB80,439,000
which was determined using the discounted
cash flow model and is within Level 3 fair
value measurement. The consideration will
be settled every six months in accordance
with the payment schedule in the purchase
agreement. At the date of approval of these
financial statements, no further significant
changes to the consideration are expected.
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

acquisition of a subsidiary:

Analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

AR¥T T

RMB’000

BB Total consideration 88,488
B RAREBEGEEEES  Less: Contingent consideration for financial liability at

FFAEBERNERAEDN fair value through profit or loss

HARAE (41,426)

B FEBEBRENERERE Less: Cash consideration to be paid after year end (39,013)

8,049

FREMNRESRE Cash consideration paid during the year (8,049)

FrERNIRE MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents acquired 10,245

RERRSFZEMRNFE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 2,196

RERARE—_E—=F+_-_f=+—
B BAEEAMRS RSN @ENT

Wz
HA P9at )

2023 are as follows:

Revenue
Profit for the period

The aggregate revenue and profits generated from
the Langji from the acquisition date to 31 December

ARBTT
RMB’000

29,912
3,184

il Lt BEEER —_ T —_=F—A—H
T ARKEHEE_T_=F+_A=
T—HLEFER Mg MAEEDT

Wz
F R F

follows:

Revenue
Profit for the year

Had the above acquisition been completed on 1
January 2023, the total Group’s revenue and profit
for the year ended 31 December 2023 would be as

ARBT T
RMB’000

14,956,822
2,945,369
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31 Bl b BE R il T H I &
FefEAE

AEERBAEEBEBIETELRER N
BEL  MEXREERR - AKETEAR
REAME BB E REAKN S B ER
B4 ) H R AN B AR LR

ASEMEHNZSRBRIAREANE
L5 R R @ AR E R BOR R AR HI#
MEAT o

REBGEE 5 R IAE KL EKE
B RESER RERREF
EBYRZRERTERAREER

% -

AEERRY AR S LIRS EHE
WA R ZREIRITERABNE
REERR  BRBEEFELER
MR BB RIT R EMAPL EiR
7 EEEEMBETERZERD
HFTBRHOMRZEMEAERK -

AREE TR 5 WA R K
SRR DA N FE UK A Bk 77 ) EL b FE MR
BHEBNEERBRRIE AR
TR RANENINEHAETAR
RERER -

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its equity investments
in other entities and movements in its own equity
share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and bill receivables and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits
since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or
large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant
losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group expects that the credit risk
associated with trade and bill receivables and
other receivables due from related parties
to be low, since the related parties have
strong capacity to meet contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and
credit worthy third parties. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis
by customer/counterparty. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group as the customer bases of the
Group’s trade and bill receivables and other
receivables are widely dispersed. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The tables below show the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on historical collection information
unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2023 and
2022. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.
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31 <rplmE B A B R i T A 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
SOfEAE( 4 ) AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

TRARS
s FEFR ERFEIRAREEE
RZB-zE
TZB=1-H As at 31 December 2023 Note  12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
£-k8  ETER E=RR B it
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARBTR AREfn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BRRUGUERENZE  Trade and bill receivables (i) 4,539 - - 1,991,056 1,995,595
SIATRAFE - EHRIEUE Financial assets included in
RERAENEBEAE prepayments, other receivables
and other assets
-I% - Normal (ii) 1,215,506 - - - 1,215,506
RRHRTRR Restricted bank deposits 66,613 - - - 66,613
ReRRELEEN Cash and cash equivalents 11,580,159 - - - 11,580,159
THER Time deposits 4,254,863 - - - 4,254,863

17,121,680 = = 1,991,056 19,112,736




<2 il o o e P e < it T 2L
sefeifE( &)

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

T-EREH
i3 EEFE BEFEIRDESEE
RZZ-ZE+-A=F-H Asat31 December 2022 Note  12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
£k £-R8 El BHE &
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ESRUGEREREE  Trade and bill receivables (i 16,006 - = 1541789 1,557,885
BIAFAZE « 24 EIEUR Financial assets included in
REHAENEHEAE prepayments, other receivables
and other assets
-8 - Normal (ii) 1,082,666 - - - 1,082,666
RRHRTHR Restricted bank deposits 129,949 - - - 129,949
ReRREERN Cash and cash equivalents 12,592,832 - = = 12,592,832
THER Time deposits 2,558,608 = = = 2,558,608
16,380,151 - - 1,541,789 17,921,940
B EE - Notes:
(i) RAEEERG S EETRE (i) For trade receivables to which the Group
WE S EKIET S - AR applies the simplified approach for
R B P ) & R BRI I SR impairment, information based on the
FEE19 © provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to
the financial statements.
(ii) FIJ N E A R IE R H A E B (i) The credit quality of the financial assets

MEMBEENEEDRAELE
BHAYEENBRTERSRE
BEMEERRB M5 ERE
BERIREMEBRES[LER]
BRI eREEMNEEEEW
BRIARE] -

included in other receivables and other
assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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31 SiEES RS T HMZA 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
FefEfE (%) AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AEENEEEERAESSRS
EE - BERSRBNHENEE
BERERUERERRSES
HeSOfE B T RS - BB
BEEREREELER - HAE
7 o

AEENBRREENERERSDE
SHENEERDETEELEN
BE  BREARTHNRSHE
R E B2 REEINSRANAH
SERE  NWENEEHAEREY
RHRENEEHK

TRINTREFRAKEFTES
BEENSRTARIYER &
RERARMBERESRE (BHEEM
BRMEK (MRFEF X)) ER
WE R BRITH R EO SN
R RARE A R ER IO &
P HH-

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
year of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay.
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31 @ﬁﬁﬂﬂfﬁ’*ﬂ&ﬁrﬂi /A4 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
sefEfE (&) AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AEABRRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
15/
REX 122F 2E55 5ENE @t REE
Within 1
year or on 1to2 2to5 Over 5 Carrying
demand years years years Total amount

ARBTRE ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR AR®T:R
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

“T-=F 31 December 2023

TZA=t-H
HEaRE Lease liabilities 237,925 223,936 606,164 2,555,234 3,623,259 2,419,109
EHENFIR Trade payables 1,443,103 60,564 22,136 20,315 1,546,118 1,546,118

JAE@%Hmﬁ Financial liabilities
REFERNS  included in other

BEE payables and
accruals 2,599,096 - - - 2,599,096 2,599,096
BAREEZER Financial liabilities at
HEBEHAAEH  fair value through
BRMERMEE  profit or loss 123,188 78,774 176,223 - 378,185 335,156

4,403,312 363,274 804,523 2,575,549 8,146,658 6,899,479




298 “BAERERRS  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(B BITHEBES + LA RKEITR)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
31 SiEES RS T HMZA 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
FefEfE (%) AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BRABRRESRT
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
1ERD
RER 1228 2B5% 5L it FREE
Within 1
year or on 1t02 2t05 Over 5 Carrying
demand years years years Total amount

ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARRTRT ARET:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

—T-CF 31 December 2022

+-A=1+-H
HEaR Lease liabilities 156,121 217,670 603,190 2,638,657 3,615,638 2,401,717
ESENTE Trade payables 1,339,345 - - - 1,339,345 1,339,345

FINEHMENFIE Financial liabilities
REHERANE  included in other

BEE payables and
accruals 3,119,844 - - - 3,119,844 3,119,844
WMARBESER Financial liabilities at

AN
JLIE
HEBAZH  fair value through
BROEMARE  profitor loss - 131,776 347,027 10,920 489,723 390,860

4,615,310 349,446 950,217 2,649,577 8,564,550 7,251,766

AMEERAEBRTEMABEEK Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
KRB REERETISHEE G E or future cash flows of a financial instrument

ERBRRER - ARIRITIRE F X will fluctuate because of changes in market
TR T HEERED  BltASE interest rates. The Group is not exposed
EreEEiERe RESEED to significant interest rate risk for cash and
S ZBRFIREERFERER o cash equivalents or restricted cash because

the interest rates of cash at bank are not
expected to change significantly.

REEWERAZEFEER - B The Group is not exposed to material interest
b AR R E AT R R rate risk as the Group has no long term debt
obligations with a floating interest rate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The functional currency of the Group's
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland is RMB. The
Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates to be insignificant except for
dividends distributed by a Chinese Mainland-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding
company outside Chinese Mainland. Almost
all of the Group’s operating activities are
carried out in Chinese Mainland with most of
the transactions denominated in RMB. The
cash held by the Company and Hong Kong
subsidiary are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD") and the functional currency of
these entities are HKD.

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
18, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:
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31 <Emlm peE B il THRAS 31
sefEfE (48 )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

. E—RMbE: REK
EE Rl TN 2§
(MHEREEXER
RABERERR
BB IS RER
BHRE)FENRR

B{E

. F_MEE: KA
F_FBARE (A
AFEE—ZWA
BB ASE) - M
AEBERTAER
R ABBEDN
NAEBE - TAE
R A \BERLE
MG EE N B A
R

. FMMEE: KA
EXRTHBERA
BEFENRE
(=1

AEEIHE (BEFHB
ERE)AAETERTA
NRBEFENBEREIE
Fer&mEAH - M%
RESTEMTIAEESE
B YEEGHEEEANE
2HARE - HEREE
FA75 B BB S HLfE o

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs

The Group's finance department
headed by the chief financial officer is
responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments.
At each reporting date, the finance
manager analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial
officer.
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31 <Pl b e P K <l L HLIK 2

FefEfE (41 )

31

TREVNAEEEZHTA
MASREEFTERER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair
value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s financial instruments:

RZBZZF+ZA=T-ANAAREFEDBA
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into

RZBZZF+ZA
ST-ANARER -1 E-R ]
Fair value at
31 December
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARBT T ARBTT ARETR ARET R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEHAAEBTE  Recurring fair value
measurement
BRAREEGFEBEEE Financial liabiliies measured
STAEEEBEREEE  atfair value through profit or
& (P3E29) loss (note 29) 899,737 - - 899,737
RZE-ZFt-A=t-BMALBEHENEA
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into
RZB-Z%+2A
=+-BNARER F—1} il F=R
Fair value at
31 December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARBTFL ARETTT AREFTT AEEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMAAEBETE  Recurring fair value
measurement
BROREE;FEEEES Financial liabilities measured
STABHERMERE  atfair value through profit or
& (FzE29) loss (note 29) 935,043 - = 935,043
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31 <R e s B <Rt T HZA 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

sefeifE( &)

REBEZZTEZ="FK=F
——#+=-—A=+—H1
FE - F-HHEFE_H2
P MG - R A
SENE=FK  AEEH
BEBREBEELNAECEE
RS 2 ¥ E B R B R AR
B -

EME=RAAEE
Bkt

+

fein

ARBEFERANGE
BT R ABURESIT

Financial liabilities measured

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

During the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The value technique and the inputs
used in the fair value measurements
are set out as below:

R ERM EXTABENARE
Valuation Significant
techniques Unobservable inputs

Discounted cash

Discountrate 1 or 5 - year LPR

at fair value through profit or flow method
loss
BRAnBAEFEAEZEHTAE UIRBEREE BhIR = —HEHFHLPR

HEaNERAaE
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movement during the year in
the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements is as follows:

—E-=F —E-F

2023 2022

ARETFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—A—BRE%E Gross amounts at 1 January 935,043 =

WNE (KE30) Addition (note 30) 41,426 935,043
FRPME R ERH Change in fair value recognised in

NAEELEH profit or loss during the year (50,983) =

X R $R 86 Cost reimbursements (25,749) =

R+-—A=+—HBKEH Gross amounts at 31 December 899,737 935,043

B EHERFUBREREZRE  Less: trade and bill receivables (564,581) (544,183)

R+-A=+—B®%E Net amounts at 31 December 335,156 390,860

RZEBE_=FFK_FT -
F+ZH=+—8 " &K&&
5| % B 2N BN 8 AR AR 51 BR
e T ANKREMBERAR
AAEBEEIESERESR -

The carrying amounts of the Group's
financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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32 KA 32 COMMITMENTS
REBEEFTHERNGE T BHRERAIELD The Group has following material commitments
BENEARENT which are contracted for but not provided in the

consolidated financial statements:

ARBTT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000
BENATEHEMNERMY Capital expenditure in respect of:
—REME — Investment properties 392,380 =
— ¥ - BERRE - Property, plant and equipment 24,848 50,686
417,228 50,686
33 HAKB¥ TR 33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
(a) BABEAHMEBREER (@) Name and relationship with a
related party
SRR AR AR REER  BEEE The ultimate holding company is CRCL and
AT AEEEM - the immediate holding company is CR Land.
(b) EHEAEFNRZH (b) Transactions with related parties
M EZ =B AR SR 3 b EoAth b 5 SE i Y In addition to the transactions detailed
TN REBPARERE D G B elsewhere in these financial statements, the
FEITUTRS Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the year:
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33 HABE RS (&) 33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

—EC=F —E-CF
2023 2022
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEMFEER RIEERS Residential property management and value-
added services
MEEB RSB Property management services
— RRERAR] ,HMTE’ A - The ultimate holding company and its
([EH%E]) R H\ T subsidiaries (the “CRH Group”), and its
AELE (TREEHEEWEE)  associates and joint ventures (excluding the
CR Land Group) 289,920 129,564
—-EEBRARIRENRBAR - The immediate holding company and its
((ERENEE])  ELE subsidiaries (the “CR Land Group”), joint
PN venture and associates 314,477 235,450
604,397 365,014
IIEEFMIEERS Value-added services to non-property owners
- EHEERABELNFESE - The CRH Group and its associates and joint
¥ (TBEERENEE) ventures (excluding the CR Land Group) 17 123
- ERENEEREBENFE - The CR Land Group and its associates and
RELE joint ventures 594,644 664,047
594,661 664,170
REFMEERE Value-added services for property owners
- EREEREBENFES - The CRH Group and its associates and joint
¥ (TaEERENE I) ventures (excluding the CR Land Group) 24,035 18,059
EHEMSEREBEAFE - The CR Land Group and its associates and
EtE joint ventures 161,284 104,344
185,319 122,403
?ﬁ%%%ﬁ’]?ﬁ%k EREEE R Commercial operational and property
BERT management and operational services for
commercial properties
—EREEREEE T 15% - The CRH Group and its associates and joint
rEERERENEER) ventures (excluding the CR Land Group) 49,837 39,532
- **iﬂﬁiﬁ%&ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬂﬂiﬁ - The CR Land Group and its associates and
RELE joint ventures 2,298,018 1,794,408

2,347,855 1,833,940
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33 H KBTS (4) 33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

—E-=F B F
2023 2022
AREFTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
WAMENMEETIEIRTY  Property management services for
office properties
= ﬁiﬁ’il)}ﬁﬁ 22"l - The CRH Group and its associates
BELE(TREEH and joint ventures (excluding the
Eﬂﬂ%.) CR Land Group) 201,473 208,799
—EHEMEBENEBEL - The CR Land Group and its
NREAEEDFE associates and joint ventures 475,913 565,251
677,386 774,050
BEEM - B RRE Purchase of goods, carparks and
services
—EHEBLEBZ /AT - The CRH Group and its associates
HEERE (TEFEEE and joint ventures (excluding the
BEHER) CR Land Group) 91,848 100,249
—EHEMEBRHEBE - The CR Land Group and its
NAEIEEEPE associates and joint ventures 389,259 291,664
481,107 391,913
FERZ Interest expenses
—ERHEBNEBZ/AF - The CRH Group and its associates
HE S (TRIEEH and joint ventures (excluding the
BEEE) CR Land Group) 56 14
—EHEMEBRHEBE - The CR Land Group and its
NAEEEEPE associates and joint ventures 2,127 844

2,183

858
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

—E-=F ot =Sl -
2023 2022
AR¥ETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REERAEEE Additions of right-of-use assets
—EHEBEKEBZ /AR - The CRH Group and its associates
HE 2 (TEEEH and joint ventures (excluding the
EMEE) CR Land Group) 1,828 =
—EHEMEENEBZ - The CR Land Group and its
ARG ERE associates and joint ventures 85,640 8,726
87,468 8,726
%2 HAsk R A E R Short-term or variable-lease
payments
—EHEBEKEBZ/A R - The CRH Group and its associates
HE &b (PEEEH and joint ventures (excluding the
EEE) CR Land Group) 877 =
—EHEMEEREBZ - The CR Land Group and its
NRIEEEPE associates and joint ventures 9,381 6,539
10,258 6,539
s - Notes:

(i)

RIS EMIRITR ARAF
(T MRIT] - AAEENOR
RUBAR) WIFK -

R-ZE-_=F+_-_A=+—
B A& kBRTEHBELASE
EFERRERRTNERAR
527,711,000 (— &2 ——
F 0 AR¥E371,837,0007T) °
BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—
ALLEFE  ZETEREENR
FMBEWA A AR 460,000
T(ZZTEZZF: AR%
1,310,0007T) °

RZIB_=FK-_T_—
ERNEERA2BEERERE
HEEB D AR ©

LR E R EMRHHER
TIR BRRT #73 X R 7 52 O 5K
EE -

(i)

Deposits with Zhuhai China Resources Bank
Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”), a fellow subsidiary of
the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, cash and
bank balances included deposits of
RMB527,711,000 (2022: RMB371,837,000)
which were made by the Group to CR Bank.
The aggregate interest income arising from
such deposits amounted to RMB3,460,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB1,310,000).

During 2023 and 2022, Mixc Commercial
was entitled to use some trademarks of CR
Land for free.

The prices for the above service fees and
other transactions were determined in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed
by the contracted parties.



08 “BAERERRS  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B B7TIEZES) - AN RS T)
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33 HAKBWITR () 33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

—E-=F —E
2023 2022
AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRE Wk A B 05 BRIR Receivables from related parties
ZEoEWGRENMEWE  Trade and bill receivables
—EHEBE K EBZA AR - The CRH Group and its associates
HAELRE (TREEH and joint ventures (excluding the
BiER) CR Land Group) 114,516 9,865
—EHBEMEBENERE - The CR Land Group and its
NEEEEDE associates and joint ventures 764,439 708,490
878,955 718,355
A RUE - HihEUWEIEN.  Prepayments, other receivables and
Hith&E other assets
—FEHEBNREBZ /AR - The CRH Group and its associates
B S (TRIEEH and joint ventures (excluding the
B E) CR Land Group) 68,290 42,627
—EHEMEEREBE - The CR Land Group and its
NEHEEERE (T associates and joint ventures
EHEMIEERRAR) (excluding China Resources Land
Investment Limited) 607,163 567,404

675,453 610,031
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

—EBE-=F B F
2023 2022
ARKETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE 1~ BA B 5 kIR Payables to related parties
B SR RIE Trade payables
—ERHEBNEBZ /AR - The CRH Group and its associates
HEERE (TEFBEHE and joint ventures (excluding the
B EE) CR Land Group) 12,764 25,539
—EHEMEBRHEBE - The CR Land Group and its
NAEIEEEPE associates and joint ventures 71,044 88,126
83,808 113,665
H At AT FRIE Other payables
—ERHEBENEBZ /AR - The CRH Group and its associates
HEERE (TEFEE and joint ventures (excluding the
EEE) CR Land Group) 43,778 88,426
—EHEMEBKREBE - The CR Land Group and its
NREIEEERE associates and joint ventures 267,249 781,743
311,027 870,169
cRA&RE Contract liabilities
—ERHEBNEBZ /AR - The CRH Group and its associates
HEERE (TEFEE and joint ventures (excluding the
EMEE) CR Land Group) 7,694 3,619
—EHEMEBRHEBE - The CR Land Group and its
NREIEEEPE associates and joint ventures 33,427 67,723
41,121 71,342
HEAE (M) Lease liabilities (Note (i))
—EHEERHEEE AR - The CRH Group and its associates
HE S (PRIEEH and joint ventures (excluding the
EMEE) CR Land Group) 4,332 261
—EHEMEBKRHEBE - The CR Land Group and its
NAEIEEEPE associates and joint ventures 55,512 34,181
59,844 34,442
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33 HAKBWITR () 33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Wex: R HEFRABARE Note: The lease payment during the year
25,720,000 (ZT = =4 : amounted to RMB25,720,000 (2022:
AR#23 967,0007T) - R = RMB23,967,000). As at 31 December 2023,
T_=F+=ZA=+—H" 'K the Group’s right-of-use assets relating
EEEZEHECREECE to such rental contracts amounted to
FRIEAE AN RES57,689,000 RMB57,689,000 (2022: RMB21,302,000).

T(ZEZZF: AR¥
21,302,0007T) °

RAEEFZEBASNTH (B Remuneration for key management personnel
MESHEBEENAARESN S of the Group, including amounts paid to the
EERWHOMHEENE TReH Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8
MESREE) AT : and certain of the highest paid employees as

disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

HET-A=T—HLFE

Year ended December 31,

—E=F —E_—F
2023 2022
AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e ERREVEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in
kind 4,390 5,148
BIETELT Discretionary bonuses 17,024 18,860
BRIREET B R Retirement scheme contributions 618 790
22,032 24,798
HEsEst Al B T | (R KTEE Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”

6(b)) ° (see note 6(b)).
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34 FJEHIE 5> R T H

R-E—_=FR T _—F+-_A=+—
C BEEMITAMEEELT ¢

H

(a)

(b)

TREE

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

and 2022 are as follows:

(a) Financial assets

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the 31 December 2023

ARETTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Z o R ENEWEE  Trade and bill receivables 1,995,595 1,573,715
FIATEMFIE - HAip gl Financial assets included in
RAEREMEER prepayments, other receivables and
SREE other assets 1,215,506 1,207,259
SR BRI TR Restricted bank deposits 66,613 129,949
RENRRESFZEY Cash and cash equivalents 11,580,159 12,592,832
TEHATF 5K Time deposits 4,254,863 2,558,608
19,112,736 18,062,363
cRBE (b) Financial liabilities

R-ZBZ=f+=HA=+—8

As at 31 December 2023

ARETIT ARETIT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H S ENRIR Trade payables - 1,546,118 1,546,118
FIAH b et FIE X Financial liabilities included
FEETE AR in other payables and
SRBE accruals - 2,599,096 2,599,096
WARBEFERE Financial liabilities at fair
BE) T AEHIIBE  value through profit or loss
HEeRAaE 335,156 - 335,156
HEAE Lease liabilities - 2,419,109 2,419,109
335,156 6,564,323 6,899,479
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34 FHEHE R T B (&) 34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)
(b) E£mEEME (&) (b) Financial liabilities (continued)
R-E-_—_F+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022

ARETT ARBT T ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 ENFIR Trade payables = 1,339,345 1,339,345
FIAH b Bt 3B X Financial liabilities included

FEETE AR in other payables and

SRBE accruals = 3,119,844 3,119,844
WARBEFEABE Financial liabilities at fair

B AEHIEE  value through profit or loss

HEeRAaE 390,860 - 390,860
HEAE Lease liabilities = 2,401,717 2,401,717

390,860 6,860,906 7,251,766
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35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

Information about the statement of financial position

s @ of the Company at the end of the reporting period is
as follows:
—E-=F — g2
2023 2022
AREFTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EmBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB KR Property, plant and equipment 39 =
RETBRARIRIRE Investment in a subsidiary 158 158
IEmBEEAE Total non-current asset 197 158
MENEE Current assets
RERRESFEY Cash and cash equivalents 146,888 5,473,323
E BT Time deposits 1,410,157 =
TESFRIE -~ RE REHA Prepayments, deposits and other
FEW IR receivables 7,036,381 5,180,087
RBEERE Total current assets 8,593,426 10,653,410
nRBBE Current liabilities
HEMENRIE R ERE R Other payables and accruals 36,442 870,280
mENBERRE Total current liabilities 36,442 870,280
MENE EFRE Net current assets 8,556,984 9,783,130
BEERRBARE Total assets less current liabilities 8,557,181 9,783,288
FEE NET ASSETS 8,557,181 9,783,288
M EQUITY
[N Share capital 152 152
Eofth {7 s Other reserves 8,557,029 9,783,136
M iRE TOTAL EQUITY 8,557,181 9,783,288
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(B EITIEAES) - UABRKEST)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

35 AvlJE BRI (&) 35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
BIEE - Note:
RARZBRARFEERZNT - A summary of the Company's share capital and reserves is
as follows:
[N R EE ZitEE st
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total

AREBTIET ARBTT AR®TRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

R=ZB==—%-—HF—8 At1 January 2022 152 11,640,394 (165,418) 11,475,128
FREERZLTE Total comprehensive income for
the year - 122,437 122,437
T —FKHEME  Final dividend for 2021 = (661,719) (661,719)
T —FFRHRE  The interim dividend for 2022 - (299,328)  (299,328)
RIS Special dividend B - (853,230)  (853,230)
R-B==F At 31 December 2022 and 1
+ZA=+—8AK January 2023
—E-_=%—HA—H 152 11,640,394 (1,857,258) 9,783,288
FAL2m=BTE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 34,135 34,135
—T-—FKRHRE  Final dividend for 2022 - - (751,279)  (751,279)
ZZ_=FFHAE  The interim dividend for 2023 - - (508,963) (508,963)
R=—Z2=-=%+=-H= At 31 December 2023
+—8 152 11,640,394 (8,083,365) 8,557,181
36 SR MR I 36 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD
RBEHARE  EFERRERPRS - After the end of the reporting period the directors
#— S B ERHE28(b) proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 28(b).
37 i 37 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
ETFUEESEFEAE  NEAKRIPRENZ7] Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to

—B - conform to current period presentation.
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BB G ERE 15 (B5]) MBHRERNET
([Z===FEET))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

(“2020 amendments”)
EEGRTEE 15 (BR]) MIBHEM 27
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CSRELERRBIERD

MR ERBEE (T —FE]))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:

W HLR LM A A China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or
amended standards, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

RUTHBg 2%
FRMETHHBER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

—Z-mFE-A—H

1 January 2024

—ZEMFE—-H—H
1 January 2024

Non-current liabilities with covenants (‘2022 amendments”)

BRUBRE

BE - HEmRELH

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7,

£RIFE165% (BR])HE - EREDNEERE
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

BREHERETS (R HeRnBXRREEVBHRELENETREMTA :

—E-NFE—-H—H
1 January 2024
—E_MFE—-HA—H

1 January 2024

Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements

BEGIERFE215E (B EXEHNTE
Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign
exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability

AEE IR A FER RS H &R &R
RERN T EETHE - ESBHMNGER
REMZEERNBC TR E 57 6 B 74
BREXNBRATE

Bz ] R

—Z-_h¥—H—H
1 January 2025

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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—E-=f ZBC--E 2o ZE-TE  —E-AF
GERE Consolidated results 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARETT ARE®ETT AR®Tr AR®Tr ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi revenue 14,766,952 12,016,179  8,875384 6,778,911  5:868,103
BrEEATR A Profit before tax 3,912,124 2,906,153 2,336,556 1,134,926 496,508
Bigeiha Income tax expenses (969,484) (692,905) (610,486) (317,216) (131,580)
F A F Profit for the year 2,942,640 2,213,248 1,726,070 817,710 364,928
AT ALREMR : Attributable to:
PAYNGIL Znli Equity shareholders of the 2,928,749  2206,126 1,724,925 817,170 364,928
Company
eI IR iR Non-controlling interests 13,891 7,122 1,145 = =
FEMEMRR Consolidated financial position
FRBEE Non-current assets 8,265,067 9,998,710 5561773 2,744,185 2478121
MBEE Current assets 19,518,415 15,839,132 16,030,149 16,331,769 4,623,157
mEEE Current liabilities 8,339,707 8,039,561 6,079,062 5055330 4,637,347
MENEE /(BfE)FSE  Net current assets/(liabilities) 11,178,708 7,799,571 9,951,087 11,276,439 (14,190)
BEBERIBEE Total assets less current liabilities 19,443,775 17,798,281 15512860 14,020,624 2,463,931
FnEaE Non-current liabilities 3,407,725 3472549 1,623,835 1557592 1432347
BEFE Net assets 16,036,050 14,325,732 13,889,025 12,463,032 1,031,584
g Equity
PR Share capital 152 152 152 152 88
e Reserves 15,948,084 14279577 13,887,728 12,462,880 1,031,496
ADEESREEEER  Equity attributable to equity 15,948,236 14,279,729 13,887,880 12,463,032 1,031,584
shareholders of the company
R R Non-controlling interests 87,814 46,003 1,145 = =
b gk Total equity 16,036,050 14,325,732 13,889,025 12,463,032 1,031,584
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RAFRN - BRXESE N

BT -

T ER LR R In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following words and expressions shall have the

following meanings.

[ZZE-MFERFAFAE] AREBR-ZZZNFALH (EHR) BIHREAFRE

‘2024 AGM”

[ ERMA]

“Articles of Association”

[BEFE

“Board”

[EERTH]

“CG Code”

B

“China” or “PRC”

[REPE]

“Companies Act”

[ARE]

“Company”

[4% %A R

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

[ZEHET

“CR Bank”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 7 June 2024

RAREBERMAA - EARIERT ~ 7R sA R 7T SR
the articles of association of the Company, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time

RRREEER

the board of directors of the Company

EHRAIKMERCT (RIREM SR+ M) P B a~r Al
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix
14) of the Listing Rules

REARLME - ERXEMERERAFRMNS - TRESE - REDRFFRITTERE &
N

the People’s Republic of China and, except where the context requires and only for the
purpose of this annual report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

FEREFE2FRANE(ZTE=FEFIR) - KTRER] - fARSAREM T A BN
the Companies Act (2023 Revision), Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ERERETERLAT - —HRHASHSHEMKIOBERRERAF - HRGOMRBERZTER
T (RO RS : 1209)

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited GEEERAEEBR A H]), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1209)

AR FWRAMETARE - XEME - E2H(EE) R IEHEH
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and as the context requires, CRH
and/or CR Land

WEEBRITROBRAR - R—RKEBLR
R0 1578 H AP 4949.77 %K) AR i

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (BK/EFEBRITRMAER A
bank headquartered in Zhuhai, in which CRI holds approximately 49.77% equity interest
as at the Latest Practicable Date

VMERBMEMIRTT  RERERTITES - 8

A]), a municipal

3
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[ HEE
“CR Group”

[FEHEHMEEA L]
“CR Land Connected
Persons”

[EBEH

“CR Land”

[FhEER]

“CRC”

(8 (&E) ]

“CRH”

(8 (S3) BEAL
“CRH Connected
Persons”

[ R
“CRI”

(=]

“Director(s)”

[AEE]
“‘Group”

2 (KEH)  HERAFRASBENNERR (ZHEBREEERIN
CRH, its holding companies, and their respective subsidiaries, unless specifically
defined otherwise

EHBHREBEA
CR Land and its associates

EHBMARAR - —ARFESESTMAZHBERAT - HRMONEBIRRAER £ (RHK
5% 0 1109) - AREEMSEEE  UARRRINEREERAR

China Resources Land Limited (ZEHE AR A F]), a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1109), ultimately held by CRC and the
immediate holding company of the Company

FEEHAERAR  —MRPEKIHEREEAR  TAXTHEKCEEEEESER
ZESEBNEELE  BARARFRMREIER AR

China Resources Company Limited (FBIZ BB R A F)]), a company established in

the PRC with limited liability and a state-owned enterprise under the supervision of
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council,
PRC and the ultimate holding company of the Company

M (E) ARAR
B AR A A
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (228 (5£@)AB R A 7)), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, ultimately held by CRC and the
intermediate holding company of the Company

C—EREEEMAZNERAR  ATFEEERESE  XA/EARE

EH(KE)  HERAR HEEONBAREHBEEAR (MEEEBEMREAL)
CRH, its holding companies, their respective subsidiaries and their associates
(excluding CR Land Connected Persons)

ERHBROHBERAR - —ARPEKIHRNDERLIF - WAER (KE) B EZERAQF
China Resources Inc. (ZEERHDBERAF]), a joint stock limited liability company
established in the PRC, which is an intermediate holding company of CRH

RRARESE

the director(s) of the Company

RARREMB AR (FIZNEFIE - ARR REEA— M ZEHEAR)
the Company and its subsidiaries (or the Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the context may require)
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[T
“HK$” or “HKD”

[&%]
“Hong Kong”

[RIEBRRAITTRE]

“Latest Practicable Date”

[ LR Al
“Listing Rules”

[

“Listing”

[ R E?E

“Prospectus”

[E4]
“Reorganisation”

[ARE]
“RMB”

[ &5 M ETE P
“SFO”

[ B )

“Share(s)”

[ ]
“Shareholder(s)”

BRZEEERET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

HEEESIITHR
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

ZEZNFMA+TAR - BIRARFRNEDRAMGRIAEERNFRPAEHE TEHNREER
AJ47H A

19 April 2024, being the latest practicable date prior to the bulk printing and publication
of this annual report for the purpose of ascertaining certain information contained in this
annual report

EEMERXSAERDAES ETRA - LRS- sk A= 75 B2k
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

Pt B 2 P AR T
the listing of the Shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange

ARBRMA_ZE_THF+—A-THBENBRER
the prospectus of the Company dated 25 November 2020

REBEREE ETETNHEE  FHEA2HBRERESL - SANCERE - 54]

the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group in preparation of the
Listing, details of which are set out in “History, Reorganization and Corporate Structure
— Reorganization” in the Prospectus

FEDEEEBARE
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

BEEEDIESTI EFF LIAEED - S TEHER] ~ HFsk AR AT gL
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AR B G X E E0.00001 £ 7T Y & 38K
ordinary shares of a par value of US$0.00001 each in the capital of the Company

AR FEE A
holder(s) of the Share(s)

3

1)
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[ B 22 PRy | BRMEXD AR AT

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
[%] AL

“%” per cent

RAFERT - [RXEZBAEIN  TBEAL
[BEBMEA] [BEAL] [BEXF] TH
BRERS| [ERER] THBAR]RIE
BRI FFAEEEAR LT RRPE T #9148 R
R

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “close
associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”,
“continuing connected transaction”, “controlling
shareholder”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder”
shall have the same meanings ascribed to them in the
Listing Rules, unless the context otherwise requires.



FEHREFREFTARATE

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

JEAE fi DAPROR AR EN Y

This annual report is printed on environmentally friendly paper



	封面
	內封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	集團架構
	公司簡介
	公司榮譽
	全國佈局
	表現摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高層管理人員簡歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	合併財務報表附註
	財務概要
	釋義
	封底



